
 

 

Truro Board of Selectmen 

                            Joint Meeting with Truro Board of Assessors 
Tuesday, April 18, 2017  

Executive Session Meeting - 4:30pm 

                                   Regular Board of Selectmen Meeting - 5:00pm  

            Truro Town Hall-24 Town Hall Rd-Truro 

  

Executive Session: Move that the Board of Selectmen enter into Executive Session under MGL Chapter 30 

Section 21 Paragraph 3 to discuss strategy with respect to litigation with the Chair declaring that an Open 

Meeting may have a detrimental effect on the litigation position of the public body-Smith vs. Town of Truro.  
 

1.  PUBLIC COMMENT  
A. Open the Regular Meeting 

B. Public Comment Period - The Commonwealth's Open Meeting Law limits any discussion by members of 

the Board of an issue raised to whether that issue should be placed on a future agenda 

 

2.  PUBLIC HEARINGS NONE 

 

3.  BOARD/COMMITTEE/COMMISSION APPOINTMENTS  

A. Review, Approve and Interview Peter Graham as Truro’s Representative to the Provincetown Water 

and Sewer Board. 

B. Review, Approve and Interview applicants for Alternate on the Zoning Board of Appeals:  Karen Tosh, 

Christopher Lucy, and Susan Areson. 

 

4.  TABLED ITEMS NONE 

 

5.  BOARD OF SELECTMEN ACTION 

A. Review/Discussion of Residential Exemption 

Presenter: Rae Ann Palmer, Town Manager and Cathy Fryxell, Principal Assessor 

B. Review of Warrant Motions 

Presenter: Chair-Paul Wisotzky 

C. Discussion of Truro Police and Immigration Enforcement 

Presenter: Chief Kyle Takakjian 

 

6.  CONSENT AGENDA 

A. Review/Approve and Authorize Signature:  

1. None 
B.   Review and Approve 2017 Seasonal Licenses: Jules Besch Stationers (Transient Vendor), North of 

Highland Camping Area, LLC (Transient Vendor and Pool Table License), Highland Links Golf Course 
(Transient Vendor and Common Victualer), and Terra Luna Restaurant (Common Victualer) 

C.   Review and Approve One Day Entertainment Licenses for Truro Vineyards of Cape Cod  
D.   Review and Approve Renewal of Aquaculture Development Area Licenses – Dana Pazolt, William and 

Cheryl Souza  
E.   Review and Approve Gary Sharpless for full membership and Dana Pazolt as Alternate on the Shellfish 

Advisory Committee 
F. Review and Approve Board of Selectmen Minutes: March 21, 2017 (Work Session), and March 27, 

2017 (Regular) 

 

7.   SELECTMEN REPORTS AND TOWN MANAGER REPORT  

8.  SELECTMEN COMMENTS  

9.   NEXT MEETING AGENDA:   Wednesday, May 10 



 

1 

 

 

TOWN OF TRURO 
               Board of Selectmen Agenda Item  

 
 

DEPARTMENT:  Administrative Department 

 

REQUESTOR: Nicole Tudor, Executive Assistant  

 

REQUESTED MEETING DATE:  April 18, 2017  

 

ITEM:  Appointment of Peter Graham to the Provincetown Water and Sewer Board  

 

EXPLANATION:  Peter Graham has submitted an application to serve as one of Truro’s 

representatives to the Provincetown Water and Sewer Board. 

 

 

SUGGESTED ACTION:  MOTION TO appoint Peter Graham as a representative to the 

Provincetown Water and Sewer Board for a three year term ending June 30, 2019.  

 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Application to Serve-Peter Graham 

 

 

                Agenda Item:  3A 
 

 

 

 



Agenda Item: 3A1



 

1 

 

 

TOWN OF TRURO 
Board of Selectmen Agenda Item  

 
BOARD/COMMITTEE/COMMISSION:  Zoning Board of Appeals 

 

REQUESTOR: Nicole Tudor, Executive Assistant 

 

REQUESTED MEETING DATE: April 18, 2017 

 

ITEM: Approval of Susan Areson, Chris Lucy or Karen Tosh for the Alternate position on the 

Zoning Board of Appeals. 

 

EXPLANATION: At the March 14th Board of Selectmen’s Meeting, the Alternate Zoning Board 

of Appeals member John Dundas, was approved for the full member vacancy. Currently there 

is an Alternate member vacancy on the Zoning Board of Appeals. Three Applicants are before 

the Board of Selectmen to be interviewed for the vacancy: Susan Areson, Chris Lucy, and Karen 

Tosh.  

 

 

SUGGESTED ACTION:  Motion to appoint _________to the one year Alternate position on the 

Zoning Board of Appeals.  

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Application to Serve-Susan Areson 

2. Application to Serve-Chris Lucy  

3. Application to Serve-Karen Tosh  

 

          Agenda Request:  3B 



        Agenda Item: 3B1





           Agenda Item: 3B2



Agenda Item:3B3





1 

 

Agenda Item: 5A  

  

TOWN OF TRURO 
 Board of Selectmen Agenda Item  

 
DEPARTMENT:  Assessor 

 

REQUESTOR:   Cathy Fryxell, Principal Assessor 

 

REQUESTED MEETING DATE: April 18, 2017 

 

ITEM:  Discussion of Residential Exemption pursuant to MGL Ch. 59 S. 5C 

 

EXPLANATION:  Attached for your review and consideration are several documents that explain the process 

for approving and implementing a residential tax exemption.  Also attached is a sample financial analysis.  It is 

important to note that this analysis is based on the current tax rate and does not reflect the actual exemption 

and tax decrease/increase that will occur should the Board adopt the exemption. 

 
The Residential Exemption is a local option which allows a community to shift the tax burden within the 
Residential Class to provide tax relief to residential properties that are the principal residence of the taxpayer. 
Upon initial approval of the Board of Selectmen, a notification of POTENTIAL OR INTENT could be sent to all 
primary residents explaining the process and identifying the required documentation that would be necessary 
to apply for it. By pre-qualifying taxpayers, this process would assist with financial planning and lead to more 
timely and accurate tax billing. 
 

IMPACT IF NOT APPROVED:  No additional tax relief for primary residents 

 

SUGGESTED ACTION:  Motion to direct staff to prepare the materials and the financial analysis for the 
residential tax exemption in preparation for the Classification Hearing to be held in August or September. 
 

ATTACHMENTS:   

1. The Residential Exemption Process 

2. Residential Exemption Worksheet 

3. Value-Tax Comparison 

 



 

Agenda Item: 5A1 

The Residential Exemption Process 

The Pre-Qualification Process 

 Beginning the process to pre-qualify taxpayers as soon as possible would be most helpful. Residential 

Exemption Applications could be mailed to potential primary residences, allowing them to gather the 

proper documentation required to meet the determined criteria. 

 Once the applicants are determined to be qualified, the number of exempt properties can be used for 

analysis to determine the exemption value.  

 If this exemption is adopted, successful pre-qualification would be considered a valid application 

allowing the exemption amount to be deducted from the 1st half tax bill.   

 

Property Values 

Once the property values are computed and entered on the State Form "Recap" Report, the Department of 

Revenue reviews and certifies that all properties are assessed at full and fair cash value. 

After the values have been certified by the Department of Revenue, the Classification Hearing is scheduled. 

 

The Classification Hearing 

Every year as part of the Municipal Calendar, the Classification Hearing is held as an Open Meeting within a 

regularly scheduled Board of Selectmen meeting. There are four votes taken each year which determines how 

the Tax Rate is assessed across all parcels in Town. 

 Classifying the Tax Rate,  

 Open Space Discount,  

 Small Commercial Exemption,  

 Residential Exemption, which provides tax exemption to year round residents 

This is the official adoption for the new Fiscal Year’s taxation rates.  The Board also receives notification of the 

excess levy capacity. 

 

The Application Process 

 If the Board of Selectmen votes to adopt the Residential Exemption, staff will determine the amount of 

the exemption and who is eligible and qualifies for the exemption, according to MGL Chapter 59, 

Section 5c. 

 Residential Exemption Applications will continue to be accepted & reviewed to verify the proper 

documentation meets the required criteria. 

 Once the applicant is determined to be qualified, the exemption will be processed and the determined 

exemption value will be deducted from the 1st half tax amount owed.  If valid applications are received 

after the 1st half tax bill is mailed, an abatement will be processed on the taxpayer’s behalf. 

 Unlike other exemptions, applications do not need to be resubmitted annually unless there is a change 

in ownership. 



20%

Values - FY17

Residential $2,000,407,581

Open Space $0

Commercial $94,915,609

Industrial $1,678,600

Personal $26,362,270

TOTAL $2,123,364,060

Single Tax Rates

Residential $6.98 before exemption

Exemption with a Factor of 1

No. Residential Parcels 3133 Includes All Residential & Vacant Lots

Average Residential Value $638,496 Total res Value/Total # res parcels ($2,000,407,581/3133)

Percentage adopted 20.00% Percent voted by Board of Selectmen

Exemption Amount $127,699.18 Exemption % multiplied by Average Value ($638,496 * 20%)

Number Eligible for Exemption 741 Parcels currently not billed Personal Property 

New Tax Rate $7.33 with exemption (Based on Town Census/Reg Voters & pays MV Excise to Truro)

FOR DISCUSSION PURPOSES UTILIZING 2017 VALUE AND TAX RATE INFORMATION 

CALCULATION OF RESIDENTIAL TAX EXEMPTION

                         Agenda Item: 5A2



RESIDENTIAL TAX EXEMPTION ANALYSIS - UTILIZING 2017 PROPERTY VALUES AND TAX RATE

 FOR DISCUSSION PURPOSES ONLY

EXEMPTION AMOUNTS, TAX RATES AND TAX BILL AMOUNTS MAY CHANGE WITH 2018 VALUES 
Total Tax Rate w/o Exemption = $6.98

$127,699 PER PARCEL EXEMPTION AMOUNT AT 20% -- Avg. Res. Parcel Value = $638,496 Note: These figures are Town Taxes Only - no CPA (CPA taxes will be affected proportionately)

Current 

Base 

Assessment

Tax Rate 

w/o 

Exemption 

is $6.98

Tax Bill 

Amt. w/o 

Exemption

Assessed 

Value 

Exempted

Assessment 

with 

Exemption

Tax Rate 

with 

Exemption 

is $7.33

Tax Bill Amt. 

with 

Exemption

Tax  Bill Amt. 

for non-

qualifying 

people w/ 

exemption in 

place

# of Pcls 

from last 

value to this 

Value

Tax Savings 

or Increase 

for qualifying 

people with 

Exemption in 

place

Est. # of 

taxpayers 

who qualify 

(primary 

residences)

Total # of 

taxpayers not 

qualifying 

(second 

homes, 

renters, vacant 

land)

Tax Increase 

for non-

qualifying 

people with 

Exemption 

in place

$100,000 0.00698 $698 $127,699 $10,000 0.00733 $73 $733 50 -$625 8 42 $35 In this value

$150,000 0.00698 $1,047 $127,699 $22,301 0.00733 $163 $1,100 68 -$884 2 66 $53 range▼

$200,000 0.00698 $1,396 $127,699 $72,301 0.00733 $530 $1,466 99 -$866 3 96 $70

$250,000 0.00698 $1,745 $127,699 $122,301 0.00733 $896 $1,833 189 -$849 10 179 $88 615

$300,000 0.00698 $2,094 $127,699 $172,301 0.00733 $1,263 $2,199 156 -$831 17 139 $105 taxpayers

$350,000 0.00698 $2,443 $127,699 $222,301 0.00733 $1,629 $2,566 211 -$814 50 161 $123 will pay less

$400,000 0.00698 $2,792 $127,699 $272,301 0.00733 $1,996 $2,932 273 -$796 72 201 $140

$450,000 0.00698 $3,141 $127,699 $322,301 0.00733 $2,362 $3,299 249 -$779 100 149 $158

$500,000 0.00698 $3,490 $127,699 $372,301 0.00733 $2,729 $3,665 233 -$761 95 138 $175 1,818

$550,000 0.00698 $3,839 $127,699 $422,301 0.00733 $3,095 $4,032 196 -$744 74 122 $193 taxpayers

$600,000 0.00698 $4,188 $127,699 $472,301 0.00733 $3,462 $4,398 188 -$726 48 140 $210 will pay more

$650,000 0.00698 $4,537 $127,699 $522,301 0.00733 $3,828 $4,765 176 -$709 45 131 $228

$700,000 0.00698 $4,886 $127,699 $572,301 0.00733 $4,195 $5,131 148 -$691 36 112 $245

$750,000 0.00698 $5,235 $127,699 $622,301 0.00733 $4,561 $5,498 102 -$674 32 70 $263

$800,000 0.00698 $5,584 $127,699 $672,301 0.00733 $4,928 $5,864 95 -$656 23 72 $280

$850,000 0.00698 $5,933 $127,699 $722,301 0.00733 $5,294 $6,231 101 -$639 21 80 $298 In this value

$900,000 0.00698 $6,282 $127,699 $772,301 0.00733 $5,661 $6,597 74 -$621 10 64 $315 range▼

$1,000,000 0.00698 $6,980 $127,699 $872,301 0.00733 $6,394 $7,330 120 -$586 22 98 $350

$1,100,000 0.00698 $7,678 $127,699 $972,301 0.00733 $7,127 $8,063 84 -$551 16 68 $385 577
$1,200,000 0.00698 $8,376 $127,699 $1,072,301 0.00733 $7,860 $8,796 44 -$516 17 27 $420 taxpayers

$1,300,000 0.00698 $9,074 $127,699 $1,172,301 0.00733 $8,593 $9,529 52 -$481 9 43 $455 will pay more

$1,400,000 0.00698 $9,772 $127,699 $1,272,301 0.00733 $9,326 $10,262 26 -$446 10 16 $490 including 2

$1,500,000 0.00698 $10,470 $127,699 $1,372,301 0.00733 $10,059 $10,995 16 -$411 2 14 $525 year-round

$2,000,000 0.00698 $13,960 $127,699 $1,872,301 0.00733 $13,724 $14,660 96 -$236 9 87 $700 residents

$2,500,000 0.00698 $17,450 $127,699 $2,372,301 0.00733 $17,389 $18,325 56 -$61 7 49 $875

$3,000,000 0.00698 $20,940 $127,699 $2,872,301 0.00733 $21,054 $21,990 17 $114 1 16 $1,050

$4,000,000 0.00698 $27,920 $127,699 $3,872,301 0.00733 $28,384 $29,320 11 $464 1 10 $1,400

$5,088,500 0.00698 $35,518 $127,699 $4,960,801 0.00733 $36,363 $37,299 3 $845 0 3 $1,781

Totals: 3,133 740 2,393

Total Tax Rate w/ Exemption = $7.33

4/11/2017 

Agenda Item: 5A3



1 

 

Agenda Item: 5B 

  

TOWN OF TRURO 
 Board of Selectmen Agenda Item  

 
 

DEPARTMENT:  Administration 
 
REQUESTOR:  Rae Ann Palmer, Town Manager 
 
REQUESTED MEETING DATE: April 18, 2017 
 
ITEM: Review of Motions for Annual Town Meeting Articles 
 
EXPLANATION:  Each year, prior to the Annual Town Meeting, the Board of Selectmen 
determines who will make the motions for the articles in the warrant.  Staff will then prepare 
the motions.   
 
SUGGESTED ACTION:  Discussion  
 
ATTACHMENTS:   

1. 2017 Annual Town Meeting Warrant  
 

 

 



 

 

Warrant 

Truro Annual Town Meeting 

April 25, 2017, 6:00 pm 

Truro Central School 

& 
 

Annual Election Ballot 

7am to 8pm 

Tuesday, May 9, 2017 

Truro Community Center 
 

 

Free drop-in child care available for ages 3 and up during Annual Town Meeting. 

Pre-registration is not required. 

 

Transportation will be available for our senior citizens by the Council on Aging. 

Reservations must be made in advance by calling 508-413-9509. 
 

Please note:  Accommodations for individuals with disabilities including assistive 

listening devices (ALD) and material in alternative formats may be arranged by 

contacting Town Hall four business days prior to annual town meeting at 

(508) 349-7004 ext. 110 or ext. 124 
  

 

                       Agenda Item: 5B1 



2 

Table of Contents 
MESSAGE FROM THE BOARD OF SELECTMEN ............................................................................................................... 3 
MESSAGE FROM THE FINANCE COMMITTEE ................................................................................................................. 5 
TERMS USED IN MUNICIPAL FINANCE .............................................................................................................................. 6 
FISCAL YEAR 2018 FIVE YEAR CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN ................................................................................ 8 
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT BUDGET FY2018- FY2022 ...................................................................................................... 10 
ARTICLE 1:  AUTHORIZATION TO HEAR THE REPORTS OF MULTI-MEMBER BODIES .................................... 12 
ARTICLE 2:  AUTHORIZATION TO SET THE SALARY OF THE BOARD OF SELECTMEN ................................... 13 
ARTICLE 3:  AUTHORIZATION TO SET THE SALARY OF THE MODERATOR ........................................................ 14 
ARTICLE 4:  AMENDMENTS TO THE FY2017 OPERATING BUDGET ......................................................................... 15 
ARTICLE 5:  FY 2018 OMNIBUS BUDGET APPROPRIATION ........................................................................................ 16 
ARTICLE 6:  GENERAL OVERRIDE .................................................................................................................................... 17 
ARTICLE 7:  TRANSFER OF FUNDS FROM FREE CASH ................................................................................................ 18 
ARTICLE 8:  REAPPROPRIATE EAST HARBOR PIPE REPAIR CAPITAL EXCLUSION FUNDS ........................... 22 
ARTICLE 9:  AUTHORIZATION TO EXPEND FUNDS IN ANTICIPATION OF REIMBURSEMENT FOR STATE 

HIGHWAY ASSISTANCE AID ................................................................................................................................................. 23 
ARTICLE 10: REPAIR AND REPLACE FAILING CULVERT FROM CAPE COD BAY TO ROUTE 6 ....................... 24 
ARTICLE 11: NON-UNION PERSONNEL CLASSIFICATION AND COMPENSATION SCHEDULE, COST OF 

LIVING ALLOWANCE FOR FISCAL YEAR 2018 ............................................................................................................... 25 
ARTICLE 12: RE-CLASSIFICATION OF SEASONAL BEACH/RECREATION POSITIONS ...................................... 26 
ARTICLE 13: TRANSFER OF FUNDS FROM STABILIZATION FUND TO EMPLOYEE BENEFITS ACCOUNT .. 27 
ARTICLE 14: COA REVOLVING FUND................................................................................................................................ 28 
ARTICLE 15: AMENDMENT TO PERSONNEL BYLAW ARTICLE 6, SECTION 6.1 .................................................... 30 
ARTICLE 16: COMMUNITY PRESERVATION ACT .......................................................................................................... 31 
ARTICLE 17: AMEND ZONING BYLAWS, §40, SPECIAL REGULATIONS, §40.2 AFFORDABLE ACCESSORY 

DWELLING UNIT BY DELETING IN ITS ENTIRETY AND REPLACING IT WITH NEW LANGUAGE ................. 40 
ARTICLE 18: AMEND ZONING BYLAWS SECTION §10.4 BY ADDING A NEW DEFINITION, REMOVING AN 

EXISTING DEFINITION AND AMEND §30.2 USE TABLE, BY DELETING USES FROM THE TABLE ................... 43 
ARTICLE 19: AMENDMENT TO CHAPTER 1, TOWN AFFAIRS OF THE TRURO GENERAL BYLAWS ........ 47 
ARTICLE 20: AMENDMENT TO PRIVATE AND PUBLIC WAYS AND PLACES §1-9-7 GENERAL BYLAWS ......... 48 
ARTICLE 21: AMENDMENT TO MOTOR VEHICLES §4-4-1 GENERAL BYLAWS .................................................... 49 
ARTICLE 22: AMENDMENT TO APPENDIX A GENERAL BYLAWS ............................................................................. 50 
ARTICLE 23: DECLARING A TWO THIRDS VOTE AT TOWN MEETING ................................................................... 51 
ARTICLE 24: ACCEPT MASSACHUSETTS GENERAL LAW CHAPTER 39, SECTION 23D ...................................... 52 
ARTICLE 25: CHARTER AMENDMENT TO SECTION 4-2-7 ........................................................................................... 53 
ARTICLE 26: CHARTER AMENDMENT TO SECTION 6-2-12 ......................................................................................... 54 
ARTICLE 27: CHARTER AMENDMENT TO SECTION 6-4-1 ........................................................................................... 55 
ARTICLE 28: CHARTER AMENDMENT TO SECTION 6-4-2 ........................................................................................... 56 
ARTICLE 29: CHARTER AMENDMENT TO SECTION 6-4-8 ........................................................................................... 57 
ARTICLE 30: CHARTER AMENDMENT TO APPENDIX B .............................................................................................. 58 
ARTICLE 31: TO AMEND THE GENERAL BYLAWS CHAPTER VI PRESERVING HISTORIC PROPERTIES 

SECTION..................................................................................................................................................................................... 60 
ARTICLE 32: AMEND ZONING BYLAWS §10.4 DEFINITIONS §30.3 SEASHORE DISTRICT, §70.9 WAIVER OF 

SITE PLAN.................................................................................................................................................................................. 64 
ARTICLE 33: AMEND ZONING BYLAWS §50, AREA AND HEIGHT REGULATIONS ............................................... 67 
ARTICLE 34: HERRING RIVER RESTORATION PROJECT PERMITTING APPLICATIONS.................................. 69 
ARTICLE 35: ELECTRONIC VOTING EXPLORATION AND IMPLEMENTATION .................................................... 70 
ANNUAL TOWN ELECTION .................................................................................................................................................. 71 
POSTING OF THE WARRANT AND BALLOT ..................................................................................................................... 77 
APPENDIX A –NON-UNION PERSONNEL COMPENSATION AND CLASSIFICATION FY2017 AND FY2018........ 78 
APPENDIX B –OMNIBUS BUDGET FISCAL YEAR 2018 .................................................................................................. 81 
 



3 

Message from the Board of Selectmen 
 

Dear Truro Voter: 
 

Thank you for taking the time to review the Annual Town Meeting Warrant and for becoming familiar with 

the many issues before us this spring.  Each voter in Truro has the opportunity to affect the future of our 

Town through the Town Meeting process.  It is vital that we hear from as many voices as possible and we 

encourage you to join us at this year’s Town Meeting.
 

This message to voters highlights a number of the warrant articles at this year’s Town Meeting.  It does not 

summarize them all and we ask that you read the Warrant in its entirety to learn more about each very 

important one. 
 

Article 5 presents the Fiscal Year 2018 Omnibus Budget Appropriation.  What you see is the culmination of 

a thoughtful collaborative process that takes place over several months and includes the Town Manager, 

Town Accountant, Department Heads, the Board of Selectmen and the Finance Committee.  It is also an 

open process that takes place at public meetings of the Budget Task Force that begins in December, the 

Finance Committee and the Board of Selectmen.   
 

This year we are presenting a budget to voters that is down by slightly more than 1% from the prior year’s 

revised budget.  This was not an easy task and we are extremely grateful to the hard work of the Town 

Manager, Town Accountant and all of the Department Heads.  We also believe it is necessary for us to 

propose a Proposition 2 ½ override to voters (Article 6).  Several interrelated factors are at play here both on 

the expense and revenue sides of the budget.   
 

On the expense side, we continue to experience increases to our operating budget that are mandated and out 

of our control.  These include increases in education expenses, retirement benefits and health care costs.  

This means that in order for us to avoid or limit budget growth and provide the same levels of programs and 

services from year to year, we need to find ways to do this for less cost each year.  The other alternative is to 

reduce or cut programs and services. This budget reflects Town Staff’s continued excellent work in aligning 

needs with essential services in the most cost effective and efficient manner possible.   
 

We are also implementing fiscal policies on the revenue side of the budget that we believe are in the best 

interest of the Town in the long term. These include moving away from using one-time sources of funding to 

balance the budget. In prior years we have used one-time sources of revenue to make up for shortfalls instead 

of raising our levy limit through an override.  For example, last year we used the last of the revenue from the 

Golf Course, $270,335.14, to help us balance the budget. We can and should not depend on one-time sources 

of funding to luckily appear each year to cover our budget shortfalls.   
 

In addition, we believe it is in the best interest of the Town to be more conservative in the use of Free Cash 

to stabilize the tax rate and balance the budget.  Once again, we have been able to avoid overrides in the past 

through the generous use and availability of Free Cash.  This year we are proposing to transfer $1 million in 

Free Cash to stabilize the Tax Rate.  Last year we used $1.3 million.  We do not believe that heavily relying 

on Free Cash is a prudent long-term fiscal strategy for the Town particularly as our budget becomes leaner 

and more efficient which leads to having less Free Cash overall.   
 

These changes in both the expense and revenue side of the budget this year created a shortfall that we believe 

requires a Proposition 2 ½ override in order to be able to continue to provide the essential programs and 

services the Town requires in the most efficient manner possible.   
 

The proposed FY2018 Capital Budget total is $292,550 which includes $100,000 that is part of the proposed 

general override in Article 6.  This is less than FY2017 yet maintains the policy of funding and planning that 

will result in proper maintenance of the Town’s infrastructure. 
 

Article 8 re-appropriates $120,000 passed last year to make repairs to the East Harbor outfall pipe. Because the 

project has grown in scope, as described in Article 10, we are asking voters to re-appropriate those funds so 

that they can be used to repair the culvert under Old County Road, south of Prince Valley Road.   



4 

 

Article 10 is an authorization that will allow us to borrow up to $3.7 million for the replacement of the East 

Harbor culvert pipe between Route 6 and Shore Road.  Initially we believed that we would be able to repair the 

culvert.  However, further investigation and engineering studies have indicated that repair is not possible and 

that the portion of the culvert that is Town owned needs to be replaced.  Continued engineering work will take 

place in FY2018 in order to inform a final design and solution.  
 

Article 15 is an example of how our Town Manager is working to create efficiencies and cut costs within Town 

administration.  The article will amend the Town’s Personnel Bylaw so that all non-union personnel will accrue 

vacation in the same manner.  This will enable us to automate the tracking of all paid time off and fully 

automate the payroll process without the need for purchasing custom software.  This will cut costs, time spent 

and create a more modern and efficient system.  This change will have no impact on current employee benefits.   
 

Article 16 presents the funding recommendations of the Community Preservation Committee.  These projects 

will be funded through the Community Preservation Act.  This year there are eight diverse projects being 

presented to voters in the specified areas of funding of community housing, historic preservation, recreation 

and open space.   
 

Article 17 & 18 are citizen petitioned articles that would create new language in our Zoning Bylaw defining 

and creating a process for the creation of Accessory Dwelling Units.  Article 19, also citizen petitioned, revises 

our established criteria and process for tax exemption of Affordable Accessory Dwelling Units.  Changes to 

our Zoning Bylaw require a two-thirds majority for passage.   
 

Articles 20 – 22 address issues related to parking violations and enforcement on publicly owned roads.  It will 

enable us to implement ticketing as an enforcement mechanism as an alternative to the currently prescribed 

towing of vehicles.  The articles also clean up confusing and archaic language related to parking enforcement.   
 

Article 23 comes to us as a recommendation of Town Counsel after last year’s Town Meeting.  It brings our 

Town Meeting process more fully into compliance with Massachusetts General Law.  
 

Articles 25 – 30 are the recommendations of the Town’s Charter Review Committee.  The Committee has been 

recommending incremental changes to the Charter annually to clarify roles and responsibilities and to update it 

to reflect current best practices in municipal government.  All changes to the Charter need to be approved at 

Town Meeting and then again by voters in the Town election the following year.  Article 24 clarifies and aligns 

the reporting structure and practice for multi-member Town boards, committees and commissions with those 

followed by the Board of Selectmen.  It requires that boards, committees and commissions work through the 

Town Manager when working with Town Staff.  Most of the remaining recommendations for this year are 

housekeeping items that fine tune recent changes to the Charter passed by voters in prior years.   
 

Article 32 proposes house size limits in the National Seashore Zoning District and comes before us from the 

Planning Board.  Article 33 is a citizen petitioned article that proposes limits on house size in the Seashore and 

Residential Zoning Districts. Changes to our Zoning Bylaw require a two-thirds majority for passage.   
 

The Selectmen thank you for participating in our Annual Town Meeting, a strong New England tradition and 

the most direct source of democracy in this country.  Your informed and careful consideration of the articles 

before you will ensure a strong and healthy future for our town.  
 

Respectfully, 
 

The Truro Board of Selectmen 
 

Paul Wisotzky, Chair 

Janet W. Worthington, Vice Chair 

Jay H. Coburn, Clerk 

Maureen Burgess 

Robert Weinstein 

  



5 

Message from the Finance Committee 
 

To All Truro Voters: 
 

As mandated by Massachusetts’ law, the Finance Committee (“Committee”) functions as the town’s official 

fiscal watchdog. As such, the Committee’s primary responsibility is to study, analyze, and offer 

recommendations to the Town Meeting with regards to Truro’s Annual Budget, Capital Improvement Plan, and 

any other financial warrant articles, as well as to understand and to monitor the process for setting the Town 

tax rate. The Finance Committee must also review and approve all proposed reserve funds transfers for 

unexpected contingencies. In performing these responsibilities during 2016 and 2017, the Committee held a 

number of public meetings, including several joint meetings with the Board of Selectmen, and one public 

budget hearing. In addition, the Committee participated in the operation of a budget task force, which was 

established several years ago to help gain a better understanding of departmental spending and budget requests. 

The task force consists of two members of the Finance Committee, two members of the Board of Selectmen, 

the Town Manager, and the Town Accountant. The task force met a number of times during 2016 and the 

beginning of 2017. 
 

The Omnibus Annual Budget for FY 2018 totals $18,480,032, which is a decrease of 1.18%. The budget will 

request a proposition 2 ½ override in the amount of $465,617 to fully fund operations and services (Article 6) 

which must be passed on the Annual Town Election Ballot (Question 1). If the override is approved, it will be 

an increase of 1.30% over FY’2017 Budget. There has been great concern over the increase in the annual Town 

budget and it is the consensus of the Committee that this will be a trend that is now being viewed in a more 

collaborative way and is striving to gain a better understanding of not only synergies within town departments, 

but the entire environment of the Outer Cape community. The Committee believes that the proposed budget 

and override is needed to ensure the continued operations of the town departments. 
 

The majority of the budget is made up of salaries, employee benefits, education, utility costs and debt service. 

It is imperative that we make prudent decisions that will have a long term impact as it has proven difficult to 

influence spending for the short term. Initiatives are underway to reach out to the neighboring towns and Outer 

Cape communities Finance Committees, Boards of Selectmen and Town Managers to collaborate and share 

resources the pave the way for a more efficient delivery of services or resources in the future. Ongoing 

initiatives for the coming year include continued review and monitoring of the town’s unfunded liabilities and 

infrastructure needs. We as a committee will continue to work with the town’s leadership to assist in these 

efforts. The Committee will continue to motivate the Board of Selectmen to better define the roles and 

responsibilities within the town’s government and continue to work on a strategic plan for the town. We 

believe that the increasing costs associated with doing business on the Outer Cape and the impact that has on 

the Town’s resources is something that may not be sustainable and requires professional guidance. 
 

The town maintains a Stabilization Fund, in keeping with prudent financial practices outlined by the 

Commonwealth. It is recommended that all cities and towns maintain a Stabilization Fund that represents 5-7% 

of the annual budget. The current balance of our fund is $852,952.00 which is 4.45% of the 2017 General Fund 

Operating Budget.   The Stabilization Fund, our low tax rate, and our infrastructure that has been well 

maintained demonstrates a commitment  that Truro is in a relatively healthy financial condition compared to 

most other towns in the Commonwealth and this has translated into our AA+ rating by Standard and Poors. 

The Committee encourages this continued due diligence to sustain this strong position. 
 

The Committee thereby recommends that the Annual Town Meeting approve the Omnibus Annual Budget and 

other financial articles for the 2018 year. 
 

Truro Finance Committee, 
 

Lori Meads, Chair 

Richard Wood, Vice-Chair 

Dennis Clark, Clerk 

Robert Panessiti 

Roberta Lema  



6 

Terms Used In Municipal Finance 
 

Appropriation: An amount of money which has been 

authorized by vote of Town Meeting to be spent for a 

designated purpose. 

 

Available Funds: Available funds refer to the 

Stabilization Fund, Beach Receipts Reserved for 

Appropriation, Pamet Harbor Receipts Reserved for 

Appropriation, Recreation Receipts Reserved for 

Appropriation, Conservation Commission Receipts 

Reserved for Appropriation, and continued 

appropriations left in Articles voted at previous Town 

Meetings. 

 

Bond and Interest Record (Bond Register) – The 

permanent and complete record maintained by the 

treasurer for each bond issue. It shows the amount of 

interest and principal coming due each date and all 

other pertinent information concerning the bond issue.  

 

Bond Anticipation Note (BAN) – Short-term debt 

instrument used to generate cash for initial project 

costs and with the expectation that the debt will be 

replaced later by permanent bonding. Typically issued 

for a term of less than one year, BANs may be re-

issued for up to five years, provided principal 

repayment begins after two years (MGL Ch. 44 §17). 

Principal payments on school-related BANs may be 

deferred up to seven years (increased in 2002 from five 

years) if the community has an approved project on the 

Massachusetts School Building Authority (MSBA) 

priority list. BANs are full faith and credit obligations. 

 

Capital Outlay Expenditure Exclusion – A 

temporary increase in the tax levy to fund a capital 

project or make a capital acquisition. Exclusions 

require two-thirds vote of the selectmen or city council 

(sometimes with the mayor's approval) and a majority 

vote in a community-wide referendum.  The exclusion 

is added to the tax levy only during the year in which 

the project is being funded and may increase the tax 

levy above the levy ceiling. 

 

Cherry Sheet: A form showing all State and County 

charges and reimbursements to the Town as certified by 

the Massachusetts Department of Revenue. 

 

Classification of Real Property – Assessors are 

required to classify all real property according to use 

into one of four classes: Residential, Open Space, 

Commercial, and Industrial. Having classified its real 

property, local officials are permitted to determine 
locally, within limits established by statute and the 

Commissioner of Revenue, what percentage of the tax 

burden is to be borne by each class of real property and 

by personal property owners. 

 

Classification of the Tax Rate – Each year, the 

selectmen or city council vote whether to exercise 

certain tax rate options. Those options include 

choosing a residential factor (MGL Ch. 40 §56), and 

determining whether to offer an open space discount, a 

residential exemption (Ch. 59, §5C), and/or a small 

commercial exemption (Ch. 59, §5I) to property 

owners. 

 

CMR – Code of Massachusetts Regulations. 

 

Code of Ethics – The provisions and requirements of 

MGL Ch. 286A pertaining to the standards of behavior 

and conduct to which all public officials and 

employees are held. 

 

COLA – Cost of Living Adjustment 

 

Collective Bargaining – The process of negotiating 

workers' wages, hours, benefits, working conditions, 

etc., between an employer and some or all of its 

employees, who are represented by a recognized labor 

unit. 

 

Commitment – Establishes the liability for individual 

taxpayers. The assessors' commitment of real estate 

taxes fixes the amount that the collector will bill and 

collect from property owners. 

 

Community Preservation Act (CPA) – Enacted as 

MGL Ch. 44B in 2000, CPA permits cities and towns 

accepting its provisions to establish a restricted fund 

from which monies can be appropriated only for: a) the 

acquisition, creation and preservation of open space; b) 

the acquisition, preservation, rehabilitation, and 

restoration of historic resources; and c) the acquisition, 

creation and preservation of land for recreational use; 

d) the creation, preservation and support of community 

housing; and e) the rehabilitation and restoration of 

open space, land for recreational use and community 

housing that is acquired or created using monies from 

the fund. Acceptance requires town meeting or city 

council approval or a citizen petition. 

 

Overlay (Also called Allowance for Abatements and 

Exemptions): The amount raised by the Assessors to 

be used for potential abatement of property taxes.  The 

Overlay Surplus is the portion of each year’s Overlay 

Account no longer required to cover the property 

abatements. 

 

Free Cash: This is the amount certified annually by 

the State Bureau of Accounts.  Town Meeting may 

appropriate from Free Cash for any lawful purpose.  



7 

Sometimes referred to as Excess and Deficiency. 

 

Transfer: The authorization to use an appropriation for 

a different purpose; in most cases only Town Meeting 

may authorize a transfer.  However, in Truro, with 

certain restrictions, transfers may be authorized if the 

transfer is $2,500.00 or less, the transfer is within the 

same Department, and is approved by the Department 

Head, Town Manager and the Finance Committee. 

 

Reserve Fund: This fund is established by the voters 

at an Annual Town Meeting through the Omnibus 

Budget.  Transfers from the Reserve Fund are within 

the exclusive control of the Finance Committee and are 

for extraordinary or unforeseen expenditures. 

 

Stabilization Fund: This is a special reserve account. 

Without an authorizing two-thirds (⅔) vote at a Town 

Meeting, funds cannot be deposited into or withdrawn 

from this account. 

 

PROPOSITION 2½ TERMS 

 
Community Preservation Fund – A special revenue 

fund established pursuant to MGL Ch. 44B to receive 

all monies collected to support a Community 

Preservation Program, including but not limited to, tax 

surcharge receipts, proceeds from borrowings, funds 

received from the Commonwealth, and proceeds from 

the sale of certain real estate. 

 

Contingent Votes: Chapter 634 of the Acts of 1989 

permits a Town Meeting to appropriate funds 

contingent upon passage of a referendum question 

(Override).  A contingent vote does not automatically 

result in an override referendum.   An override 

referendum can only be called by the Board of 

Selectmen.   If a referendum is called by the 

Selectmen, it must take place within ninety days of the 

Town Meeting vote. 

 

Debt Exclusion and Capital Outlay Expenditure 

Exclusion: These two override ballot questions can be 

placed on a referendum by a two-thirds (2/3) vote of 

the Board of Selectmen. If a majority of the voters 

approve the ballot question, the Town’s levy limit is 

temporarily increased for the amount voted at the 

referendum.  The increase may exceed the Town's levy 

limit. 

 

General Override: A general override ballot question 

can be placed on a referendum if a majority of the 

Board of Selectmen votes to do so.  If the ballot 

question is approved by a majority of the voters, the 

Town’s levy limit is permanently increased by the 

amount voted at the referendum.  The levy limit 

increases may not exceed the Town’s levy ceiling. 

 
Levy: The property tax levy is the revenue the Town 

can raise through real and personal property taxes.  The 

levy is the largest source of revenue for the Town. 

 

Levy Ceiling: This is the maximum amount of the levy 

limit.  The ceiling equals 2½% of the Town’s full and 

fair cash value. 

 

Levy Limit: The limit is based on the previous year's 

levy plus certain allowable increases. 

 

Levy Limit Increase: The levy limit automatically 

increases each year by 2½% of the previous year's levy 

limit. 

 

New Growth: The increase in the levy limit 

attributable to new construction and new parcel sub-

divisions. 

 

Override: A community can increase its levy limit by 

voting at a referendum to exceed the limit.  There are 

three (3) types of overrides: general, debt exclusion 

and capital outlay expenditure exclusion. 

  



8 

Fiscal Year 2018 Five Year Capital Improvement Plan  

Five Year Capital Improvement Plan 
 

In accordance with the requirements of the Truro Charter (Paragraph 7-2-6), the Board of Selectmen 

respectfully present for your review the FY 2018 Five Year Capital Improvement Plan. The expenditures listed 

are presented to give an updated overview of the projects and capital needs planned for the future.  Attempts to 

define the future, while prudent from a planning point of view, must be fully recognized as “best estimates” 

that will be subject to continual change as each capital question moves forward. 

 

During the calendar year 2003, the Town consolidated all long-term debt, including certain Cape Cod Land 

Bank acquisitions, into one general obligation bond, and refinanced the debt during a period of low interest 

rates, saving the Town almost $500,000.00 over the life of the bond; thus concurrently improving its Standard 

& Poor’s Bond Rating three (3) levels to an A+ rating. The attached “previously committed long-term debt” 

schedule, and the new “previously committed Land Bank debt” schedule, reflects that refinancing.  The Town’s 

bond rating now is an “AA+” after a 2014 review by Standard and Poor. 

 

Commencing with the FY2002 Municipal Operating Budget, the Town approved a new procedure to 

incorporate safety and other high priority capital items in the operating budget, up to a maximum expenditure 

amount to be set annually.  Concerted effort has been focused on gradually increasing the annual appropriation 

for priority capital items to insure sufficient budget capacity to develop and maintain a realistic upgrade and/or 

replacement schedule for the town’s rolling stock of vehicles, equipment and machinery.   If an item does not 

succeed in being placed in the operating budget for purchase through this Operating Capital Account, Budget 

Line Item #01-133-5800, then the capital item may be funded in a different manner.  

 

As one alternative, the Capital Improvement Fund (approved by Article 17 of the April 11, 2000, Annual Town 

Meeting) may be used.  The Capital Improvement Fund is a special revenue fund authorized by a Home Rule 

Petition to the Legislature and the Governor, and which requires approval by a two-thirds vote at Town 

Meeting (similar to the Stabilization Fund) for appropriation. There is a balance of $252,278.00 in the Capital 

Improvement Fund.  Two other ways to acquire a capital item individually require either a separate article 

specifying use of other available funds, or a Capital Exclusion Article, on the Town Meeting Warrant. The 

Capital Exclusion Article is considered to be a so-called "menu-override," requiring a majority vote at both 

Town Meeting and at the next referendum.  

 

For FY2018, most of the safety and high priority capital needs are included in the Operating Capital Account 

budget request.  One item is included in the General Override and several other capital items have been 

deferred to FY 2019, or later. 

 

   

  



9 

FIVE YEAR CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN  
**Debt figures include principal and interest 

PREVIOUSLY COMMITTED LONG TERM DEBT** FY2018 FY2019 FY2020 FY2021 FY2022 

Year committed/amount/repayment      

TRURO PUBLIC LIBRARY (Note 1) $63,000 $00.00 $00.00 $00.00 $00.00 

1999/$1,108,708/20 - paid in full FY2017      

TOWN HALL REHABILITATION (Note 2) $205,000 $194,000 $188,000 $182,000 $177,000 

2002/$3,258,360/20 - paid in full FY2023      

SEWER (MWPAT) (Note 3) $11,000 $11,000 $11,000 $11,000 $11,000 

2003/$197,404/19 - paid in full FY2021      

COMMUNITY CENTER (Note 4) $278,000 $269,000 $255,000 $247,000 $240,000    

2006/$3,735,000/20 - paid in full FY2026      

HARBOR JETTY REPAIR $120,000 $115,000 $00.00 $00.00 $00.00 

2009/$1,100,000/10 - paid in full FY2018      

SUB TOTAL $677,000 $589,000 $454,000 $440,000 $428,000 

PREVIOUSLY  COMMITTED LAND BANK DEBT** 

(Note 5) 

FY2018 FY2019 FY2020 FY2021 FY2022 

Year committed/amount/repayment      

Morea Property $18,000 $17,000 $16,000 $16,000 $00.00 

2002/$312,000/17 - paid in full FY2020      

Meldahl Property $58,000 $56,000 $54,000 $52,000 $00.00 

2001/$860,000/17 - paid in full FY2020      

Poor Property (Note 6) $135,000 $130,000 $125,000 $115,000 $00.00 

2005/$1,500,000/13 - paid in full FY 2020      

SUB TOTAL $211,000 $203,000 $195,000 $183,000 $00.00 

NEW AND POTENTIAL CAPITAL PROJECTS**      

Year to Commit/Amount/Repayment FY2018 FY2019 FY2020 FY2021 FY2022 

New DPW Facility Land Acquisition/Trade & Building 

Construction (Note 7) 

$311,000 $303,000 $296,000 $287,000 $280,000 

2015/$3,700,000/20 - Paid in full FY 2034      

SUB TOTAL $311,000 $303,000 $296,000 $287,000 $280,000 

TOTAL $1,199,000 $1,095,000 $945,000 $910,000 $708,000 

NOTES 

1. The total project borrowed reflects a Commonwealth Board of Library Commissioners grant of $640,000 and the receipt of donations in excess of $400,000 to 

offset the total cost. 

2. The total project amount borrowed has been reduced by receipt of a Small Cities Grant in the amount of $312,000. 

3. MA Water Pollution Abatement Trust loan.  This is a no interest loan.  Septic betterment receipts used to repay the debt. 

4. The total project amount borrowed has been reduced by the receipt of donations in the amount of $223,000. 

5. On May 10, 2005 the Town completed acceptance of Section 298/Chapter 149 of the Acts of 2004 which replaces the Cape Cod Land Bank with the Community 

Preservation Act (with modifications). 

6. The Poor Property is the last Land Bank Acquisition. 

7. The DPW facility project is included for long range planning purposes only. Any such increase in the Town’s long term debt is not recommended until such time 

as other long-term debt has retired. The Town is in the early stage of identifying a site for the project 

 

 

 

  



10 

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT BUDGET FY2018- FY2022 

Projected Capital Needs 

Includes equipment, technology and other Departmental capital requests exceeding $5,000 

DEPARTMENT ITEM REQUESTED FY2018 FY2019 FY2020 FY2021 FY2022 

DPW 

Pick Up Truck with plow (2) 80,000   (1) 40,000  

One-ton Dump Truck 100,000*     

Road Maintenance Program  100,000 102,500 105,100 107,800 

Maintenance Van  35,000    

Software   15,000   

Zero-turn Lawn Mower   15,000   

Rough terrain lawn mower   18,000   

Chipper    40,000  

Dump truck, plow & sander    140,000  

Rubber-tire Front End Loader     120,000 

Brush cutter/mower     80,000 

*Subject to Override      

 

TRANSFER STATION 

Office Building Replacement   50,000   

 

PUBLIC BUILDING MAINTENANCE 

Key Fob System (Interior doors PSF, TH, TPL) 25,000     

Public Safety Building (Gutters) 5,000     

Snow’s Fieldhouse Mold Remediation 15,000     

Library Roof  65,000    

Town Hall Siding and Trim  30,000    

Beach Office Carpeting  15,000    

Epoxy Flooring PSF  35,000    

Community Center Carpet Replacement    20,000  

Community Center interior painting     22,000 

      

COUNCIL ON AGING      

Ford FLEX Passenger Vehicle  32,000    

 

RECREATION AND BEACH DEPARTMENT 

ATV 10,000     

Community Center Awning  10,000    

Community Center Shade Sail  10,000    

Snow’s Field Improvements  40,000    

Snow’s Fieldhouse: finish basement   50,000   

Sedan vehicle replacement   25,000   

Addition to Recreation Lounge (Feasibility)    50,000  

 

FIRE AND RESCUE 

Tanker   325,000    

Replace Utility Truck   65,000   

Replace Ambulance    275,000  

Replace Engine 485     500,000 

LIBRARY 

Shelving Replacement (on-going project) 6,000 6,000 6,000 2,000 2,000 

Replace carpet on lower level  28,000    

Carpet in Youth Services Room  30,000    



11 

Replace Trim   10,000    

Replace carpet in main area   40,000   

 

POLICE 

Ballistic Vests X 14 Officers 11,550     

Dodge Charger  (2) 70,000   35,000  36,655 

Replacement Tasers/Equip (14)  18,200    

(3) Moving radar units for cruisers  5,000    

Dodge SUV   36,655 37,000 40,000 

Firing Range EPA Cleanup (A)   250,000   

Toyota Camry    30,000  

 

HARBOR OPERATIONS/SHELLFISH WARDEN 

Float and Poles  10,000    

Harbormaster Truck   40,000   

Freshwater Hookup    2,500  

Upweller     10,000 

SCHOOL 

Technology  25,000 25,000 25,000 25,000 25,000 

Repaint Exterior  40,000 40,000 45,000 45,000 

Replace Boilers (Green Communities Grant)  25,000    

Interior Painting 15,000 15,000 17,000 17,000 17,000 

Replace Carpet  20,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 

 

ANIMAL CONTROL OFFICER 

Replace 4X4 Truck    37,000  

      

TOTAL $292,550 $ 999,200 $ 845,155 $ 880,600 $1,020,455 

 

 

  



12 

Greetings: 

 

In the name of the Commonwealth, you are hereby required to warn the inhabitants of the Town of Truro 

qualified to vote in town affairs, to meet at the Truro Central School, 317 Route 6, Truro, MA 02666, on 

Tuesday, April 25, 2017 at 6:00 pm, then and there, to vote on the following articles: 

 

 

ARTICLE 1:  AUTHORIZATION TO HEAR THE REPORTS OF MULTI-MEMBER BODIES 

To see if the Town will vote to hear reports of any multi-member body, whose annual report was not 

published in the 2016 Annual Town Report, or take any other action relative thereto.  Requested by the Board 

of Selectmen. 

 

Board of Selectmen Recommendation: 5-0-0 in favor 

 

Comment: Customary article. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



13 

ARTICLE 2:  AUTHORIZATION TO SET THE SALARY OF THE BOARD OF SELECTMEN 

To see if the Town will vote to determine and set the following as the salary for the Board of 

Selectmen, who shall receive for Fiscal Year 2018:  Board of Selectmen 5 @ $3,000.00 = $15,000.00, or take 

any other action relative thereto.  Requested by the Finance Committee. 

  

Finance Committee Recommendation: 5-0-0 in favor 

Board of Selectmen Recommendation: 5-0-0 in favor 

 

Comment: Customary article. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



14 

ARTICLE 3:  AUTHORIZATION TO SET THE SALARY OF THE MODERATOR 

To see if the Town will vote to determine and set the salary for the Town Moderator, who shall receive 

for Fiscal Year 2018:   Moderator @ $150.00, or take any other action relative thereto.  Requested by the 

Board of Selectmen. 
 

Finance Committee Recommendation: 5-0-0 in favor 

Board of Selectmen Recommendation: 5-0-0 in favor 

 

Comment: Customary article. 

 

  



15 

 

ARTICLE 4:  AMENDMENTS TO THE FY2017 OPERATING BUDGET 

To see if the Town will vote to appropriate from available funds (Free Cash) such sums of money 

necessary to supplement the operating budgets of the various Town departments for the current fiscal year 

2016-2017 (FY2017), or take any other action relative thereto. Requested by the Board of Selectmen. 

 

 

 

FROM TO  AMOUNT 
 

Free Cash Snow Removal $35,000 

To balance FY 2017 budget for emergency snow and ice removal operations 
 

Free Cash Transfer Station – Transfer Trailer $65,000 

To purchase a 20-ton capacity transfer trailer to reduce over-road trips by replacing four 5-ton 

containers 

Free Cash Landfill Capping Remediation & Reconfiguring Project $20,000 

To support compliance with DEP directives, and recycling initiatives 
 

TOTAL $ 120,000 

 

 

Finance Committee Recommendation: 5-0-0 in favor 

Board of Selectmen Recommendation: 5-0-0 in favor 

 

Comment: This is a customary article included in each Annual Town Meeting warrant to address any legal 

overdrafts (Snow Removal) and supplemental adjustments to current year appropriations.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



16 

ARTICLE 5:  FY 2018 OMNIBUS BUDGET APPROPRIATION  

To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate and transfer from available funds the sum of 

Eighteen Million, Four Hundred Eighty thousand, Thirty-two dollars and no cents ($18,480,032.00) to defray 

the expenses and charges of the Town of Truro in Fiscal Year 2018 (the period from July 1, 2017 through June 

30, 2018), including the costs of public education, debt service and interest payments, and to meet said 

appropriation by the following means:  

 

Source Amount 

Raise through taxation 17,712,637 

Transfer from Beach Receipts Reserved for Appropriation 338,850 

Transfer from Pamet Harbor Receipts Reserved for Appropriation 69,690 

Transfer from Recreation Receipts Reserved for Appropriation 20,850 

Transfer from Conservation Commission Receipts Reserved for Appropriation 5,000 

Transfer from Educational/Governmental Programing Access Fund  100,880 

Transfer from Municipal Waterways Improvements Fund 20,000 

Appropriate within the Septic Betterment Program Fund 10,400 

Appropriate within the Community Preservation Act Fund 201,725 

TOTAL 18,480,032 

Or take any other action relative thereto. Requested by the Board of Selectmen. 

 

Finance Committee Recommendation: 5-0-0 in favor  

Board of Selectmen Recommendation: 5-0-0 in favor 

 

Comment: The proposed Fiscal Year 2018 Operating Budget can be found after the text of the Annual Town 

Meeting Warrant as Appendix B.  The Budget Format contains the expenditure figures for the Fiscal Year 

2016, appropriation figures for Fiscal Year 2017 (as amended), and requests for Fiscal Year 2018 from Town 

Departments, as well as the Finance Committee’s recommendations and the Board of Selectman's 

recommendations. Please refer to the Selectmen’s Letter to the voters on Page 3 and the Finance Committee’s 

letter to the voters on Page 5.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



17 

ARTICLE 6:  GENERAL OVERRIDE  

To see if the Town will vote to raise through taxation and appropriate the sum of Four Hundred Sixty-
five Thousand, Six Hundred Seventeen dollars and no cents ($465,617.00) for the purposes stated in the table 
below, provided that no sums shall be appropriated or expended hereunder unless and until the Town shall have 
voted to exclude the amounts needed pursuant to this vote from the limitations imposed by Chapter 59, Section 
21C of the General Laws (Proposition 2 ½), or to take any other action relative thereto. Requested by the 

Board of Selectmen. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Finance Committee Recommendation: 5-0-0 in favor 

Board of Selectmen Recommendation: 5-0-0 in favor 

 

Comment: Over the past several years the Town has depended on one time sources of revenue or extra free 

cash to balance revenues and expenditures.  For Fiscal Year 2018, there are no one time sources of revenue; 

therefore, to continue to provide the same level of services, the Town Manager, Town Accountant and Board of 

Selectmen are recommending a general override of $465,617.  The items in the chart above are not in the 

Omnibus Budget and will only be added if the Town approves the override at Town Meeting and at the Town 

Election. 

  

In order for the General Override to be funded, the request must be approved by a majority of voters at 

Town Meeting and at the Annual Town Election on May 9, 2017. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Function Amount 

General Government  21,825 
      19 hour/week Web/Communications position   

Education 200,000 

     Pre-School, K-6, Transportation, Tuition & CC Tech Budgets  

Public Works  100,000 

     Dump Truck/Plow/Sander  

Health and Human Services 68,100 

     Community Navigator Regional Program   $25,000  

     Human Service Agency Grants  $43,100  

Culture and Recreation 75,692 

    Recreation: Youth Sports (not in by Revolving Fund) $11,692  

    Beach Operations: Life Guards/Head of the Meadow $64,000   

TOTAL 465,617 



18 

ARTICLE 7:  TRANSFER OF FUNDS FROM FREE CASH   

  

Section One: To Reduce or Stabilize the FY 2018 Tax Rate        
To see if the Town will vote to transfer One Million dollars ($1,000,000.00) from Free Cash to reduce 

or stabilize the 2018 Tax Rate, or to take any other action relative thereto.  Requested by the Board of 

Selectmen. 

 

Finance Committee Recommendation: 5-0-0 in favor  

Board of Selectmen Recommendation: 5-0-0 in favor 

 

Comment: Customary article.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



19 

Section Two: To the OPEB Trust Fund    
To see if the town will vote to transfer the sum of Four Hundred Thousand dollars ($400,000.00) from 

free cash to the Other Post-Employment Benefits  (OPEB) Trust Fund, or take any other action relative thereto.  

Requested by the Board of Selectmen. 

 

Finance Committee Recommendation: 5-0-0 in favor  

Board of Selectmen Recommendation: 5-0-0 in favor 

 

Comment: This is a customary article that began at the 2014 ATM to transfer funds into the Other Post-

Employment Benefits (OPEB) Trust Fund to cover future liability in accordance with government accounting 

standards.  This year's proposal is to transfer four hundred thousand dollars ($400,000). 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



20 

Section Three: To the Affordable Housing Trust Fund    
To see if the town will vote to transfer the sum of Three Thousand dollars ($3,000.00) from free cash to 

the Affordable Housing Trust Fund, or take any other action relative thereto.  Requested by the Board of 

Selectmen. 

 

Finance Committee Recommendation: 5-0-0 in favor 

Board of Selectmen Recommendation: 4-0-1 in favor 

 

Comment: This is a customary article to appropriate funds in the event that excess rental monies from 

affordable housing properties is acquired. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



21 

Section Four: To the Capital Expenditure Stabilization Fund    
To see if the town will vote to transfer the sum of One Hundred Thousand dollars ($100,000.00) from 

free cash to the Capital Expenditure Stabilization Fund, or take any other action relative thereto.  Requested by 

the Board of Selectmen. 

 

Finance Committee Recommendation: 5-0-0 in favor 

Board of Selectmen Recommendation: 5-0-0 in favor 

 

Comment: This is a customary article beginning at the 2016 ATM to transfer funds into the Capital 

Expenditure Stabilization Fund to cover significant capital purchases that will occur several years in the 

future.   Rather than waiting and appropriating or borrowing the entire sum in one year, this fund will allow us 

to reserve, with town meeting approval, incremental sums of money over a period of time.  When the project or 

purchase is ready to be funded, a town meeting vote will be required to appropriate the funds. This year's 

proposal is to transfer one hundred thousand dollars ($100,000). 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



22 

ARTICLE 8:  REAPPROPRIATE EAST HARBOR PIPE REPAIR CAPITAL EXCLUSION FUNDS 

To see if the Town will vote to appropriate the sum of One Hundred Twenty Thousand dollars and no 

cents ($120,000.00) originally appropriated to make repairs to the East Harbor outfall pipe by favorable vote 

on Article 10 of the April 26, 2016 Annual Town Meeting warrant and excluded from the levy limit by 

favorable vote on Question 1 of the May 10, 2016 Annual Town Election Ballot, for the purpose of making 

repairs to the culvert under Old County Road, south of Prince Valley Road, or take any other action relative 

thereto.  Requested by the Town Manager. 

 

 

Finance Committee Recommendation: 4-0-1 in favor 

Board of Selectmen Recommendation: 5-0-0 in favor 

Comment: Since last year’s Town Meeting, it has been determined that the scope of work for the East Harbor 

culvert repair project is much larger than originally anticipated and that the project cost will exceed the 

original appropriation for the project. The $120,000.00 allocated at last year’s Town Meeting for the East 

Harbor culvert repair project can adequately fund the repair to the culvert located on the southern end of Old 

County Rd which is currently failing and compromising road conditions. Removal and replacement of the 

culvert will restore the roadway, eliminate the impacts on the adjacent property, and restore appropriate tidal 

flow.             

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



23 

ARTICLE 9:  AUTHORIZATION TO EXPEND FUNDS IN ANTICIPATION OF REIMBURSEMENT 

FOR STATE HIGHWAY ASSISTANCE AID 

To see if the Town will vote to appropriate all sums provided to the Town pursuant to the Chapter 90 

Highway Assistance Program of the Massachusetts Department of Transportation for purposes consistent with 

said program, or to take any other action relative thereto.  Requested by the Town Manager. 

 

Finance Committee Recommendation: 5-0-0 in favor  

Board of Selectmen Recommendation: 5-0-0 in favor 

 

Comment:  Customary article. The amount of Chapter 90 funds to be awarded to municipalities by the State is 

unknown at this time.  The FY 2017 amount was $170,416. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



24 

ARTICLE 10: REPAIR AND REPLACE FAILING CULVERT FROM CAPE COD BAY TO ROUTE 6 

Two-thirds vote 
To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate, transfer from available funds, or borrow the sum 

of Three Million Seven Hundred Thousand dollars and no cents ($3,700,000.00) more or less,  to pay costs 

associated with the repair and replacement of the culvert which connects Cape Cod Bay with East Harbor 

(‘Pilgrim Lake’) in North Truro, including design, permitting and construction and all other costs incidental 

and related thereto; provided that no sums shall be borrowed or expended hereunder unless and until the Town 

shall have voted to exclude the amounts needed to repay any bonds or notes issued pursuant to this vote from 

the limitations imposed by Chapter 59, Section 21C of the General Laws (Proposition 2½), or to take any other 

action relative thereto. Requested by the Board of Selectmen. 

 

Finance Committee Recommendation: 5-0-0 in favor 

Board of Selectmen Recommendation: 5-0-0 in favor 

 

Comment:  This article would fund the replacement of the East Harbor culvert pipe between Route 6 and 

Shore Road and the replacement of the two seaward sections of pipe and debris gate.  Currently the seaward 

section is slumping and the debris gate is missing therefore creating a potential safety hazard.   Several 

sinkholes and depressions were found along the pipe between Route 6 and Cape Cod Bay.  The project has 

environmental benefits such as increasing tidal flushing to improve water quality, wetland restoration, as well 

as minimizing potential threats to road utilities and infrastructure. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



25 

ARTICLE 11: NON-UNION PERSONNEL CLASSIFICATION AND COMPENSATION SCHEDULE, 

COST OF LIVING ALLOWANCE FOR FISCAL YEAR 2018 

To see if the Town will vote to amend the Personnel Bylaw, Section 12.3, Classification and 

Compensation Schedule (Non-Union Personnel) by deleting the applicable personnel classification and 

compensation schedule, and inserting in its place the following schedule to be effective July 1, 2017, (said 

schedule appearing in Appendix A).  Said amendments having been incorporated in the FY 2018 Omnibus 

Operating Budget in the COLA Undistributed-Reserved for Transfer Account, Budget Line Item #01015457, or 

take any other action relative thereto.  Requested by the Town Manager. 

 

Finance Committee Recommendation: 5-0-0 in favor  

Board of Selectmen Recommendation: 5-0-0 in favor 

 

Comment: Customary article.  The Town Manager has recommended a 1.5% non-union personnel cost of 

living allowance for FY 2018, which was incorporated in the FY 2018 Omnibus Operating Budget.    This 

article does not increase the operating budget as presented in Article 5.  This is included solely to seek your 

approval of the non-union Classification and Compensation Plan. See Attachment A beginning on page 54.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



26 

ARTICLE 12: RE-CLASSIFICATION OF SEASONAL BEACH/RECREATION POSITIONS 

To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate or transfer from available funds the sum of Two 

Thousand Two Hundred Fifteen dollars and no cents ($2,215.00) and to amend the Classification & 

Compensation Schedule by adding new language and deleting language as follows (new language shown bold 

underline, deleted language shown in strike-out), or to take any action relative thereto.  Requested by the 

Town Manager. 

 

 

FROM FY17 CLASSIFICATION & COMPENSATION SCHEDULE 
NON-UNION & NON-CONTRACT 

 Grade   TOTAL TOTAL TOTAL TOTAL TOTAL TOTAL 

   STEP 1 STEP 2 STEP 3 STEP 4 STEP 5 STEP 6 

4 Rec. Assistant Dir/ Program 
Coordinator  

Hrly $14.07  $15.06  $16.04  $17.16  $18.36  $19.63  

         

5 Beach Assistant Supervisor Hrly $15.46  $16.49  $17.48  $18.49  $19.49  $20.56  

 Beach Lifeguard  Hrly $15.46  $16.49  $17.48  $18.49  $19.49  $20.56  

         

6 Beach Head Lifeguard Hrly $16.56  $17.58  $18.63  $19.66  $20.72  $21.84  

 Assistant Program Supervisor Hrly $16.56  $17.58  $18.63  $19.66  $20.72  $21.84  

         

8 Program Supervisor Hrly $19.00  $19.63  $20.27  $20.89  $21.53  $22.18  

 

Finance Committee Recommendation: 4-0-1 in favor  

Board of Selectmen Recommendation: 5-0-0 in favor 

 

Comment: The current staff structure of the Recreation & Beach Department has evolved over the years to 
meet the programming needs of the Department, but position titles have remained the same. The changes will 
help clarify roles and the appropriate chain of command, compensate employees with more responsibility 
appropriately, and streamline the hiring process for future programs. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



27 

ARTICLE 13: TRANSFER OF FUNDS FROM STABILIZATION FUND TO EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 

ACCOUNT          Two-thirds vote 

To see if the Town will vote to transfer the sum of Fifty Thousand dollars ($50,000.00) from the 
Stabilization Fund, if required, to an account designated to pay the unused sick and vacation time benefits for 
employees that retire, or to take any other action relative thereto.  Requested by the Town Manager and Town 

Accountant. 

 

Finance Committee Recommendation: 5-0-0 in favor 

Board of Selectmen Recommendation: 5-0-0 in favor 

 

Comment:  Several Town employees with long years of service are eligible for retirement.  This transfer would 
help mitigate the impact of pay outs those employees will receive for unused sick and vacation time should they 
retire.  Our recommendation is to continue to reserve funds annually for this purpose as more employees reach 
retirement.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



28 

ARTICLE 14: COA REVOLVING FUND 

 

Section One: Reauthorization of the Revolving Fund for COA  

To see if the town will vote to reauthorize the Council on Aging revolving fund originally established 

by Article 13 of the Annual Town Meeting held April 29, 2009 under the authority of MGL Chapter 44 Section 

53E1/2.  Said revolving fund will be used to aid in the development of self-funded, self-sustaining programs, 

activities and events.  Receipts received from activities, events and programs shall be deposited into the fund 

and shall be available for expenditure by the Director of the Council on Aging, with the approval of the Town 

Manager, for purposes connected to the development and promotion of self-supporting activities.  The total 

authorized expenditures from the fund shall not exceed Thirty Thousand dollars in any one fiscal year.   As per 

MGL Ch.44 sec 53E1/2, expenditures from said fund shall not exceed the balance in the fund nor the total 

authorized expenditures established by annual town meeting.    The fund will not be used to pay salary, wages 

or benefits of any full time employee.  The fund shall be subject to annual authorization by annual town 

meeting, or take any other action relative thereto. Requested by the Town Accountant. 

 

Finance Committee Recommendation: 5-0-0 in favor  

Board of Selectmen Recommendation: 5-0-0 in favor 
 

Comment: Customary article.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



29 

Section Two:  Revolving Fund Bylaw 
  To see if the Town will vote to amend Chapter 1 of the General Bylaws by adding a new Section 1.1.8 

as follows, (new text is shown as bold underline), or to take any action relative thereto.  Requested by the 

Town Accountant. 

 

1.1.8. Revolving Funds. 

There is hereby established in the Town of Truro pursuant to G. L. c. 44, §53E½ the following Revolving 

Fund: 

 

Revolving Fund Authorized to Spend Fund Revenue Source Use of Fund 

Council on Aging Director of Council on Aging Program Fees Development and 

Promotion of Programs 

 

Expenditures from the revolving fund set forth herein shall be subject to the limitation established 

annually by Town Meeting or any increase therein as may be authorized in accordance with G.L. c.44, 

§53E½. 

 

Finance Committee Recommendation:   

Board of Selectmen Recommendation: 5-0-0 in favor 

  
Comment: Revolving funds must now be established by bylaw, and the expenditure limits must be established 

annually and prior to July 1.  The Municipal Modernization Act eliminates the per board and total limitations 

on the size of such funds.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



30 

ARTICLE 15: AMENDMENT TO PERSONNEL BYLAW ARTICLE 6, SECTION 6.1 

          To see if the Town will vote to amend Article 6, Section 6.1 of the Personnel Bylaw to change the 

manner in which vacation is accrued to facilitate electronic record keeping by adding new language and 

deleting language as follows (new language shown bold underline, deleted language shown in strike-out), or 

to take any other action relative thereto. Requested by the Town Manager. 

Section 6.1  In accordance with the following rules and regulations, all regular full-time employees of all 

departments of the Town are entitled to vacation on a calendar year basis as set forth below and which may 

not be taken during the first six months of employment. Vacation time will be awarded at the end of the 

month for each full month of employment during the months of January through October. 

 

Time in Service (years) Days of Vacation Maximum Accrual 

 Per Month – January  

 through October  

 Per 26 Days Worked Not to Exceed (days) 

0-1 1.0 20 

1-2 1.1 20 

2-3 1.2 20 

3-4 1.3 20 

4-5 1.4 20 

5-6 1.5 25 

6-7 1.6 25 

7-8 1.7 25 

8-9 1.8 25 

9-10 1.9 25 

10-11 2.0 30 

11-12 2.1 30 

12-13 2.2 30 

13-14 2.3 30 

14-15 2.4 30 

15-on 2.5 30 
 

Vacation time granted and taken by an employee shall be in units of not less than one (1) full-day at the 

discretion of the department head. In addition, vacation days used or granted to compensate for sick leave 

following exhaustion of sick leave credits, may also be taken in units of not less than half day (.5) increments. 

 

Finance Committee Recommendation: 5-0-0 in favor 

Board of Selectmen Recommendation: 5-0-0 in favor 
 

Comment: The current method of vacation accrual is dependent upon each employee’s hire date and the 

counting of 26 days from that date.  After looking at multiple payroll services and software, it was determined 

that the Town’s current method does not allow for automation to track an employee’s accrual and use of paid 

time off without procuring custom software.  This change will allow the Town to fully automate the payroll 

process, without purchasing custom software and without impacting current employee benefits. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



31 

ARTICLE 16: COMMUNITY PRESERVATION ACT 

 

Section One: Administrative Percentage 

To see if the Town will vote to appropriate the sum of Twenty Six Thousand, Seven Hundred Eighty-

four dollars ($26,784.00) from Projected Fiscal Year 2018 Community Preservation Act Surcharge Revenues 

for the administrative expenses of the Community Preservation Committee, or take any other action relative 

thereto.  Requested by the Community Preservation Committee. 

 

Finance Committee Recommendation: 5-0-0 in favor  

Board of Selectmen Recommendation: 5-0-0 in favor 

Community Preservation Committee Recommendation: 8-0-1 in favor 

 

Comment: The Community Preservation Act and the Truro Community Preservation By-Law permit 5% of the 

Community Preservation Act revenue to be used to cover expenses for a consultant to manage CPC operations, 

as well as for legal expenses, membership in the Community Preservation Coalition, printing, advertising and 

supplies.  Any money remaining unspent at the end of Fiscal Year 2018 will revert to the Community 

Preservation Act Undesignated Fund Balance. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



32 

Section Two:  Truro Housing Authority Consultant (Community Housing)  

To see if the Town will vote to appropriate the sum of Thirty Thousand dollars ($30,000.00) including 

Fourteen Thousand Five Hundred Seventy-seven dollars ($14,577.00) from the Community Preservation Act 

Fund Balance Reserved for Community Housing and Fifteen Thousand Four Hundred Twenty-three dollars 

($15,423.00) from projected Fiscal Year 2018 Community Preservation Act Surcharge Revenue to permit the 

Truro Housing Authority to contract with a technical consultant on an occasional basis as need for specific 

Affordable Housing projects, or take any other action relative thereto. Requested by Truro Housing Authority. 

 

Finance Committee Recommendation: 5-0-0 in favor  

Board of Selectmen Recommendation: 5-0-0 in favor 

Community Preservation Committee Recommendation: 8-0-1 in favor 

 

Comment: The members of the Truro Housing Authority are volunteers, working with very detailed and 

complicated State and Federal regulations.  In order to achieve the best use of our resources, the Truro 

Housing Authority needs access to professional expertise in developing and implementing housing projects.  

The consultant will not be a full or part-time employee of the Town, but rather will work on particular projects 

on an “as needed” basis.   These funds will be used for a consultant to continue to work on property 

acquisition, construction and preservation. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



33 

Section Three: 143 Route 6 Habitat for Humanity of Cape Cod (Community Housing) 

To see if the Town will vote to appropriate the sum of Two Hundred Ten Thousand dollars 

($210,000.00) from projected Fiscal Year 2018 Community Preservation Act surcharge revenue for the 

construction of three Habitat for Humanity Homes on land located at 143 Route 6 (Truro Assessor’s Map 51, 

Parcel 31), subject to a grant agreement and a deed restriction satisfactory to the Community Preservation 

Committee, or take any other action relative thereto. Requested by Habitat for Humanity of Cape Cod. 

 

Finance Committee Recommendation: 4-1-0 in favor  

Board of Selectmen Recommendation: 5-0-0 in favor 

Community Preservation Committee Recommendation: 8-0-1 in favor 

 

Comment:  Truro is in desperate need of affordable housing.  Habitat creates high quality homes with an extra 

layer of affordability.  Not only are these homes priced within range of young families, but also Habitat works 

with buyers to ensure that they can obtain favorable financing.  If the buyer is unable to obtain affordable 

financing, Habitat offers an alternative 0-interest mortgage.  In addition, qualified buyers are expected to 

provide sweat equity to complete their home.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



34 

Section Four:  Cape Cod Village Home for Adults with Autism (Community Housing)  

To see if the Town will vote to appropriate the sum of Fifty Thousand dollars ($50,000.00) including 

Twenty-six Thousand Two Hundred Sixty-one dollars ($26,261.00) from projected Fiscal Year 2018 

Community Preservation Act surcharge revenue and Twenty-three Thousand Seven Hundred Thirty-nine 

dollars ($23,739.00) from Community Preservation Act Undesignated Fund Balance to contribute to the costs 

of a permanent home for 15 adults with autism who require 24 hour per day assistance to be built at Childs 

Homestead Road, Orleans, Massachusetts, subject to a grant agreement and a deed restriction satisfactory to 

the Community Preservation Committee, or take any other action relative thereto. Requested by Cape Cod 

Village, Inc. 

 

Finance Committee Recommendation: 5-0-0 in favor  

Board of Selectmen Recommendation: 5-0-0 in favor 

Community Preservation Committee Recommendation: 7-1-1 in favor 

 

Comment:  The Cape Cod Village building plans for Childs Homestead Rd. in Orleans will benefit Truro and 

the entire Lower Cape by providing an opportunity for housing of these very special needs adults.  Parents and 

families will have an affordable and suitable option that is nearby and promises to keep the residents in touch 

with the community, and the community involved with the residents.   
  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



35 

Section Five:  Phase 2 Preservation & Restoration of Highland House Museum (Historic Preservation)  

To see if the Town will vote to appropriate the sum of Two Hundred Forty-nine Thousand dollars 

($249,000.00)  including Fifty-six Thousand Two Hundred Sixty-one dollars ($56,261) from projected Fiscal 

Year 2018 Community Preservation Act surcharge revenue and One Hundred Ninety-two Thousand Seven 

Hundred Thirty-nine dollars ($192,739) from Community Preservation Act Undesignated Fund Balance for the 

second phase of the preservation and restoration of The Highland House Museum, subject to a grant agreement 

satisfactory to the Community Preservation Committee, or take any other action relative thereto.  Requested by 

the Truro Historical Society. 
 

Finance Committee Recommendation: 4-1-0 in favor  

Board of Selectmen Recommendation: 5-0-0 in favor 

Community Preservation Committee Recommendation: 7-0-2 in favor 

 

Comment:  The Highland House Museum is the repository for the history and artifacts of Truro and is one of 

the very few historic public buildings in our town.  As part of the restoration and repurposing of this building 

in Phase 1, the Truro Historical Society (THS) was required to, and did, obtain a twenty-year lease with the 

Cape Cod National Seashore.  In Phase 2, the THS will secure the building: framing walls and floors, 

repairing roofing and foundations systems, and updating electrical systems with appropriate lighting for 

display and work areas.  This is a multi-year project of the CPC. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



36 

Section Six:  Edgewood Farm Historic Preservation Project Phase 2 (Historic Preservation) 

To see if the Town will vote to appropriate the sum of Seventy-five Thousand dollars ($75,000.00) 

including Ten Thousand Two Hundred Thirty-five dollars ($10,235) from projected Fiscal Year 2018 

Community Preservation Act surcharge revenue and Sixty-four Thousand Seven Hundred Sixty-five dollars 

($64,765) from Community Preservation Act Undesignated Fund Balance for the restoration and preservation 

of three historic buildings at Edgewood Farm, subject to a grant agreement and a deed restriction satisfactory 

to the Community Preservation Committee, or take any other action relative thereto. Requested by Truro 

Center for the Arts at Castle Hill.  

 

Finance Committee Recommendation: 3-0-2 in favor  

Board of Selectmen Recommendation: 3-1-1 in favor 

Community Preservation Committee Recommendation: 8-0-1 in favor 

 

Comment:  Edgewood Farm is home to the historic Manuel Corey House, Barn and Cottage, all of which were 

built in the 1800s by Manual Corey, a Truro native and longtime Town Clerk.  After Mr. Corey’s demise, 

Eleanor Meldahl and her family lived at the farm.  Ms. Meldahl, one of the founders of the Center for the Arts 

at Castle Hill, facilitated the acquisition of Edgewood Farm by Castle Hill, in order to preserve the property 

and to foster the further development of Truro as a flourishing creative community.  The Center has raised a 

significant amount of money towards the restoration of the farm’s buildings.  A deed restriction, in a form 

acceptable to the CPC, will ensure that the Farm remains a historic property in perpetuity. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



37 

Section Seven:   Puma Park Enhancement (Recreation)  
To see if the Town will vote to appropriate the sum of One Hundred Fifty-three Thousand dollars 

($153,000.00) including Fifty Thousand dollars ($50,000) from Community Preservation Act Undesignated 

Fund Balance and One Hundred three thousand dollars ($103,000) from the unexpended balance of the Friends 

of Truro Recreation/Recreation Commission project to design and renovate Snow’s Field (as approved by 

Article 9 section 1, Annual Town Meeting April 29, 2014) for the acquisition and installation of ADA 

compliant safe and accessible surface as part of the project to enhance Puma Park, or take any other action 

relative thereto.  Requested by the Truro Commission on Disabilities. 

 

Finance Committee Recommendation: 5-0-0 in favor  

Board of Selectmen Recommendation: 5-0-0 in favor 

Community Preservation Committee Recommendation: 8-0-1 in favor 

 

Comment:  The Truro Commission on Disabilities aims to improve features at Puma Park with offerings for all 

ages, those who are physically challenged as well as the able bodied.  The most important part of this project 

is the resurfacing of the area.  The preparation of the area will be accomplished by volunteer labor, but the 

installation must be done by professionals.    

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



38 

Section Eight: 25 and 25A Pond Road Land Acquisition (Open Space)  

To see if the Town will vote to appropriate the sum of Two Hundred Thousand dollars ($200,000.00) 

from Community Preservation Act Undesignated Fund Balance to provide a grant to the Truro Conservation 

Trust for the acquisition and preservation of 25 and 25A Pond Road, (Truro Assessor’s Map 36, Parcels 39 and 

35, respectively) to preserve the property as open space in perpetuity, including access for passive recreational 

use, subject to a grant agreement and a deed restriction satisfactory to the Community Preservation Committee, 

or take any other action relative thereto.  Requested by the Truro Conservation Trust. 

 

Finance Committee Recommendation: 4-0-1 in favor  

Board of Selectmen Recommendation: 3-2-0 in favor 

Community Preservation Committee Recommendation: 8-0-1 in favor 

 

Comment:  The Conservation Trust has supported the purchase of the 10-acre Rogers property on Pond Road, 

which is the only remaining twinefield in Truro, in order to protect this valuable resource in perpetuity.  In 

accepting this CPC grant, the Conservation Trust has agreed to ensure that the property is accessible to the 

public by way of walking trails, benches and distribution of public information.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



39 

Section Nine: Great Hollow Extension - Land Acquisition (Open Space) 

            To see if the Town will vote to appropriate the sum of up to Fifty Thousand dollars ($50,000.00) from 

Community Preservation Act Undesignated Fund Balance to provide a grant to the Truro Conservation Trust 

for the purchase of a 1.09-acre lot at 2 Kill Devil Road, (Truro Assessor’s Map 42, Parcel 303).  This 

appropriation would provide a match grant under which every $3 raised by the proponents would be matched 

by $1 of CPA funds to a maximum of $50,000; the match funds would be conditioned upon a Purchase and 

Sale agreement, fully executed by all appropriate parties, a scheduled closing date for the acquisition, upon 

agreement by the Town to accept the parcel as a gift and upon execution of a deed restriction in a form 

acceptable to the CPC, or take any other action relative thereto.  Requested by a group of twelve taxpayers led 

by Mary Ellen Kimball and Ann M. Courtney (See Truro CPA Plan August 2015, Section 2(A)). 

 

Finance Committee Recommendation: 1-3-1 in favor  

Board of Selectmen Recommendation: 0-4-1 in favor 

Community Preservation Committee Recommendation: 8-0-1 in favor 

 

Comment:  The purchase of this lot would add 267 feet to the existing approximately 130-foot public beach.  It 

would help preserve the rural and coastal character of the Town, protect the fragile environment and preserve 

scenic views. Great Hollow is a popular sunset viewing spot.  The organizers of the project are seeking other 

sources of funding from grants, corporate matching funds and private donations.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



40 

ARTICLE 17: AMEND ZONING BYLAWS, §40, SPECIAL REGULATIONS, §40.2 AFFORDABLE 

ACCESSORY DWELLING UNIT BY DELETING IN ITS ENTIRETY AND 

REPLACING IT WITH NEW LANGUAGE       Two-thirds vote 
To see if the town will vote to amend Section 40, Special Regulations, §40.2 Affordable Accessory 

Dwelling Unit, by deleting in its entirety and replacing with new language (shown in bold underline), as 

follows, or to take any other action relative thereto. Requested by Petitioned Article.    

 

§40.2 Accessory Dwelling Unit 

 

A. The purposes of this bylaw are to: 

1. Increase the number of moderately priced, year-round rental dwelling units in Truro; 

2. Encourage a more economical and energy-efficient use of the Town's housing supply; and 

3. Provide homeowners with a means of obtaining rental income to defray housing costs. 

 

B. Requirements 

1. One Accessory Dwelling Unit (ADU) per buildable lot may be allowed in any zoning district by 

obtaining an ADU Permit from the Planning Board. 

2. An ADU may be established within or attached to a principal dwelling, principal structure, or 

accessory structure, or constructed as a detached unit, and must be located on the same lot as the 

primary dwelling. 

3. The ADU must be in conformity with the State Building Code, Title V of the State Sanitary 

Code and all applicable town health, building, zoning and other local laws and regulations. 

4. An ADU within or attached to a principal dwelling, principal structure or accessory 

structure that is a pre-existing nonconforming use or structure shall not increase any 

existing nonconformity or create a new nonconformity without first obtaining a Permit or 

Variance, respectively, from the Zoning Board of Appeals. 

 

C. ADU Permit   Criteria 

1. The ADU shall be a complete, separate housekeeping unit containing both kitchen and 

sanitary facilities. 

2. The ADU shall not contain more than one thousand (1,000) square feet nor less than four 

hundred (400) square feet of Gross Floor Area as that term is defined in Section II of this Zoning 

By-law. Once an ADU has been added to a dwelling, structure or lot, the ADU shall not be 

enlarged beyond the square footage specified in the permit granted pursuant to this section 

without first obtaining a subsequent permit from the Planning Board, and in no case shall an 

ADU be permitted to exceed the square footage allowed by this section. 

3. At least two (2) off street parking spaces in addition to parking otherwise required for the 

property is required for an ADU. 

4. An ADU shall be clearly subordinate in use, size and design to the principal dwelling or 

structure, considering the following: building architectural details, roof design, building spacing 

and orientation, building screening, door and window size and location, and building materials. 

When accessory to a principal dwelling, the intent is to retain the appearance of a single-family 

dwelling and the privacy of abutters.  

5. The principal dwelling and ADU and lot on which they are located shall remain in common 

ownership, and shall not be severed in ownership, including that the lot, buildings or units 

thereon shall not be placed in a condominium form of ownership. 

6. Either the ADU or the principal dwelling on a lot with an ADU must be leased for a term of 

at least twelve (12) months.  Rental of said unit for a period of less than twelve (12) months 

(including, but not limited to, seasonal rental and rental through vacation rental services and 

websites) is prohibited. Proof of year-round rental shall be provided annually to the Building 

Commissioner by the owner in the form of a lease and a signed affidavit from both the 

owner and renter stating the unit is being rented accordingly and is used as a primary 



41 

residence. 

7. ADUs permitted under this section shall be inspected annually or as frequently as deemed 

necessary by the Health and Building Departments for compliance with public safety and 

public health codes. The owner of the property shall be responsible for scheduling such 

inspection and shall pay any applicable inspection fees. 

 

D.  Procedure 

1. Each application for a Permit shall be filed by the Applicant with the Town Clerk consisting of: 
a. An original and 14 copies of the Application for ADU Permit; 

b. 15 copies of the required plans and other required information under §40.2; 

c. Applicable filing fee; 

d. List of abutters obtained from the Truro Assessing Department 

e. Site Plan or Site and Sewage Plan prepared by a registered professional engineer or 

registered sanitarian showing all property lines, existing and proposed structures on the 

parcel, and setbacks from roads and property lines for each structure. Building 

dimensions (height, stories, square footage) shall be shown on the plan. 

f. Documentation of approval of the septic/wastewater treatment system from the Board of 

Health. 

g. Building plans at a scale of no less than 1/8"= I '-0", including floor plans and front, 

side and rear elevations of the ADU and principal dwelling or structure. 

h. Affidavit declaring that the ADU and/or principal dwelling to which it is accessory will 

be rented on a twelve month basis. 

i.       Documentation of approval, if applicable, from the Conservation C ommi s s i o n . 

j. Documentation of Special Permit or Variance, if applicable, from the Zoning Board of  

Appeals. 

 

E.   Public Hearing 

1. Upon receipt of the application by the Truro Town Clerk, the Planning Board shall hold a 

duly noticed public hearing within 65 days of said filing. The Board shall: 

a. Give notice by advertisement in a newspaper of general circulation in the Town of 

Truro, no less than ten ( 10) days before the day of such hearing; and, 

b. Give notice by posting such notice in a conspicuous place in the Town Hall for a period 

of not less than ten (10) days before the day of such hearing; and. 

c. Give notice by mailing a copy of such advertisement to abutters to the subject property, 

abutters to abutters within 300 feet of the subject property, and owners of properties across 

the street from the subject property. 

 

F. Findings of the Planning Board 

1. The Planning Board shall grant an ADU Permit if it finds that the proposal complies with the 

provisions of this bylaw, §40.2, as amended. The concurring vote of four members of the 

Planning Board shall approve an ADU permit as submitted or with reasonable conditions. 

The Board shall deny the permit only if: 

a. The application is incomplete, and the applicant fails to complete the application within 

21 days after written notice of the application's deficiencies, or 

b. The imposition of reasonable conditions will not ensure that the ADU will conform to the 

standards and criteria described herein, or 

c. The ADU does not comply with the requirements of the Zoning By-law. 

2. The permit decision is not appealable. 

 

G. Penalty 

Failure of the applicant to comply with any provision of this section or the Permit is punishable by a 

fine established in Section 60.1 of the Truro Zoning By-laws and shall entitle the Planning Board, 



42 

after notice and public hearing, to revoke, modify or suspend the Permit. The Town shall be entitled 

to recover its litigation fees, including counsel fees, incurred in enforcement of this Bylaw. 

 

H. Requirements for Tax Exemption 

Qualifying ADUs permitted under this section are eligible to seek tax abatement pursuant to 

Chapter I, Section 10 of the Truro General Bylaws, Tax Exemption for Affordable Accessory 

Dwelling Units. 

 

Planning Board Recommendation: 1-4-0 in favor 

Board of Selectmen Recommendation: 4-0-1 in favor 

 

Comment: This is a citizen petitioned article.  This article was created to allow homeowners to build or 

convert an existing building to one (1) accessory dwelling unit on their property with the provision that it be 

rented year round as opposed to seasonally. This will benefit the community by increasing the opportunities for 

young people to afford to live in town, enable elderly residents to downsize or rent a portion of their 

home and will help create a more well-rounded community. There is a segment of the community that earns 

more than allows them to qualify for affordable housing yet don’t make enough to afford a home. This bylaw 

will allow residents to create opportunities for this segment of society to live in Truro. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



43 

ARTICLE 18: AMEND ZONING BYLAWS SECTION §10.4 BY ADDING A NEW DEFINITION, 

REMOVING AN EXISTING DEFINITION AND AMEND §30.2 USE TABLE, BY 

DELETING USES FROM THE TABLE    Two-thirds vote 
To see if the town will vote to amend the Truro Zoning Bylaw Section 10.4- Definitions, by adding a 

new definition, remove an existing definition and to amend  Section 30.2 by deleting uses from the table or 

take any other action relative thereto. Requested by Petitioned Article. 
 

§ 10.4.  Definitions 

Dwelling Unit,  Accessory. A dwelling unit either detached from or located within or attached to a 

principal single family dwelling, or an accessory structure to the principal single family dwelling 

on the same lot, such as a garage. The Accessory Dwelling Unit (ADU) shall contain at least four 

hundred (400) square feet but not more than one thousand (1,000) square feet of Gross Floor Area. 

An Accessory Dwelling Unit shall be a complete, separate housekeeping unit containing both 

kitchen and sanitary facilities in conformance with §40.2 of this bylaw. (04/17) 

 

And to further amend Section 10.4 by deleting Dwelling, Two Family, Duplex in its entirety. 

 

And further, to amend Section 30.2 - Use Table, by making the following changes (new text shown bold 

underline and deleted shown as strike out), and to direct the Town Clerk to renumber the notes 

following the Use Table and the corresponding references in the Use Table to ensure numerical 

progression and consistency.  

 

§30.2.  Use Table 

The following uses are permitted by district as indicated below, and consistent with the purposes for 

which the district was established. Uses not expressly permitted are deemed prohibited. 

 

KEY 

P Permitted 

SP May be allowed by special permit granted by the Board of Appeals, or the Planning Board, where noted 

N Not permitted 

R Residential 

BP  Beach Point Limited Business 

NT6A  Route 6A, North Truro Limited Business 

TC Truro Center Limited Business 

NTC  North Truro Center General Business 

RT 6 Route 6 General Business 

S Seashore    



44 

PRINCIPAL USES 

  R BP NT6A TC NTC RT 6 S 

AGRICULTURAL               

Agricultural (except Animal Husbandry); 

horticultural, floricultural 
P P P P P P P 

Animal husbandry, parcels of more than 

5 acres 
P P P P P P P 

Animal husbandry, parcels of 5 acres or 

less 
SP SP SP N SP SP SP 

COMMERCIAL 

Automobile service, repair, storage, or 

salesrooms 
N N N N P P N 

Commercial fishing activity (1, 11) 
P P P P P P P 

Professional office (2) 
N P P P P P N 

Restaurant 
N N N P P P N 

Retail business service (4/14) 
N N P P P P N 

Retail sales (4/14) 
N N N P P P N 

Wholesale Trade (4/14) 
N N SP SP P P N 

INDUSTRIAL 

Communication structure 
N N N N N 

SP 

(4) 
N 

Industrial or manufacturing use (5) 
N N N N SP SP N 

Marine installation 
SP SP SP N SP SP N 

Public utility 
N N N N P P P 

Research or experimental lab (6) 
SP SP SP N SP SP N 

Small engine repair 
SP SP SP N SP SP N 

Trade, repair shop, etc. (7) (4/14) 
N N P P P P N 

INSTITUTIONAL 

Educational institution 
P P P P P P P 

Hospital, nursing and/or convalescent 

home 
P P P P P P P 

Municipal use (4/13) 
P P P P P P P 

 



45 

PRINCIPAL USES 

  R BP NT6A TC NTC RT 6 S 

Private club not conducted for profit 
SP SP SP N SP SP N 

National Seashore administration 

facilities, public facilities 
N N N N N N 

P  

(11) 

Religious institution 
P P P P P P P 

Large-Scale Ground Mounted 

Photovoltaic Array (4/11) 

SP  

(12) 
N N N N P P 

RECREATIONAL 

Children's camp 
SP SP SP N SP SP N 

Park, playground, non-commercial 

recreation 
P P P N P P N 

RESIDENTIAL 

Cottage or cabin colony, motor court 
N P N N P P N 

Duplex new (8)  
N SP SP SP SP SP N 

Duplex, conversion of existing single 

family dwelling (8)   
SP SP SP SP SP SP N 

Hotel 
N N N N P P N 

Motel 
N P N N P P N 

Single family dwelling (10) 
P P P P P P 

P 

(11) 

ACCESSORY USES 

Dwelling Unit, Accessory (10)  

(04/07) 
P P P P P P P 

Bed and breakfast, home; as defined; 

Boarding House, Home, as defined 
P P P N P P 

P 

(11) 

Habitable Studio 
P P P N N P P 

Home occupation, as defined 
P P P P P P 

P 

(11) 

Other home occupation (5) 
SP SP SP N SP SP N 

Working Studio 
P P P N N P P 

 (04/06)     
  



46 

1. To include traditional fishing activities, opening of shellfish, storage and use of fishing 

equipment. 

2. No more than four (4) offices per lot; 20% lot coverage permitted, exclusive of parking; 

storage of equipment or materials where they are visible from neighboring properties or 

public or private ways is prohibited; the Board of Appeals shall find that the proposed 

use does not produce any injurious or offensive dirt, odor, fumes, gas, noise, or danger 

from explosion or fire. 
3. Reserved (4/14) 
4. Includes buildings and appurtenances; Special Permit Granting Authority is the Planning 

Board. 
5. The Board of Appeals shall find that a proposed use is not injurious or offensive or tends 

to reduce values in the same district by reason of dirt, odor, fumes, gas, sewage, noise, or 
danger from explosion or fire. 

6. The Board of Appeals may approve activities which are necessary in connection with 

scientific research or scientific development or related production, and which are 

accessory to a permitted use, if the Board finds the proposed accessory use does not 

substantially derogate from the public good; the proposed accessory use need not be 

located on the same parcel as the primary use. 

7. Includes shops of carpenters, plumbers, electricians, dressmakers and similar 

tradespeople, repairs to radio-TV-computers and related electronic services, bicycle 

repairs, furniture repairs and upholstering. (4/14) 

8. Uses in this category are further subject to the special regulations set forth in §40.1, 

Duplex Houses and Apartments.  

9. Except trailers, mobile homes, Quonset huts or portable buildings. One tent for non- 

commercial use is allowed per lot, for a specified period of time and with the written 

consent of the owner and the Board of Health. The Board of Health may limit the period 

of time the tent is erected and used. 

10. Uses in this category are further subject to the special regulations set forth in §40.2, 

Accessory Dwelling Unit, and the Planning Board shall serve as the Permit granting 

authority. (04/0+1Z) 
11. Uses in this category are further subject to the special regulations set forth in §30.3, Seashore 

District. 
12. Except in the Solar Farm Overlay District, where the use is permitted. 
 
Planning Board Recommendation: 1-4-0 in favor 

Board of Selectmen Recommendation: 5-0-0 in favor 

 

Comment: This is a citizen petitioned article.  This article will change the Use Table and Definitions in the 

existing Zoning Bylaws to conform with the change provided in Article 17 should Article 17 pass. 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



47 

ARTICLE 19: AMENDMENT TO CHAPTER 1, TOWN AFFAIRS OF THE TRURO GENERAL 

BYLAWS 

To see if the town will vote to amend the Truro General Bylaws, Chapter 1, by adding a new 

section 10, Tax Exemption for Affordable Accessory Dwelling Units, (new language shown as 

bold underline), or take any other action relative thereto. Requested by Petitioned Article.  

 

Chapter 1, Section 10. Tax Exemption for Affordable Accessory Dwelling Units 

A. Applicability 

Pursuant to Chapter 306 of the Acts of 2014, Affordable Accessory Dwelling Units permitted in 

accordance with §40.2 of the Truro Zoning Bylaw occupied by income eligible households and rented 

for an amount not to exceed the fair market rents established by the United States Department of 

Housing and Urban Development shall be exempt from taxation under Chapter 59 of the General 

Laws provided they meet the following qualifying factors. 

 

B.  Exemption Calculation 

The exemption shall be equal to the tax otherwise owed on the property based on the assessed 

valued of the property, including ADUs, multiplied by the square footage of the living space of 

all dwelling units on the property that are restricted to occupancy by low or moderate income 

households, divided by the total square feet of structures on the property. For a property with a 

single dwelling unit, the exemption allowed shall not exceed 50% of the tax otherwise owed. For 

purposes of determining the assessed value of the property, if by income approach to value, the 

assessment shall assume that all housing units are rented at fair market rent as determined by 

the US Department of Housing and Urban Development.  To be eligible for exemption, the 

housing unit shall be leased to a low or moderate income household at such rents for the entire 

fiscal year for which the exemption is sought. 

 

C. Affordability Requirements 

1. Households leasing and occupying the affordable dwelling unit shall upon initial application 

and annually thereafter on the first of September in each calendar year, submit to the Town 

or its agent the documentation necessary to confirm their eligibility to occupy the dwelling 

unit. Specifically, all dwelling units must be rented  to those meeting  the following guidelines 

for a low or moderate-income family: (1) low income families having an income not exceeding 

eighty (80) percent of the Barnstable  County median  family income, and (2) moderate  

income families having an income between  eighty (80) and one hundred  twenty (120) 

percent  of the Barnstable County median  family income and, as determined by the United 

States Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) Published  Income 

Guidelines, as they may from time to time be amended. 

2.  Maximum rents shall be established in accordance with Fair Market Rental Guidelines 

published from time to time by the United States Department of Housing and Urban 

Development (HUD). Property owners are required t9 submit to the Town or its agent 

information on the rents to be charged. Each year thereafter on the first of September, they 

shall submit to the Town or its agent information on annual rents to be charged. Forms for 

this purpose shall be provided by the Town. Rents may be adjusted upward and shall be 

adjusted downward annually in accordance with adjustments to the Fair Market Rental 

Guidelines. 

 

Finance Committee Recommendation: 4-0-1 in favor 

Planning Board Recommendation: 1-4-0 in favor 

Board of Selectmen Recommendation: 5-0-0 in favor 

Comment: This is a citizen petitioned article.  This article will add a section to the Truro General Bylaws 

allowing people who create an accessory dwelling on their property to qualify for a tax exemption on that unit 

if the accessory dwelling unit is designated as an affordable accessory dwelling unit. 



48 

 

 

ARTICLE 20: AMENDMENT TO PRIVATE AND PUBLIC WAYS AND PLACES §1-9-7 GENERAL 

BYLAWS 

 To see if the Town will vote to amend Section 1-9-7 of the General Bylaws by adding new language 

and deleting language as follows (new language shown bold underline, deleted language shown in strike-

out), or take any other action relative thereto. Requested by the Board of Selectmen. 

 

1-9-7 No person shall permit any vehicle under his care or control, to stand on or across any public highway 

or street, in such a manner as to obstruct the travel over the same, for an unnecessary length of time; 

no person shall stop with a vehicle in any public street so near to another vehicle as to obstruct public 

travel; and no person shall stop with any vehicle upon any crossing in any street or highway in the 

town. Whoever violates the provisions of this Bylaw shall be subject to a penalty as described in 

Appendix A of this document.  

 

Board of Selectmen Recommendation: 5-0-0 in favor 

 

Comment: This proposed change will provide clarification for enforcement purposes on publicly owned roads. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



49 

ARTICLE 21: AMENDMENT TO MOTOR VEHICLES §4-4-1 GENERAL BYLAWS 

To see if the Town will vote to amend Section 4-4-1 of the General Bylaws by adding new language 

and deleting language as follows (new language shown bold underline, deleted language shown in strike-

out), or take any other action relative thereto.  Requested by the Board of Selectmen. 
 

4-4-1 It shall be unlawful for the owner or operator of any motor vehicle to park said motor vehicle on any 

property, public or private, without permission from the person in legal possession thereof. Any police 

officer who finds any motor vehicle violating the provisions of this Bylaw shall cause the vehicle to 

be ticketed and/or towed away to a place for safe-keeping at the expense of the vehicle's owner.  

 

Board of Selectmen Recommendation: 5-0-0 in favor 

 

Comment: This proposed change will allow for an enforcement mechanism alternative to towing when vehicles 

are parked unlawfully. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



50 

ARTICLE 22: AMENDMENT TO APPENDIX A GENERAL BYLAWS 

 To see if the Town will vote to amend Appendix A of the General Bylaws by adding new language 

and deleting language as follows (new language shown bold underline, deleted language shown in strike-

out), or take any other action relative thereto. Requested by the Board of Selectmen. 

 
Chapter & Section Subject Fine $ Enforcing Authority 

1-9-4 Driving motor vehicle on 

public beach without a permit 

$20.00 per offense Police Department, Beach 

Commission Department 

 

 

Chapter & Section Subject Fine $ Enforcing Authority 

1-9-6 1-9-7 Vehicle obstruct public street $50.00 per offense Police Department  

 

 

Chapter & Section Subject Fine $ Enforcing Authority 

1-9-7 1-9-8 Occupying public street as 

storage room for vehicles 

$100.00 per offense Police Department  

 

 
Chapter & Section Subject Fine $ Enforcing Authority 

4-3-5 Handicap Parking $100.00 - $300.00 and 

removal in accordance with 

MGL Ch. 40 sec 22D 

Police Department, Beach 

Commission Department 

 

Chapter & Section Subject Fine $ Enforcing Authority 

4-4-1 Unlawful motor vehicle 

parking 

$50.00 per offense Police Department  

 

Board of Selectmen Recommendation: 5-0-0 in favor 

 

Comment: These proposed changes include “housekeeping” items for misidentified chapters and sections in 

the original appendix, changes from Beach Commission to the Beach Department as the Enforcing Authority 

and proposes a fine for the ticketing alternative to towing as proposed in ARTICLE 21. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



51 

ARTICLE 23: DECLARING A TWO THIRDS VOTE AT TOWN MEETING 

To see if the Town will vote to amend Chapter 1 of the General Bylaws by adding a new Section 1.1.7 

as follows: 

  

1.1.7 Town Meeting – Two-Thirds Vote.  On all matters to come before Town Meeting requiring a two thirds 

vote by statute, a count need not be taken unless the vote as declared by the Moderator is immediately 

questioned by seven or more registered voters. 

  

Or take any other action relative thereto. Requested by the Board of Selectmen. 

  

Board of Selectmen Recommendation: 5-0-0 in favor 

  
Comment: Adoption of this bylaw was suggested by Town Counsel after the last Town Meeting to insure that 

the Town is compliant with Massachusetts General Law for conducting Town Meeting and to facilitate the 

process during Town Meeting. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



52 

ARTICLE 24: ACCEPT MASSACHUSETTS GENERAL LAW CHAPTER 39, SECTION 23D 

To see of the Town will vote to accept Massachusetts General Laws Chapter 39, Section 23D, in its 

present form and as subsequently amended, and to apply this statute hereafter to all adjudicatory hearings 

conducted by Town boards, committees councils and commissions, or take any other action relative thereto. 

Requested by the Planning Board. 
 

Planning Board Recommendation: 6-0-0 in favor 

Board of Selectmen Recommendation: 5-0-0 in favor 

 

Comment:  If the Town of Truro adopts this law, members of adjudicatory boards, committees and 

commissions will not be disqualified from voting on a matter solely due to the fact of that member’s absence 

from one meeting during which testimony on the matter was heard.  Before any such vote, however, the 

member must certify that he/she has examined all evidence of the missed hearing. The written certification 

shall be part of the record of the hearing.  Adjudicatory hearings are held by the Planning Board, the Board of 

Health, the Board of Selectmen, the Conservation Commission and the Zoning Board. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



53 

ARTICLE 25: CHARTER AMENDMENT TO SECTION 4-2-7     Two-thirds vote 

To see if the Town will vote to amend Section 4-2-7 of the Town Charter by adding new language and 

deleting language as follows (new language shown bold underline, deleted language shown in strike-out), or 

take any other action relative thereto. Requested by the Board of Selectmen. 

 

4-2-7 The Board of Selectmen shall have the sole authority to enter into contracts for amounts greater than 

$100,000.00 for the Town unless otherwise provided for in General Law or By-law. The Town 

Manager shall have the authority to enter into contracts for amounts up to $100,000.00 for the Town 

unless otherwise provided for in General Law or By-Law. For employment contracts that exceed 

$100,000.00 in total compensation, exclusive of fringe benefits, in any single year of the 

agreement, the Town Manager shall consult with the Board of Selectmen before executing the 

agreement. The exception, in either case, occurs when contracts are funded within the school budget, 

and those contracts shall be signed by the Superintendent of Schools or the School Committee, 

whichever is appropriate in accordance with the General Laws. 

 

Charter Review Committee: 5-0-0 in favor 

Board of Selectmen Recommendation: 4-1-0 in favor 

 

Comment: The Town Manager is authorized to sign contracts for amounts up to $100,000.00 for the Town. The 

Town Manager is also the appointing authority and personnel administrator for Town department heads and 

staff as outlined in Town Charter Chapter 5, which requires him/ her to engage in contract negotiations. 

Contract negotiations exceeding $100,000.00 require the Board of Selectmen to negotiate and provide 

authorization under the current Town Charter, however in some of the positions appointed by the Town 

Manager salaries may exceed $100,000.00. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



54 

ARTICLE 26: CHARTER AMENDMENT TO SECTION 6-2-12    Two-thirds vote 
To see if the Town will vote to amend Section 6-2-12 of the Town Charter by adding new language as 

follows (new language shown bold underline),or to take any other action relative thereto.  Requested by the 

Board of Selectmen. 

 

6-2-12 Multi-member bodies shall deal with employees who are subject to the direction and supervision of the 

Town Manager solely through the Town Manager, and neither the multi-member body nor its members 

shall give orders to any such employee. 

 

 

Charter Review Committee: 5-0-0 in favor 

Board of Selectmen Recommendation: 5-0-0 in favor 

 

Comment: It is important for members of all boards and committees to deal with employees who are under the 

supervision and control of the Town Manager solely through the Town Manager. Appropriate language exists 

in 4-5-2 for members of the Board Selectmen, however, there is no such language in Chapter 6 for other multi-

member bodies. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



55 

ARTICLE 27: CHARTER AMENDMENT TO SECTION 6-4-1    Two-thirds vote 

To see if the Town will vote to amend Section 6-4-1 of the Town Charter by deleting language as 

follows ( deleted language shown in strike-out), or take any other action relative thereto. Requested by the 

Board of Selectmen. 

 

6-4-1 All appointed multi-member bodies which exist as of the effective date of this Charter Review shall continue to 

exist and shall be subject to section 2 of this chapter. 

 

Charter Review Committee: 5-0-0 in favor 

Board of Selectmen Recommendation: 5-0-0 in favor 

 

Comment: The Charter currently lists all multi-member bodies (including at least one which no longer exists), 

which is too specific and requires a Charter change each time a board or committee is established or 

eliminated. This change makes the language less specific, which allows for more operating flexibility so that 

multi-member bodies that are no longer necessary or effective can be disbanded. 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



56 

ARTICLE 28: CHARTER AMENDMENT TO SECTION 6-4-2    Two-thirds vote 

To see if the Town will vote to amend Section 6-4-2 of the Town Charter by adding new language and 

deleting language as follows (new language shown bold underline, deleted language shown in strike-out), or 

take any other action relative thereto. Requested by the Board of Selectmen. 

 

6-4-2 The regulatory multi-member bodies listed below shall be appointed by the Board of Selectmen in accordance 

with sections 4-3-2 and 6-2-6 of this Charter. 

 

Board of Health      Regional Delegates 

Water Resources Advisory Committee    Other Inter-Governmental Representatives 

Recycling Committee      Council on Aging 

Conservation Commission     Board of Assessors 

Charter Review Committee     Beach Commission 

Zoning Board of Appeals     Golf Course Advisory Commission 

Town Building Committee     Pamet Harbor Commission 

Open Space Committee      Recreation Commission 

Historical Review Board     Truro Cultural Council 

Commission on Disabilities     Economic Development Committee 

Cable and Internet Advisory Committee    Historical Commission 

Bike and Walkways Committee     Human Services Committee 

Town Employee Insurance Advisory Committee 

Other Multi-Member Bodies 

 

Charter Review Committee: 5-0-0 in favor 

Board of Selectmen Recommendation: 5-0-0 in favor 

 

Comment: The Charter currently lists all multi-member bodies (including at least one which no longer exists), 

which is too specific and requires a Charter change each time a board or committee is established or 

eliminated. This change makes the language less specific, which allows for more operating flexibility, while 

maintaining reference to the current regulatory boards. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



57 

ARTICLE 29: CHARTER AMENDMENT TO SECTION 6-4-8    Two-thirds vote 
To see if the Town will vote to adopt Section 6-4-8 of the Town Charter by adding new language and 

deleting language as follows (new language shown bold underline), or take any other action relative thereto.  

Requested by the Board of Selectmen. 

 

6-4-8 A current listing of all appointed multi-member bodies shall be maintained on the Town’s 

website. 
 

Charter Review Committee: 5-0-0 in favor 

Board of Selectmen Recommendation: 5-0-0 in favor 

 

Comment: The Charter currently lists all multi-member bodies (including at least one which no longer exists), 

which is too specific and requires a Charter change each time a board or committee is established or 

eliminated. This change makes the language less specific, which allows for more operating flexibility.  Section 

6-4-8 provides information about where current multi-member boards will be maintained. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



58 

ARTICLE 30: CHARTER AMENDMENT TO APPENDIX B    Two-thirds vote 
To see if the Town will vote to amend Appendix B of the Town Charter by adding new language and 

deleting language as follows (deleted language shown in strike-out), or take any other action relative thereto.  

Requested by the Board of Selectmen. 

 
Appendix B - Elected and appointed boards: Organizational Chart 

Part 1. Elected positions in accordance with the General Laws and section 6-3-1 of this Charter. 

 

Voters elect: 

A Moderator. 

A Board of Selectmen of five members. 

A School Committee of five members. 

A Planning Board of seven members. 

A Board of Library Trustees of five members, notwithstanding the provisions of Section 10 of chapter 78 of the General 

Laws. 

A Housing Authority of four members in accordance with the General Laws. 

A fifth member of the Housing Authority shall be appointed by the Commonwealth. 

A Cemetery Commission of three members. 

 

Part 2. Appointed positions in accordance with the General Laws and section 6-4-2 of this Charter. 

 

The School Committee appoints a School Superintendent who appoints the School Personnel. 

The Moderator appoints the Finance Committee. 

The Board of Selectmen appoints the Town Manager, Town Counsel and Public Safety Personnel: 

Police Chief 

Fire Chief 

Constable 



59 

 

Charter Review Committee Recommendation: 5-0-0 in favor 

Board of Selectmen Recommendation: 5-0-0 in favor 

 

Comment: All information contained in Appendix B is either contained in the body of the Charter or does not 

belong in the Charter. 

  



60 

ARTICLE 31: TO AMEND THE GENERAL BYLAWS CHAPTER VI PRESERVING HISTORIC 

PROPERTIES SECTION  

To see if the Town will vote to amend Chapter VI Preserving Historic Properties  of the General 

Bylaws by adding new language and deleting language as follows (new language shown in bold 

underline, deleted language shown in strike-out), or to take any action relative thereto.  Requested by the 

Historic Commission.  
 

CHAPTER VI PRESERVING HISTORIC PROPERTIES 

 Section 1 PURPOSE  

6-1-1  This Bylaw is enacted for the purpose of preserving and protecting significant buildings, structures and 

sites within the Town of Truro. The intent is to promote the public welfare and to safeguard the Town's 

heritage. This Bylaw aims to encourage owners of historic properties to seek alternatives to demolition.  

6-1-2  To this end, procedures are established herein for the Town, together with the owner of a historically 

significant property, to explore alternatives to demolition prior to, and as a condition of, the issuance of 

a demolition permit.  

Section 2 DEFINITIONS  

6-2-1 Significant Building.  

6-2-1-1 Any building or structure listed on the National or State Register of Historic Places, or the subject of a 

pending application which has been found eligible for such a listing.   

6-2-1-2  Any building constructed in whole or in part 75 years or more prior to the date of application for a 

demolition permit; or (4/07)   

6-2-1-3  Any building determined jointly by the Historical Review Board and the Truro Historical Commission 

to be a significant building either because:  (4/07)  (a) It That is historically or architecturally significant in 

terms of period, style, method of building construction, or association with a famous architect; or  (b) It That 

is importantly associated with one or more historic persons or events, or with the broad architectural, cultural, 

political, economic or social history of the Town or the Commonwealth.  

6-2-2  Demolition.  

6-2-2-1 The act of pulling down, destroying, removing, dismantling, or razing a building or a significant  

substantial portion thereof or commencing the work of total or substantial destruction with the intent of 

completing the same, all as determined by the Building Commissioner. The term "demolition" shall not 

include ordinary maintenance or repair of any building. In addition, the term “Demolition” shall include the 

act of enclosing or encapsulating an existing building within new exterior walls or roofed areas. (4/07)  

6-2-3 Preferably Preserved. 

6-2-3-1 Any significant building which the Truro Historical Commission determines, following a public 

hearing, that it is in the public interest to be preserved rather than demolished.  A preferably preserved 

building is subject to demolition delay period under this bylaw.   

Section 3  TRURO HISTORICAL REVIEW BOARD COMMISSION COMPOSITION AND 

APPOINTMENTS  

6-3-1 The Truro Historical Review Board Commission is charged with implementing the procedure for 

Preserving Historic Properties Bylaw and empowered to advise the Truro Building Commissioner with 

respect to the issuance of demolition permits for historically significant buildings and structures. The 

Truro Historical Review Board Commission shall be appointed by the Board of Selectmen in 

consultation with the Truro Historical Commission. It shall consist of five (5) seven (7) people and two 

(2) people chosen from the Truro Historical Commission and three (3) people chosen at large for their 

interest in and knowledge of historic buildings and structures. The term of office shall initially be for 

one, two, and three years respectively, and for three years thereafter. (4/07)  



61 

6-3-2   Four (4) affirmative votes shall be required to adopt a motion. 

Section 4 TRURO HISTORICAL REVIEW BOARD COMMISSION POWERS AND DUTIES  

6-4-1 The Truro Historical Review Board Commission shall:  

 6-4-1-1  Develop policies, guidelines and criteria before compiling Utilizing the Truro Community-wide 

Historic Survey (2011), as updated from time to time, maintain a list or register of historically, 

culturally, or architecturally significant buildings and structures located within the Town of Truro.  

 6-4-1-2  Notify current owners of such buildings and structures in writing and provide them with an official 

plaque to display if they so wish. At this time, the Historical Review Board shall hold a hearing for any 

current owners objecting to the Board's determination that their property is of historical, cultural, or 

architectural significance. Make the above referenced list available to the Town Clerk, Building 

Commissioner, the Truro Public Library, and the Truro Historical Society, and post a list on the 

town website.  

 6-4-1-3 Prepare Inform applicants of guidelines for alternatives to demolition such as preservation, 

renovation, rehabilitation, restoration, or relocation such as the U. S. Secretary of Interior’s 

Standards for the Treatment of Historic Properties and the Cape Cod Commission’s Technical 

Bulletin 96-001 Designing the Future to Honor the Past: Design Guidelines for Cape Cod. 

 6-4-1-4 Provide copies of the list and links to the above referenced guidelines on the town website.  

 6-4-1-5  Review applications for demolition permits forwarded to it by the Building Commissioner in order 

to determine if the building or structure involved is subject to the hearing process.  

 6-4-1-6  Hold public hearings on demolition permit applications to determine if the intended demolition 

would be detrimental to the historical, cultural or architectural heritage of the Town; whether the work 

proposed will materially diminish the building or structure's significance to the Town's heritage; and to 

explore alternatives to demolition.  

 6-4-1-7 Impose demolition delays of up to twelve (12) months on demolition permit applications that it has 

determined would substantially diminish the building or structure’s significance to the Town’s heritage 

as described in Section 6-5-5 below. (4/07)  

Section 5 PROCEDURES FOR REVIEW OF APPLICATIONS  

 6-5-1 Application for Demolition 

 6-5-1-1 An applicant proposing to demolish a building subject to this bylaw shall file with the Building 

Commissioner an application containing the following information:   

 The address of the building to be demolished. 

 The owner's name, address and telephone number. 

 A description of the building or portions proposed to be demolished including the age of 

existing materials to be removed. 

 A photograph or photograph(s) of the building. 

 The reason for requesting a demolition permit. 

 A brief description of the proposed reuse and plans for the reconstruction or replacement.  

 6-5-1-2 6-5-1The Building Commissioner shall, within ten (10) working days of receipt of proposed 

building plans an application for a demolition permit, forward a copy of the proposed building plans 

and demolition permit application to the Truro Historical Review Board Commission. (4/07)  

6-5-2 The Chair or, if the Chair is not available, the Vice Chair of the Truro Historical Review Board 

Commission shall within fifteen (15) working days inform the Building Commissioner if the building 

or structure in question is significant and therefore subject to the hearing process. (4/07)  

6-5-3  If the building or structure in question is deemed significant and subject to the hearing process, then 

within thirty (30) working days of such determination, the Truro Historical Review Board 



62 

Commission shall hold a public hearing to review plans submitted by the applicant to determine if the 

intended demolition or any alternative construction would be detrimental to the historical, cultural, or 

architectural heritage of the Town; if less than a complete demolition is proposed, whether the work 

will materially diminish the building or structure's significance to the Town's heritage; and to explore 

the alternatives to demolition. The Owner’s failure to maintain or repair a building or structure so as to 

compromise its structural integrity or usability shall not constitute grounds for a finding of no feasible 

alternative to demolition. (4/07)  

6-5-4 Notice of the time, place, and subject matter of the Historic Review Board Truro Historical 

Commission hearings shall be provided by publication in a newspaper of general circulation in the 

Town once a week for two (2) consecutive weeks, the first notice to appear at least fourteen (14) days 

before the day of the hearing (including the day of publication and excluding the day of the hearing); 

and the applicant is responsible for obtaining the list of certified abutters (which includes direct 

abutters and abutters to abutters within 300 feet ), mailing public hearing notice by certified mail, 

return receipt to the owner or applicant, to all abutters to the subject property, and to the Truro 

Historical Commission, the Building Commissioner, the Board of Selectmen, the Planning Board, 

and such other persons as the Truro Historical Review Board Commission may determine and 

demonstrate that they have done so.   (4/16) 

6-5-5 Within fifteen (15) working days of the close of the public hearing, the Chair or Vice Chair of the 

Truro Historical Review Board Commission shall notify the owner or applicant and the Building 

Commissioner of it’s the Commission’s decision. If Truro Historical Review Board Commission has 

determined that the building is “preferably preserved” and that the proposed demolition would 

destroy or substantially diminish the building or structure's significance to the Town's heritage, it is 

empowered to impose a demolition delay of up to twelve (12) months from the close of the public 

hearing to afford the applicant and the Truro Historical Review Board Commission time to develop 

alternatives to demolition. (4/07)  

6-5-6  To expedite the review process, the Truro Historical Review Board Commission encourages applicants 

to submit revised plans and to request a review meeting with the Truro Historical Review Board 

Commission at any time during the mandated review delay period. The Building Commissioner may 

issue a demolition permit prior to the end of the mandated delay only upon receipt of written notice 

from the Chair or Vice Chair of the Truro Historical Review Board Commission that it is satisfied 

that the applicant has made a serious but unsuccessful effort to develop an alternative to demolition and 

that there is no reasonable likelihood that the applicant or potential purchasers will be willing or able to 

rehabilitate, restore, relocate, or otherwise preserve the building or structure. (4/07)  

6-5-7 If, at the end of the mandated delay, the owner or applicant has failed to develop an alternative to 

demolition, the Chair or Vice Chair of the Truro Historical Review Board Commission shall within 

ten (10) working days notify the Building Commissioner who may then issue the demolition permit. 

(4/07)  

Section 6 EMERGENCY DEMOLITION  

6-6-1 Nothing in this Bylaw shall restrict or prevent the Building Commissioner from ordering the immediate 

demolition of any building or structure determined by the Building Commissioner to present a clear 

and present danger to the safety of the public which only demolition can remedy. The Building 

Commissioner shall provide the Truro Historical Review Board Commission written notice of the 

circumstances of the permit issuance.  

Section 7 ENFORCEMENT  

6-7-1 The Building Commissioner shall be authorized to enforce the provisions of this Bylaw and to institute 

any and all actions and proceedings as may be necessary and appropriate to obtain compliance, 

including injunctive relief to enjoin and restrain any violations or threatened Special violations thereof.  

Section 8 NON-COMPLIANCE  



63 

6.8.1  Anyone who undertakes demolition of any historically significant building or structure, in whole or in 

part, without complying with the provisions of this Bylaw, shall be subject to a fine established in 

Appendix A. Each day such demolition continues shall constitute a separate offense.  

6.8.2  No building permit shall be issued or be valid for a period of two (2) years from the date of notification 

of the offense for any parcel or premises upon which a historically significant building or structure has 

been demolished in violation of the Bylaw.  

Section 9. SEVERABILITY 

6-9-1 If any provision of this Bylaw is determined to be invalid or unconstitutional by any court of 

competent jurisdiction, said determination shall not affect the validity of any other section 

hereof.  

Source: Chapter VI Truro General Bylaws – April 2010 as amended April 2016  

 

Historic Commission Recommendation:  5-0-0 in favor 

Historic Review Board Recommendation: 5-0-0 in favor 

Board of Selectmen Recommendation: 5-0-0 in favor 

Comment: The Preserving Historic Properties General Town Bylaw encourages property owners to evaluate 

alternatives to demolition of historically significant buildings that upon a Public Hearing are determined to be 

preferably preserved.  At the request of the Board of Selectmen to streamline the demolition review process 

under the Preserving Historic Properties Bylaw, the 5-member Truro Historical Commission and the 5-member 

Historical Review Board recommended combining the listed duties of the two boards under the singular 

responsibility of an expanded Truro Historical Commission.  Under the proposed article, the Historical Review 

Board will be absorbed into the proposed 7-member Truro Historical Commission.  This amendment follows 

the example of all other Massachusetts towns where each town's Historical Commission has this sole 

demolition review responsibility.  To help draft the bylaw revisions, both the Historical Commission and 

Review Board consulted with the Massachusetts Historical Commission and met with representatives of the 

Wellfleet Historical Commission, which is responsible for reviewing demolition applications.  Town Counsel 

finalized the changes for inclusion in the April 2017 Annual Town Meeting Warrant. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



64 

ARTICLE 32: AMEND ZONING BYLAWS §10.4 DEFINITIONS §30.3 SEASHORE DISTRICT, §70.9 

WAIVER OF SITE PLAN        Two-thirds vote 
To see if the Town will vote to amend the Town of Truro Zoning Bylaw Section 10.4, Definitions, and 

Section 30.3, Seashore District, by adding a new Section 30.3, and by adding text to Section 70.9, (new text 

shown as bold underline), or take any other action relative thereto.  Requested by the Planning Board. 

 

In §10.4 Definitions, insert the following new definition: 

Seashore District Total Gross Floor Area. The aggregate gross floor area of the dwelling and accessory 

structures on a lot within the Seashore District, shall consist of the sum of the horizontal areas of the 

floor(s) of a building measured from the exterior faces of the exterior walls of the building, without 

deduction for hallways, stairs, closets, and thickness of walls, columns or other features used or intended 

to be used for living, sleeping, sanitation, cooking or eating purposes, excluding cellar and basement 

floor area, garage, porches, decks, attics, barns, sheds, greenhouses and agricultural buildings. 

For the purposes of computing floor area, any portion of the floor area measuring less than five feet 

from the finished floor to the finished ceiling shall not be included in the computation of floor area. 

 

In §30.3 Seashore District, insert the following new §30.3.1 to follow §30.3.E: 

 

30.3.1.  Residential Building Size Regulations 

Purpose: The Seashore District is a unique Zoning District in Truro that encompasses a major portion of 

the Cape Cod National Seashore. Truro has adopted the special zoning provisions required for this 

District as set forth in the Code of Federal Regulations (Title 36, Part 27). The purpose of this Section is 

to recognize the town’s stewardship role to ensure that any residential alteration, construction or 

reconstruction maintains the prevailing size and massing of buildings in the district and is in accordance 

with the purposes and intent of the Cape Cod National Seashore, namely to preserve the special cultural 

and natural features, distinctive patterns of human activity, and rural ambience that characterize the 

Outer Cape, along with the associated scenic, cultural, historic, scientific, and recreational values. 

 

A. Applicability and Exceptions 

1. Seashore District Total Gross Floor Area Allowed by Right: Subject to the exceptions provided 

for in subsections 30.3.1.A.2 and below, building permits for new construction or for projects 

that seek to increase the Seashore District Total Gross Floor Area of a lot with buildings that 

exist as of April 25, 2017, shall only be issued where, on completion of the project, the Seashore 

District Total Gross Floor Area of the lot does not exceed 3,600 sq. ft. for 3 acres: 

a. plus 200 sq. ft. for each additional contiguous acre; or 

b. minus 200 sq. ft. for each contiguous acre less than 3 acres, 

as the case may be, where the square footage per acre specified above is pro-rated for a portion 

of an acre.   

(See table that follows, which is provided for illustrative purposes.) 

 

Illustrative Limits on Total Gross Floor Area Proportional to Lot Size Allowed by Right 

Lot Size 
Acres 

Limit SD GFA 
Sq. Ft. 

.5 3,100 
.75 3,150 

1 3,200 



65 

3 3,600 
6 4,200 

10 5,000 

2. Special Permit to exceed the Seashore District Total Gross Floor Area limit: The Seashore 

District Total Gross Floor Area limit for a lot established in subsection A.1 may be exceeded, up 

to the cap established by this subsection, by special permit, as provided in the remaining 

provisions of this Bylaw.  No special permit may be issued for any project if the project would 

result in the Seashore District Total Gross Floor Area of the lot exceeding 4,600 sq. ft. for 3 

acres: 

a. plus 200 sq. ft. for each additional contiguous acre; or 

b. minus 200 sq. ft. for each contiguous acre less than 3 acres, 

as the case may be, where the square footage per acre specified above is pro-rated for a portion 

of an acre.   

(See table that follows, which is provided for illustrative purposes.) 

 

Illustrative Limits on Total Gross Floor Area Proportional to Lot Size that may be Possible 

with Special Permit 

Lot Size 
Acres 

Limit SD GFA 
Sq. Ft. 

.5 4,100 
.75 4,150 
1 4,200 
3 4,600 

6 5,200 
10 6,000 

 

B. Procedures for Special Permit Review and Approval: Upon receipt of an application for a building 

permit the Building Commissioner shall make an initial determination as to whether any alteration, 

construction or reconstruction of a building or structure would result in the Seashore District Total 

Gross Floor Area exceeding the limitation set out in Section 30.3.1.A.1. If the Building 

Commissioner determines that the applicant cannot proceed without a Special Permit, the 

applicant shall first make an application to the Planning Board for Site Plan Review, and upon 

approval by the Planning Board of Site Plan review, as defined in Section 70.4, shall then apply to 

the Zoning Board of Appeals for a Special Permit. No building permit shall be issued hereunder 

unless the Zoning Board of Appeals has granted a Special Permit according to procedures as 

defined elsewhere in this Bylaw. The procedure set out in this section is not exclusive of any other 

permit or approval that the applicant may otherwise be required to obtain. 

 

In §70.9 Waiver of Site Plan Review, insert the following sentence at the end of the first paragraph:  

Site Plan Review shall not be waived in the Seashore District. 

 

 

Planning Board Recommendation: 5-0-0 in favor 

Board of Selectmen Recommendation: 3-0-2 in favor 

 

Comment: The Seashore District is a unique zoning district in Truro. It is a major portion of the Cape Cod 

National Seashore and the Town has an important stewardship role to protect this significant resource.  



66 

Wellfleet and Eastham have enacted Zoning Bylaw amendments to limit building size – Truro has not. The 

Planning Board has introduced this bylaw to limit the size of future houses developed or redeveloped within 

the Seashore District, in proportion to lot size. The control of house size is intended to ensure that the 

residential construction, alteration or reconstruction preserves the special character and prevailing size and 

massing of buildings in the Seashore District, and is in accord with the purposes and intent of the Cape Cod 

National Seashore.   

 

The proposed future size limits are based on an analysis of prevailing building sizes and will minimize the 

creation of non-conforming properties.  All existing buildings will be “grandfathered in” and allowed.  The 

proposed amendment will not deny Truro’s residents the right to live in large houses. But it will protect the 

Seashore District form the onslaught of 10,000 sq. ft. buildings that will dominate the landscape and change 

forever Truro’s most incomparable asset. 

 

In addition, to ensure transparency in decision-making, the existing Zoning Bylaw provisions for Site Plan 

Review can no longer be waived, requiring public hearings for major changes to properties within the 

Seashore District. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



67 

ARTICLE 33: AMEND ZONING BYLAWS §50, AREA AND HEIGHT REGULATIONS  

            Two-thirds vote 

To see if the Town will vote to amend the Town of Truro Zoning Bylaw Section 10.4, Definitions, and 

Section 50, Area and Height Regulations, by adding a new Section 50.2 (new text shown as bold underline), 

or take any other action relative thereto.  Requested by Petitioned Article. 

 

In Section 10.4 Definitions, insert the following new definition: 

 

Residential and Seashore Districts, Total Gross Floor Area. The aggregate gross floor area of the 

dwelling and accessory structures on a lot within the Residential District and the Seashore District, shall 

consist of the sum of the horizontal areas of the floor(s) of a building measured from the exterior faces of 

the exterior walls of the building, without deduction for hallways, stairs, closets, and thickness of walls, 

columns or other features used or intended to be used for living, sleeping, sanitation, cooking or eating 

purposes, excluding cellar and basement floor area, garage, porches, decks, attics, barns, greenhouses, 

sheds, and agricultural buildings. 

For the purposes of computing floor area, any portion of the floor area measuring less than five feet 

from the finished floor to the finished ceiling shall not be included in the computation of floor area. 

Section 50.2 Building Gross Floor Area 

A. Purpose: This Section regulates the size of residential buildings on lots within the Residential 

District and the Seashore District by establishing a relationship between building volume and lot 

size that is consistent with Truro’s historical development and character, as described in the Truro 

Local Comprehensive Plan, Chapter 1—A Vision for Truro, and Chapter 2—Land Use. 

B. Applicability and Exceptions 

1.  Residential and Seashore District Total Gross Floor Area Allowed by Right: Subject to the 

exceptions provided for in subsections 50.2.B.2 and below, building permits for new 

construction or for projects that seek to increase the Residential and Seashore District Gross 

Floor Area of buildings that exist on lots as of April 25, 2017, shall only be issued where, on 

completion of the project, the Total Gross Floor Area meets the ratios set forth in the table that 

follows, plus 200 square feet for each additional contiguous acre. 

Gross Floor Area Proportional to Lot Size Allowed by Right 

Lot Size Acres Lot Size Sq. 

Ft. 

Limit GFA; 

 %Lot Coverage 

.5 21,780 3,100      14.0% 

.75 32,670 3,150       9.6% 

1 43,560 3,200       7.0% 

3 130,680 3,600       2.7% 

6 261,300 4,200       1.6% 

10 435,600 5,000      1.1% 

 

2. Special Permit to exceed the Residential and Seashore District Total Gross Floor Area limit: 

The Residential and Seashore District Total Gross Floor Area for a dwelling established in 

subsection B.1 and the table above may be exceeded, by special permit, as provided in the 

remaining provisions of this Bylaw. 



68 

Illustrative Limits on Total Gross Floor Area Proportional to Lot Size that may be Possible with 
Special Permit 
Lot Size 
Acres 

Lot Size Sq. 
Ft. 

GFA;  
%Lot Coverage 
  
Coverage 

.5 21,780 4,100     18.8% 

.75 32,670 4,150     12.7% 

1 43,560 4,200     9.6% 

3 130,680 4,600     3.5% 

6 261,300 5,200     1.9% 

10 435,600 6,000     1.3% 

   

 

C. Procedures for Special Permit Review and Approval: Upon receipt of an application for a building 

permit the Building Commissioner shall make an initial determination as to whether any 

alteration, construction or reconstruction of a building or structure would result in the Residential 

and Seashore District Total Gross Floor Area exceeding the limitations set out in Section 50.2.B.1. 

If the Building Commissioner determines that the applicant cannot proceed without a Special 

Permit, the applicant must apply to the Zoning Board of Appeals for a Special Permit. No building 

permit shall be issued hereunder unless the Zoning Board of Appeals has granted a Special Permit 

according to procedures as defined elsewhere in this Bylaw. 

 

D. When required, an application for a Special Permit shall be made to the Zoning Board of Appeals. 

Notice shall be given of all applications for a Special Permit hereunder in accordance with Section 

60.4 (Notice Requirements) of these bylaws.  A Special Permit may be granted where the Zoning 

Board of Appeals finds that the proposed construction is consistent with the criteria found in 

Section 30.8 (Special Permits) of the bylaws. In making this determination the Zoning Board of 

Appeals shall consider the size of neighboring buildings and the surroundings in which 

construction is proposed. 

 

 

Planning Board Recommendation: 0-5-0 in favor 

Board of Selectmen Recommendation: 2-2-1 in favor 

 

Comment: This is a citizen petitioned article developed to comply with the land use goals enumerated in the 

2005 Truro Local Comprehensive Plan. Goal 1: Protect Truro’s rural character outside the Seashore. This by-

law uses the exact same definition for Gross Floor Area and the same table for Lot Size and Square Footage 

Allowed by Right, as in the Seashore District only by-law, and applies them to the Residential and the 

Seashore Districts. It also provides a mechanism for a property owner to apply to the Zoning Board of Appeals 

for a special permit to exceed the square footage allowed by right. The Zoning Board of Appeals shall consider 

the size of neighboring buildings, the surroundings in which construction is proposed, and ensure that the 

Special Permit is consistent with the criteria found in Section 30.8 (Special Permits) of the by-laws. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



69 

ARTICLE 34: HERRING RIVER RESTORATION PROJECT PERMITTING APPLICATIONS 

To see if the Town will vote to direct the Board of Selectmen not to allow any permit applications for 

the Herring River Restoration Project, until, and unless, the Project has been modified so that no herbicides 

will be used in the project area, or take any other action relative thereto.  Requested by Petitioned Article. 

 

Board of Selectmen Recommendation: 5-0-0 in favor 

 
Comment: This is a citizen petitioned article. The Herring River Executive Council, on the recommendation of 

the Herring River Restoration Committee, already passed a motion to not authorize the use of herbicides in 

permit applications for the project area. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



70 

ARTICLE 35: ELECTRONIC VOTING EXPLORATION AND IMPLEMENTATION 

To see if the Town will vote to authorize the Town Manager to explore and/or implement the use of 

electronic voting devices at Town Meetings and Special Town Meetings at the discretion of the Town 

Moderator or take any other action relative thereto. Requested by the Town Manager. 

 

Board of Selectmen Recommendation: 2-2-1 in favor 

 

Comment: The Town Moderator and Town staff have researched electronic voting devices which provide 

privacy to voters, encourage accuracy and efficiency of vote counting and provide transparency by displaying 

exactly how many voters vote for or against certain articles. Town staff has submitted a grant to purchase 

electronic voting devices. (If the vote is against use of electronic voting devices, the grant may be withdrawn.) 

If the funds are granted, the Town would move forward with the purchase of the electronic voting devices and 

would begin the process of implementation of electronic voting at future meetings. If the funds are not granted, 

the Town will continue to explore funding options and grants to secure the devices.   

 

  



71 

 

ANNUAL TOWN ELECTION 

TUESDAY, MAY 9, 2017 

TRURO COMMUNITY CENTER – 7 Standish Way, North Truro, MA 02652 

7:00AM – 8:00PM 

 

Barnstable ss 

To the Constable for the Town of Truro 

Greetings: 

 

In the name of the Commonwealth, you are hereby required to notify and warn the inhabitants of the 

said Town who are qualified to vote in a Town Election, to vote at Truro Community Center, 7 Standish 

Way, Truro, MA, on Tuesday, May 9, 2017 from 7:00 am to 8:00 pm for the following Town offices and 

questions: 

 

# OFFICE   TERM 
 
 1 Selectmen   3 year 

 

1 School Committee  3 year 

 

 1  Moderator   3 year 

 

 2 Library Trustee  3 year 

 

 1  Cemetery Commission 3 year 

 

 1 Planning Board  5 year 

  

 1 Planning Board  4 year 

  

 1 Planning Board  3 year 

 

 1 Housing Authority  5 year 

 

 

 

 

QUESTION 1 

 

Shall the Town of Truro be allowed to assess an additional four hundred and sixty five thousand, six 

hundred and seventeen dollars in real estate and personal property taxes to supplement the operating 

budgets for the following town functions: general government, education, public works, health and 

human services, and culture and recreation, for the fiscal year beginning July first, two thousand and 

seventeen?  

 

     Yes____ No____ 

 

 

 

 



72 

 

QUESTION 2 
 

Shall the Town of Truro be allowed to exempt from the provisions of proposition two and one-half, so 

called, the amounts required to pay for the bond issued in order to pay the costs associated with the 

repair and replacement of the culvert which connects Cape Cod Bay with East Harbor (Pilgrim Lake) in 

North Truro, including design, permitting and construction, and other costs incidental and related 

thereto? 
 

Yes____ No____ 

 

 

QUESTION 3 

 

Shall the Town approve the Charter amendment proposed and passed at the April 26, 2016 Town 

Meeting as summarized below?  

 

     Yes ___ No ___ 

 

This amendment will change the Town Charter by amending Section 4-2-10 of the Town Charter by 

adding new language and deleting language as follows (new language shown underlined, deleted 

language shown in strike-out): 
 

4-2-10 The Board of Selectmen shall appoint a Collective Bargaining Team, act as the 

collective bargaining agent for the Town unless otherwise provided by the General Laws, 

which shall include the Town Manager, and may include members of the Board of 

Selectmen It shall appoint a collective bargaining team which shall consist of not less than two 

selectmen, the Town Administrator, and those department heads whose employees shall be 

subject to the collective bargaining agreement. The Board of Selectmen may use professional 

assistance on the collective bargaining team, and T the collective bargaining team shall 

appoint one of its members to serve as the Chief negotiator. 

 

Note: At the May 10, 2016 Town Election a Charter Amendment was approved changing the Town 

Administrator title to Town Manager. 

 

 

QUESTION 4 

 

Shall the Town approve the Charter amendment proposed and passed at the April 26, 2016 Town 

Meeting as summarized below?  

 

     Yes ___ No ___ 

 

 

This amendment will change Section 5-4-2 of the Town Charter by eliminating the existing language 

and adding new language as follows (new language shown underlined, deleted language shown in 

strike-out): 

 

5-4-2    After consultation with the Board of Selectmen, the Town Administrator shall appoint the 

following, subject to the provisions of section 5-5-4 of this Charter: 



73 

 

Director of Public Works Beach Commission Supervisor 

Town Accountant Golf Course Manager 

Building Commissioner Recreation Director 

Deputy Assessor Harbormaster 

Administrative Secretary Town Clerk 

Licensing Agent Town Treasurer Agent 

to the Zoning Board of Appeals  

Collector of Taxes 

Agent to the Board of Health Council on Aging Director 
 

 5-4-2    After consultation with the Board of Selectmen, the Town Manager shall appoint all 

Department Heads, which are those positions reporting directly to the Town Manager.   

All such appointments shall be subject to disapproval by a majority vote of the Board of 

Selectmen, provided that such a vote is taken prior to the date of the offer.   This section 

does not apply to appointment authority granted to the Board of Selectmen in accordance 

with section 4-3-1 of this Charter. 

 

Note: At the May 10, 2016 Town Election a Charter Amendment was approved changing the Town 

Administrator title to Town Manager. 

 

 

QUESTION 5 

 

Shall the Town approve the Charter amendment proposed and passed at the April 26, 2016 Town 

Meeting as summarized below?  

 

     Yes ___ No ___ 

 

 

This amendment will change the Town Charter by amending  Section 5-4-3 of the Town Charter by 

deleting language as follows (deleted language shown in strike-out): 

 

5-4-3   After consultation with the appropriate elected officials, department heads or multi-member 

bodies supervisors, the Town Manager shall appoint all full-time, part-time or seasonal employees, 

except those of the School Department. 

    

Note: At the May 10, 2016 Town Election a Charter Amendment was approved changing the Town 

Administrator title to Town Manager. 

 

 

QUESTION 6 

 

Shall the Town approve the Charter amendment proposed and passed at the April 26, 2016 Town 

Meeting as summarized below?  

 

     Yes ___ No ___ 

 

 



74 

This amendment will change Section 5-4-5 of the Town Charter by deleting this section as follows 

(deleted language shown in strike-out): 

 

5-4-5    All appointments for regular full-time and regular part-time employees made by the Town  

Administrator shall be subject to disapproval by a majority vote of the Board of Selectmen, provided 

that such a vote is taken prior to the date of the appointment. 

 

QUESTION 7 

 

Shall the Town approve the Charter amendment proposed and passed at the April 26, 2016 Town 

Meeting as summarized below?  

 

     Yes ___ No ___ 

 

 

This amendment will change Section 5-4-6 of the Town Charter by deleting this section as follows 

(deleted language shown in strike-out): 
 

The Town Administrator shall appoint, as needed, the director, clerk, and employees of the Council on 

Aging, notwithstanding the provision of section eight B of chapter 40 of the General Laws. 

 

 

QUESTION 8 

 

Shall the Town approve the Charter amendment proposed and passed at the April 26, 2016 Town 

Meeting as summarized below?  

 

     Yes ___ No ___ 

 

 

 

This amendment will change Section 6-3-1 of the Town Charter by adding new language and deleting 

language as follows (new language shown underlined, deleted language shown in strike-out): 

 

6-3-1  The multi-member bodies listed in appendix B part 1 section 3-1-1 shall be elected in       

accordance with subsections 3-2-3 and 6-2-6 of this Charter. 

 

 

QUESTION 9     

 

Shall the Town approve the Charter amendment proposed and passed at the April 26, 2016 Town 

Meeting as summarized below?  

 

     Yes ___ No ___ 

 

 

This amendment will change Section 7-1-2 of the Town Charter by adding new language and deleting 

language as follows (new language shown underlined, deleted language shown in strike-out): 

 



75 

7-1-2 On or before December 15 of each year, the Town Manager shall submit to the Board of Selectmen the 

following: 

(a) A draft budget of the probable expenditures of the Town government, including the draft school 

budget, for the ensuing fiscal year, together with an estimate of such expenditures for the 

current fiscal year and a statement of such expenditures for the two preceding fiscal years; 

(b) Revenue projections for the ensuing fiscal year, together with an estimate of such revenues 

for the current fiscal year and a statement of such revenues for the two preceding fiscal 

years; 

(c) The draft budget document for the ensuing year shall: 

(1) Include a financial summary listing all proposed expenditures, show the tax levy limit, 

disclose the source of any additional revenues, and itemize the Town's reserves; 

(2) Explain the budget in terms of service changes or major expenditure changes and outline 

the reasons for such changes; 

(3) Indicate any major changes from the current fiscal year in financial policies together 

with the reasons for such changes; 

(4) Summarize the Town's debt position and projections; 

(5) Include such other material deemed to be appropriate.  

 

(d) A Budget Task Force shall be formed on or before December 15 of each year. The Budget 

Task Force shall consist of two (2) members of the Finance Committee, two (2) members of the 

Board of Selectmen, the Town Accountant and the Town Manager. It shall be the charge 

of the Budget Task Force to review with department heads individual budgets. 

(e) Changes to the preliminary budget by the Budget Task Force shall be forwarded to the 

Board of Selectmen for review and recommendations on or before January 31
st
. The 

Board of Selectmen shall then forward any recommendations to the Finance Committee 

by February 21
st
. 

 

 

 

QUESTION 10 

 

Shall the Town approve the Charter amendment proposed and passed at the April 26, 2016 Town 

Meeting as summarized below?  

 

     Yes ___ No ___ 

 

This amendment will change the Town Charter by amending Section 7-2-1 of the Town Charter by 

deleting language as follows (deleted language shown in strike-out): 

 

7-2-1 On or before December 15 of each year, the Town Manager shall submit to the Board of 

Selectmen a five-year capital improvement plan that shall include: 

(a) A clear summary of its contents; 

(b) A list, together with supporting data, of all capital improvements proposed to be 

undertaken in the next five years; such list to include all capital improvements of the 

School Department and those resulting from any inter-municipal or regional 

agreements.  Such list shall detail proposed: 

(1) Acquisition of new land, facilities, vehicles, and equipment;  

(2) Construction and expansion of existing facilities; 

(3) Major maintenance and repairs of facilities, vehicles and equipment; 

(4) Replacement program for existing equipment and vehicles; 



76 

(c) Cost estimates, methods of financing, and recommended timetables; 

(d) Estimated annual operating costs including maintenance for newly acquired or 

constructed facilities. 

 

Note: At the May 10, 2016 Town Election a Charter Amendment was approved changing the Town 

Administrator title to Town Manager. 

 

 

 

QUESTION 11 

 

Shall the Town approve the Charter amendment proposed and passed at the April 26, 2016 Town 

Meeting as summarized below?  

 

     Yes ___ No ___ 

 

 

This amendment will change Section 7-2-2 of the Town Charter by adding new language and deleting 

language as follows (new language shown underlined, deleted language shown in strike-out): 

 

7-2-2  On or before January 15  February 21
st
 of each year, the Board of Selectmen shall 

submit to the Finance Committee the capital improvement plan together with its 

recommendations thereon. 

 

 

QUESTION 12 

 

Should the people of the Town of Truro direct the town’s government to communicate with Governor 

Baker to employ all means available to ensure spent nuclear fuel generated by the Pilgrim Nuclear 

Power Station be placed in secure dry casks as soon as technically feasible and consistent with the 

highest standards, ready to be moved to a permanent federal facility when available in order to protect 

the health, welfare, and economic interests of the Town of Truro and its inhabitants and visitors? 

 

     Yes ___ No ___ 

 
 

  



77 

 

 
Posting of the Warrant and Ballot 

In conformity with Section 2.3.5 of the Truro Town Charter, you are hereby directed to serve these warrants, 

by posting duly-attested copies in Town Hall, the United States Post Offices, two other public places in Truro 

and two other public places in North Truro, fourteen days, at least, before the date of said meetings. 

 

Hereto fail not and make due return of the warrants, together with your doings thereon, to the Town Clerk, at 

time and place of said meetings.  Given unto our hands this 27th day of March in the Year of our Lord, Two 

Thousand and Seventeen. 

 

We, the members of the Board of Selectmen of the Town of Truro, have read the warrant for Annual Town 

Meeting to be held at 6:00 p.m. on April 25, 2017, at the Truro Central School and have read the warrant for 

the Town election to be held on Tuesday May 9, 2017 at the Truro Community Center from 7:00 a.m. to 8:00 

p.m. 

  

Acting in capacity of the Board of Selectmen we do hereby grant approval of and permission for the above 

mentioned warrant 

 

 

______________________________   ______________________________ 

Paul Wisotzky, Chair      Jan Worthington, Vice-Chair 

 

 

 

______________________________   ______________________________ 

Jay Coburn, Clerk      Maureen Burgess   

 

 

______________________________ 

Robert Weinstein  

 

 

A true copy, attest: 

 

Cynthia A. Slade 

Town Clerk, Town of Truro 

 

Sirs:  I have served this warrant by posting duly attested copies thereof at the following places: Grozier’s 

Garage, Lower Cape Auto & Truck Repair, Savory & Sweet Escape, Pamet Valley Liquors, Truro Post 

Office, N. Truro Post Office, Truro Public Safety Facility, Truro Public Library, Transfer Station, Truro 

Central School, Truro Community Center, and Truro Town Hall 

 

 

 

________________________________________________________________________Constable                                                                           

date 

 

  



78 

Appendix A –Non-Union Personnel Compensation and Classification FY2017 and FY2018 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Appendix A 

Non-Union Personnel 

Compensation and Classification 

FY2017 and FY2018 

  



79 

 

Grade Position STEP 1 STEP 2 STEP 3 STEP 4 STEP 5 STEP 6

Beach Attendant HOURLY 12.03 12.42 12.90 13.30 13.76 14.18

1 Election Teller (1 step) HOURLY 12.03

3 Beach Sales Clerk HOURLY 13.84 14.30 15.00 15.56 16.11 16.75

Recreation Counselor HOURLY 13.84 14.30 15.00 15.56 16.11 16.75

Council on Aging Van Drivers HOURLY 13.84 14.30 15.00 15.56 16.11 16.75

4 Rec. Assistant Dir/ Program Coordinator HOURLY 14.07 15.06 16.04 17.16 18.36 19.63

5 Beach Assistant Supervisor HOURLY 15.46 16.49 17.48 18.49 19.49 20.56

Beach Lifeguard HOURLY 15.46 16.49 17.48 18.49 19.49 20.56

5A Library Assistant (21 hours) HOURLY 17.26 18.13 19.02 20.16 21.36 22.59

6 Beach Head Lifeguard HOURLY 16.56 17.58 18.63 19.66 20.72 21.84

7 Office Assistant 1 HOURLY 18.70 19.37 20.04 20.66 21.34 22.00

Library Tech/Youth Serv (23 hours) HOURLY 18.70 19.37 20.04 20.66 21.34 22.00

8 Assistant Harbormaster (3 pt employees) HOURLY 19.00 19.63 20.27 20.89 21.53 22.18

Library  Prog/Comm Outreach (25 hours)  HOURLY 19.00 19.63 20.27 20.89 21.53 22.18

9A Staff Librarian  HOURLY 20.40 21.50 22.61 23.71 24.85 25.95

10 Asst. Recreation/Beach Director ANNUAL 42,261.00 46,114.00 46,934.00 49,271.00 51,620.00 53,952.00

(plus stipend – flat rate $8100)

10A Assistant Library Director HOURLY 23.13 25.24 25.69 26.97 28.25 29.52

11 Harbormaster/Shellfish Warden HOURLY 30.91 32.14 33.43 34.77 36.16 37.60

Executive Assistant ANNUAL 52,355.00 54,993.00 58,071.00 61,129.00 64,209.00 67,288.00

12 Recreation/Beach Director ANNUAL 49,682.00 52,661.00 55,822.00 59,170.00 62,720.00 66,151.00

(plus stipend - flat rate - $9,900)

12 Library Director  ANNUAL 57,346.00 60,785.00 64,434.00 68,300.00 72,398.00 76,359.00

13 Town Planner HOURLY 31.37 32.31 33.28 34.28 35.31 36.37

15 Insp. Of Buildings/Bldg. Comm. HOURLY 31.09 32.93 34.73 36.56 38.40 40.18

Town Clerk/Treasurer/Collector ANNUAL 85,133.00 88,242.00 91,349.00 94,522.00 97,357.00 100,278.00

17 DPW Director ANNUAL 88,598.00 90,658.00 92,718.00 94,779.00 96,839.00 98,900.00

18 Assistant Town Admin. ANNUAL 81,801.00 84,255.00 86,783.00 89,386.00 92,068.00 94,830.00

P1 No Current Position

P2 Parking Magistrate ANNUAL 5,012.00

P3 Plumbing/Gas Inspector Per Inspection 40.00

P3A Deputy Plumbing/Gas Inspector Per Inspection 32.00

P5 Wiring Insp. (plus $64/Week office hours) ANNUAL 10,799.00

P5A Deputy Wiring Inspector Per Inspection 32.00

P6 Dog Officer/Animal Control HOURLY 28.38

P8 Deputy Building Inspector Per Inspection 40.00

F5 FF/First Responder HOURLY 16.94

F15 FF/EMT/Basic HOURLY 22.58

F18 FF/EMT/Intermediate HOURLY 24.00

F19 FF/EMT/Paramedic HOURLY 25.41

F20 Squad Member flat rate ANNUAL 2,464.00

CLASSIFICATION & COMPENSATION SCHEDULE

NON-UNION & NON-CONTRACTFROM FISCAL YEAR 2017 RATES



80 

   

Grade Position STEP 1 STEP 2 STEP 3 STEP 4 STEP 5 STEP 6

1 Beach Attendant HOURLY 12.21 12.61 13.09 13.50 13.97 14.39

Election Teller (1 step) HOURLY 12.21

3 Beach Sales Clerk HOURLY 14.05 14.51 15.23 15.79 16.35 17.00

Recreation Counselor HOURLY 14.05 14.51 15.23 15.79 16.35 17.00

Council on Aging Van Drivers HOURLY 14.05 14.51 15.23 15.79 16.35 17.00

5 Beach Lifeguard HOURLY 15.69 16.74 17.74 18.77 19.78 20.87

5A Library Assistant (21 hours) HOURLY 17.52 18.40 19.31 20.46 21.68 22.93

6 Beach/Rec Assistant Program Supervisors* HOURLY 16.81 17.85 18.91 19.95 21.03 22.17

7 Office Assistant 1 HOURLY 18.98 19.66 20.34 20.97 21.66 22.33

Library Tech/Youth Serv (23 hours) HOURLY 18.98 19.66 20.34 20.97 21.66 22.33

8 Assistant Harbormaster (3 pt employees) HOURLY 19.29 19.93 20.57 21.20 21.85 22.51

Library  Prog/Comm Outreach (25 hours)  HOURLY 19.29 19.92 20.57 21.20 21.85 22.51

Beach/Rec Program Supervisors** HOURLY 19.29 19.92 20.57 21.20 21.85 22.51

9A Staff Librarian  HOURLY 20.71 21.83 22.95 24.07 25.22 26.34

10 Asst. Recreation/Beach Director ANNUAL 42,895.00 46,806.00 47,638.00 50,010.00 52,394.00 54,761.00

(plus stipend – flat rate $8100)

10A Assistant Library Director HOURLY 23.48 25.62 26.08 27.37 28.67 29.96

11 Harbormaster/Shellfish Warden HOURLY 31.37 32.62 33.93 35.29 36.70 38.16

Executive Assistant ANNUAL 53,141.00 55,818.00 58,942.00 62,046.00 65,172.00 68,297.00

12 Recreation/Beach Director ANNUAL 50,428.00 53,451.00 56,660.00 60,058.00 63,661.00 67,144.00

(plus stipend - flat rate - $9,900)

12 Library Director  ANNUAL 58,207.00 61,697.00 65,401.00 69,324.00 73,484.00 77,504.00

13 Town Planner (32 HRS/WK) HOURLY 35.31 36.37 38.19 40.10 42.11 44.22

15 Insp. Of Buildings/Bldg. Comm. HOURLY 31.56 33.42 35.25 37.11 38.98 40.78

17 DPW Director ANNUAL 89,927.00 92,018.00 94,109.00 96,201.00 98,292.00 100,383.00

18 Assistant Town Mgr. ANNUAL 83,029.00 85,519.00 88,085.00 90,727.00 93,450.00 96,253.00

19 Town Clerk/Treasurer/Collector ANNUAL 86,410.00 89,565.00 92,720.00 95,940.00 98,818.00 101,783.00

F5 FF/First Responder HOURLY 17.19 17.71 18.24 18.78 19.35 19.93

F15 FF/EMT/Basic HOURLY 22.92 23.61 24.32 25.05 25.80 26.57

F18 FF/EMT/Intermediate HOURLY 24.36 25.09 25.84 26.62 27.42 28.24

F19 FF/EMT/Paramedic HOURLY 25.79 26.56 27.36 28.18 29.03 29.90

F20 Administrative Captain ANNUAL 61,159.00 63,050.00 65,000.00 66,950.00 68,959.00 71,028.00

FS Squad Member flat rate ANNUAL 2,500.00

P2 Parking Magistrate ANNUAL 5,087.18

P3 Plumbing/Gas Inspector Per Inspection 40.00

P3A Deputy Plumbing/Gas Inspector Per Inspection 40.00

P5 Wiring Insp. (plus $64/Week office hours) ANNUAL 10,960.99

P5A Deputy Wiring Inspector Per Inspection 40.00

P8 Deputy Building Inspector Per Inspection 40.00

*

**

NON-UNION & NON-CONTRACT

CLASSIFICATION & COMPENSATION SCHEDULE

TO FISCAL YEAR 2018 RATES

Gr 6 to include: Assistant Head Lifeguard, Assistant Beach Supervisor, Lifeguard Training Coordinator, After School Program Group Leader, Summer Youth Program Coordinators

Gr 8 to include: Head Lifeguard, Head Assistant Beach Supervisor, After School Program Coordinator, Summer Youth Program Head Coordinator



81 

Appendix B –Omnibus Budget Fiscal Year 2018 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Appendix B 

Omnibus Budget 

Fiscal Year 2018 
 

  



82 

  

D
E
P
T

2
0
1
6

2
0
1
7

2
0
1
8

2
0
1
8

2
0
1
8

#
A

c
tu

a
l 
E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
s

U
p

d
a

te
d

 

A
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
ti
o

n
D

e
p

a
rt

m
e

n
t 

R
e

q
u

e
st

F
in

 C
o

m
 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n

S
e

le
c

tm
e

n
 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
Y

-o
-Y

 %

I.
  

G
E
N

E
R

A
L 

G
O

V
E
R

N
M

E
N

T
1

1
4

M
O

D
E
R

A
TO

R

P
e

rs
o

n
n

e
l

0
.0

0
1

5
0

.0
0

1
5

0
.0

0
1

5
0

.0
0

1
5

0
.0

0

E
x
p

e
n

se
s

2
0

.0
0

1
4

5
.0

0
1

4
5

.0
0

1
4

5
.0

0
1

4
5

.0
0

S
u

b
 T

o
ta

l
2
0
.0

0
2
9
5
.0

0
2
9
5
.0

0
2
9
5
.0

0
2
9
5
.0

0
0
.0

0
%

1
2

2
S
E
LE

C
TM

E
N

P
e

rs
o

n
n

e
l

1
5

,0
0

0
.0

0
1

5
,0

0
0

.0
0

1
6

,5
0

0
.0

0
1

6
,5

0
0

.0
0

1
6

,5
0

0
.0

0

E
x
p

e
n

se
s

7
9

,6
1

9
.3

1
9

1
,2

0
0

.0
0

1
3

4
,0

5
0

.0
0

1
1

1
,4

0
0

.0
0

1
1

1
,4

0
0

.0
0

S
u

b
 T

o
ta

l
9
4
,6

1
9
.3

1
1
0
6
,2

0
0
.0

0
1
5
0
,5

5
0
.0

0
1
2
7
,9

0
0
.0

0
1
2
7
,9

0
0
.0

0
2
0
.4

3
%

1
2

9
TO

W
N

 M
A

N
A

G
E
R

P
e

rs
o

n
n

e
l

4
0

2
,6

7
4

.3
8

4
9

3
,1

0
7

.0
0

5
1

5
,8

2
5

.0
0

4
9

4
,0

0
0

.0
0

4
9

4
,0

0
0

.0
0

E
x
p

e
n

se
s

2
2

,2
4

8
.1

6
1

5
0

,2
8

0
.0

0
3

1
,2

4
0

.0
0

3
1

,2
4

0
.0

0
3

1
,2

4
0

.0
0

S
u

b
 T

o
ta

l
4
2
4
,9

2
2
.5

4
6
4
3
,3

8
7
.0

0
5
4
7
,0

6
5
.0

0
5
2
5
,2

4
0
.0

0
5
2
5
,2

4
0
.0

0
-1

8
.3

6
%

1
3

1
F
IN

A
N

C
E
 C

O
M

M
IT

TE
E

E
x
p

e
n

se
s

1
2

9
.0

0
1

,0
0

0
.0

0
1

,0
0

0
.0

0
1

,0
0

0
.0

0
1

,0
0

0
.0

0

S
u

b
 T

o
ta

l
1
2
9
.0

0
1
,0

0
0
.0

0
1
,0

0
0
.0

0
1
,0

0
0
.0

0
1
,0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
%

1
3

2
R

E
S
E
R

V
E
 F

U
N

D

E
x
p

e
n

se
s

1
0

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

1
0

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

1
0

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

1
0

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

1
0

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

S
u

b
 T

o
ta

l
1
0
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
1
0
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
1
0
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
1
0
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
1
0
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
%

1
3

3
O

P
E
R

A
TI

N
G

 C
A

P
IT

A
L 

A
C

C
O

U
N

T

B
e

a
c

h
/R

e
c

re
a

ti
o

n

A
TV

1
0

,0
0

0
.0

0
1

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

1
0

,0
0

0
.0

0

P
o

li
c

e
 D

e
p

a
rt

m
e

n
t

B
a

lli
st

ic
 V

e
st

s 
X

 1
4

 O
ff

ic
e

rs
1

1
,5

5
0

.0
0

1
1

,5
5

0
.0

0
1

1
,5

5
0

.0
0

K
9

 C
ru

is
e

r
4

6
,0

0
0

.0
0

D
P
W

P
ic

k
-U

p
 T

ru
c

k
 (

1
)

8
0

,0
0

0
.0

0
8

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

8
0

,0
0

0
.0

0

D
u

m
p

 T
ru

c
k
/P

lo
w

/S
a

n
d

e
r

1
0

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

P
u

b
li
c

 B
u

il
d

in
g

 M
a

in
te

n
a

n
c

e

K
e

y
 F

o
b

 S
y
st

e
m

 (
P

S
F
)

2
5

,0
0

0
.0

0
2

5
,0

0
0

.0
0

2
5

,0
0

0
.0

0

S
a

fe
ty

 F
a

c
ili

ty
 G

u
tt

e
rs

 &
 T

ri
m

5
,0

0
0

.0
0

5
,0

0
0

.0
0

5
,0

0
0

.0
0

S
n

o
w

's
 F

ie
ld

h
o

u
se

 m
o

ld
 r

e
m

e
d

ia
ti
o

n
1

5
,0

0
0

.0
0

1
5

,0
0

0
.0

0
1

5
,0

0
0

.0
0

Tr
u

ro
 C

e
n

tr
a

l 
S
c

h
o

o
l

Te
c

h
n

o
lo

g
y
 U

p
g

ra
d

e
2

5
,0

0
0

.0
0

2
5

,0
0

0
.0

0
2

5
,0

0
0

.0
0

In
te

ri
o

r 
P

a
in

ti
n

g
1

5
,0

0
0

.0
0

1
5

,0
0

0
.0

0
1

5
,0

0
0

.0
0

Tr
u

ro
 P

u
b

li
c

 L
ib

ra
ry

S
p

a
c

e
 N

e
e

d
s 

A
n

a
ly

si
s 

A
ss

is
ta

n
c

e
1

5
,0

0
0

.0
0

R
e

p
la

c
e

 L
ib

ra
ry

 B
o

o
d

sh
e

lv
e

s 
(o

n
-

g
o

in
g

 p
ro

je
c

t)
6

,0
0

0
.0

0
6

,0
0

0
.0

0
6

,0
0

0
.0

0

TO
TA

L
3
4
9
,0

0
0
.0

0
3
2
9
,0

0
0
.0

0
3
5
3
,5

5
0
.0

0
1
9
2
,5

5
0
.0

0
1
9
2
,5

5
0
.0

0
-4

1
.4

7
%

TO
W

N
 O

F 
TR

U
R

O
  
F
Y

 2
0

1
8

 M
U

N
IC

IP
A

L 
O

P
E
R

A
TI

N
G

 B
U

D
G

E
T 

 R
E
Q

U
E
S
T 

S
U

M
M

A
R

Y

A
C

C
O

U
N

T 
TI

TL
E



83 

  

D
E
P
T

2
0
1
6

2
0
1
7

2
0
1
8

2
0
1
8

2
0
1
8

#
A

c
tu

a
l 
E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
s

U
p

d
a

te
d

 

A
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
ti
o

n
D

e
p

a
rt

m
e

n
t 

R
e

q
u

e
st

F
in

 C
o

m
 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n

S
e

le
c

tm
e

n
 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
Y

-o
-Y

 %

1
3

5
TO

W
N

 A
C

C
O

U
N

TA
N

T

P
e

rs
o

n
n

e
l

1
5

6
,1

5
9

.9
9

1
6

0
,9

8
9

.0
0

1
6

8
,2

9
5

.0
0

1
6

8
,2

9
5

.0
0

1
6

8
,2

9
5

.0
0

E
x
p

e
n

se
s

4
,3

7
9

.2
9

7
,3

5
4

.0
0

5
,9

6
0

.0
0

5
,9

6
0

.0
0

5
,9

6
0

.0
0

To
ta

l
1
6
0
,5

3
8
.2

8
1
6
8
,3

4
3
.0

0
1
7
4
,2

5
5
.0

0
1
7
4
,2

5
5
.0

0
1
7
4
,2

5
5
.0

0
3
.5

1
%

1
4

1
B

O
A

R
D

 O
F
 A

S
S
E
S
S
O

R
S

P
e

rs
o

n
n

e
l

1
4

8
,0

9
2

.9
5

1
6

9
,3

6
4

.5
9

1
6

3
,5

2
6

.0
0

1
6

3
,5

2
6

.0
0

1
6

3
,5

2
6

.0
0

E
x
p

e
n

se
s

3
7

,7
0

9
.6

6
3

5
,6

1
5

.0
0

2
4

,8
4

0
.0

0
2

4
,8

4
0

.0
0

2
4

,8
4

0
.0

0

To
ta

l
1
8
5
,8

0
2
.6

1
2
0
4
,9

8
0
.0

0
1
8
8
,3

6
6
.0

0
1
8
8
,3

6
6
.0

0
1
8
8
,3

6
6
.0

0
-8

.1
1
%

1
4

5
TO

W
N

 C
LE

R
K

/T
R

E
A

S
U

R
E
R

/C
O

LL
E
C

TO
R

P
e

rs
o

n
n

e
l

1
9

8
,9

4
6

.7
8

2
1

2
,0

4
8

.0
0

2
1

7
,0

5
2

.0
0

2
1

7
,0

5
2

.0
0

2
1

7
,0

5
2

.0
0

E
x
p

e
n

se
s

2
0

,4
6

4
.1

0
3

8
,7

7
5

.0
0

3
9

,3
2

5
.0

0
3

9
,3

2
5

.0
0

3
9

,3
2

5
.0

0

To
ta

l
2
1
9
,4

1
0
.8

8
2
5
0
,8

2
3
.0

0
2
5
6
,3

7
7
.0

0
2
5
6
,3

7
7
.0

0
2
5
6
,3

7
7
.0

0
2
.2

1
%

1
5

1
TO

W
N

 C
O

U
N

S
E
L

E
x
p

e
n

se
s

1
5

7
,3

4
2

.9
9

1
4

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

1
4

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

1
4

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

1
4

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

To
ta

l
1
5
7
,3

4
2
.9

9
1
4
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
1
4
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
1
4
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
1
4
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
%

1
5

2
V

A
C

A
TI

O
N

/S
IC

K
 L

E
A

V
E
 C

O
N

TI
N

.

P
e

rs
o

n
n

e
l

1
5

,0
0

0
.0

0
1

5
,0

0
0

.0
0

1
5

,0
0

0
.0

0
1

5
,0

0
0

.0
0

1
5

,0
0

0
.0

0

To
ta

l
1
5
,0

0
0
.0

0
1
5
,0

0
0
.0

0
1
5
,0

0
0
.0

0
1
5
,0

0
0
.0

0
1
5
,0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
%

1
5

3
R

E
S
E
R

V
E
 F

O
R

 A
D

M
IN

/S
TA

FF
 C

H
A

N
G

E
S
 /

 C
O

N
TR

A
C

T 
S
E
TT

LE
M

E
N

T

R
e

se
rv

e
d

 f
o

r 
Tr

a
n

sf
e

r
5

2
,0

6
9

.9
6

5
4

,2
8

3
.0

0
4

2
,8

3
0

.0
0

4
2

,8
3

0
.0

0
4

2
,8

3
0

.0
0

To
ta

l
5
2
,0

6
9
.9

6
5
4
,2

8
3
.0

0
4
2
,8

3
0
.0

0
4
2
,8

3
0
.0

0
4
2
,8

3
0
.0

0
-2

1
.1

0
%

1
5

3
R

E
S
E
R

V
E
 F

O
R

 E
M

P
LO

Y
E
E
 B

E
N

E
F
IT

 B
U

Y
-O

U
T

R
e

se
rv

e
d

 f
o

r 
Tr

a
n

sf
e

r
4

3
,3

3
1

.2
3

5
0

,0
0

0
.0

0
5

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

5
0

,0
0

0
.0

0
5

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

To
ta

l
4
3
,3

3
1
.2

3
5
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
5
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
5
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
5
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
%

1
5

4
C

O
LA

 U
N

D
IS

TR
IB

U
TE

D

R
e

se
rv

e
d

 f
o

r 
Tr

a
n

sf
e

r
8

7
,5

3
9

.6
8

2
3

,6
5

1
.0

0
4

6
,8

6
6

.0
0

4
6

,8
6

6
.0

0
4

6
,8

6
6

.0
0

TO
TA

L
8
7
,5

3
9
.6

8
2
3
,6

5
1
.0

0
4
6
,8

6
6
.0

0
4
6
,8

6
6
.0

0
4
6
,8

6
6
.0

0
9
8
.1

6
%

1
5

5
IN

F
O

R
M

A
TI

O
N

 T
E
C

H
N

O
LO

G
Y

 (
F
O

R
M

E
R

LY
 C

O
M

P
U

TE
R

 O
P
E
R

A
TI

O
N

S
)

P
e

rs
o

n
n

e
l

7
4

,8
7

6
.2

0
7

8
,2

7
9

.0
0

8
8

,3
9

9
.0

0
8

8
,3

9
9

.0
0

8
8

,3
9

9
.0

0

E
x
p

e
n

se
s

1
6

0
,7

4
9

.2
6

2
0

4
,4

4
6

.0
0

2
0

3
,4

4
7

.0
0

2
0

3
,4

4
7

.0
0

2
0

3
,4

4
7

.0
0

To
ta

l
2
3
5
,6

2
5
.4

6
2
8
2
,7

2
5
.0

0
2
9
1
,8

4
6
.0

0
2
9
1
,8

4
6
.0

0
2
9
1
,8

4
6
.0

0
3
.2

3
%

1
6

2
E
LE

C
TI

O
N

S
 A

N
D

 B
O

A
R

D
 O

F
 R

E
G

IS
TR

A
R

S

P
e

rs
o

n
n

e
l

3
,0

9
5

.4
1

7
,8

5
2

.0
0

4
,3

6
6

.0
0

4
,3

6
6

.0
0

4
,3

6
6

.0
0

E
x
p

e
n

se
s

2
,4

8
9

.2
9

3
,0

8
6

.0
0

4
,4

1
0

.0
0

4
,4

1
0

.0
0

4
,4

1
0

.0
0

To
ta

l
5
,5

8
4
.7

0
1
0
,9

3
8
.0

0
8
,7

7
6
.0

0
8
,7

7
6
.0

0
8
,7

7
6
.0

0
-1

9
.7

7
%

TO
W

N
 O

F 
TR

U
R

O
  

F
Y

 2
0

1
8

 M
U

N
IC

IP
A

L 
O

P
E
R

A
TI

N
G

 B
U

D
G

E
T 

 R
E
Q

U
E
S
T 

S
U

M
M

A
R

Y

A
C

C
O

U
N

T 
TI

TL
E



84 

D
E
P
T

2
0
1
6

2
0
1
7

2
0
1
8

2
0
1
8

2
0
1
8

#
A

c
tu

a
l 
E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
s

U
p

d
a

te
d

 

A
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
ti
o

n
D

e
p

a
rt

m
e

n
t 

R
e

q
u

e
st

Fi
n

 C
o

m
 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n

S
e

le
c

tm
e

n
 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
Y

-o
-Y

 %

1
6

8
C

A
B

LE
 T

V
 A

D
V

IS
O

R
Y

 C
O

M
M

IT
TE

E

E
xp

e
n

se
s

1
,0

1
5

.6
7

6
3

,0
5

0
.0

0
1
0
0

,8
8

0
.0

0
1

0
0
,8

8
0
.0

0
1

0
0

,8
8

0
.0

0

To
ta

l
1
,0

1
5
.6

7
6
3
,0

5
0
.0

0
1
0
0
,8

8
0
.0

0
1
0
0
,8

8
0
.0

0
1
0
0
,8

8
0
.0

0
6
0
.0

0
%

1
7

1
C

O
N

S
E
R

V
A

TI
O

N
 C

O
M

M
IS

S
IO

N

P
e

rs
o

n
n

e
l

1
,0

9
3

.5
1

2
,8

4
1

.0
0

1
,7

0
0
.0

0
1

,7
0

0
.0

0
1

,7
0

0
.0

0

E
xp

e
n

se
s

1
,4

7
4

.5
3

5
,2

1
7

.0
0

5
,6

2
1
.0

0
5

,6
2

1
.0

0
5

,6
2

1
.0

0

To
ta

l
2
,5

6
8
.0

4
8
,0

5
8
.0

0
7
,3

2
1
.0

0
7
,3

2
1
.0

0
7
,3

2
1
.0

0
-9

.1
5
%

1
7

5
P
LA

N
N

IN
G

 B
O

A
R

D

P
e

rs
o

n
n

e
l

2
,6

9
2

.5
9

3
,6

0
7

.0
0

3
,7

2
0
.0

0
3

,7
2

0
.0

0
3

,7
2

0
.0

0

E
xp

e
n

se
s

9
3

4
.5

0
2

7
5

.0
0

1
,0

2
0
.0

0
1

,0
2

0
.0

0
1

,0
2

0
.0

0

To
ta

l
3
,6

2
7
.0

9
3
,8

8
2
.0

0
4
,7

4
0
.0

0
4
,7

4
0
.0

0
4
,7

4
0
.0

0
2
2
.1

0
%

1
7

6
Z
O

N
IN

G
 B

O
A

R
D

 O
F 

A
P
P
E
A

LS

P
e

rs
o

n
n

e
l

1
,3

0
6

.8
0

4
,4

5
7

.0
0

4
,2

4
3
.0

0
4

,2
4

3
.0

0
4

,2
4

3
.0

0

E
xp

e
n

se
s

5
9

4
.7

8
8

0
5

.0
0

9
2
5

.0
0

9
2

5
.0

0
9
2

5
.0

0

To
ta

l
1
,9

0
1
.5

8
5
,2

6
2
.0

0
5
,1

6
8
.0

0
5
,1

6
8
.0

0
5
,1

6
8
.0

0
-1

.7
9
%

1
9

2
TO

W
N

 H
A

LL
 O

P
E
R

A
TI

O
N

E
xp

e
n

se
s

5
6

,2
1

7
.0

5
9

9
,4

0
0

.0
0

8
6

,5
5

0
.0

0
8
6

,5
5

0
.0

0
8

6
,5

5
0

.0
0

To
ta

l
5
6
,2

1
7
.0

5
9
9
,4

0
0
.0

0
8
6
,5

5
0
.0

0
8
6
,5

5
0
.0

0
8
6
,5

5
0
.0

0
-1

2
.9

3
%

1
9

5
A

N
N

U
A

L 
TO

W
N

 R
E
P
O

R
T 

A
N

D
 A

N
N

U
A

L 
TO

W
N

 M
E
E
TI

N
G

 W
A

R
R

A
N

T

E
xp

e
n

se
s

6
,7

9
4

.1
5

9
,0

0
0

.0
0

9
,0

0
0
.0

0
9

,0
0

0
.0

0
9

,0
0

0
.0

0

 
To

ta
l

6
,7

9
4
.1

5
9
,0

0
0
.0

0
9
,0

0
0
.0

0
9
,0

0
0
.0

0
9
,0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
%

1
9

6
TO

W
N

 E
N

E
R

G
Y

 C
O

M
M

IT
TE

E

E
xp

e
n

se
s

0
.0

0
1

,0
0

0
.0

0
1
,0

0
0
.0

0
1

,0
0

0
.0

0
1

,0
0

0
.0

0

To
ta

l
0
.0

0
1
,0

0
0
.0

0
1
,0

0
0
.0

0
1
,0

0
0
.0

0
1
,0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
%

1
9

9
M

U
N

IC
IP

A
L 

P
O

S
TA

G
E

E
xp

e
n

se
s

1
1

,5
0

1
.2

4
1

1
,8

6
1

.0
0

1
1

,9
8

1
.0

0
1
1

,9
8

1
.0

0
1

1
,9

8
1

.0
0

To
ta

l
1
1
,5

0
1
.2

4
1
1
,8

6
1
.0

0
1
1
,9

8
1
.0

0
1
1
,9

8
1
.0

0
1
1
,9

8
1
.0

0
1
.0

1
%

TO
TA

L 
G

E
N

E
R

A
L 

G
O

V
E
R

N
M

E
N

T
2

,1
7

1
,2

3
0

.2
3

2
,5

8
2

,1
3

8
.0

0
2

,5
9

3
,4

1
6

.0
0

2
,3

8
7

,9
4

1
.0

0
2

,3
8

7
,9

4
1

.0
0

-7
.5

2
%

II
. 

 P
U

B
LI

C
 S

A
FE

TY
2

1
0

P
O

LI
C

E
 D

E
P
A

R
TM

E
N

T

P
e

rs
o

n
n

e
l

1
,5

7
6

,5
8

9
.6

1
1

,7
4

7
,8

1
7

.0
6

1
,7

8
5

,1
1

3
.0

0
1

,7
8

5
,1

1
3
.0

0
1
,7

8
5

,1
1

3
.0

0

E
xp

e
n

se
s

1
3

2
,7

8
2

.0
7

2
1

0
,5

4
2

.0
0

2
1
1

,2
7

2
.0

0
2

1
1
,2

7
2
.0

0
2

1
1

,2
7

2
.0

0

To
ta

l
1
,7

0
9
,3

7
1
.6

8
1
,9

5
8
,3

5
9
.0

6
1
,9

9
6
,3

8
5
.0

0
1
,9

9
6
,3

8
5
.0

0
1
,9

9
6
,3

8
5
.0

0
1
.9

4
%

2
1

9
P
A

R
K

IN
G

 M
A

G
IS

TR
A

TE

P
e

rs
o

n
n

e
l

4
,9

6
2

.0
0

5
,0

1
2

.0
0

5
,0

1
2
.0

0
5

,0
1

2
.0

0
5

,0
1

2
.0

0

E
xp

e
n

se
s

7
8

8
.8

1
1

,0
0

0
.0

0
1
,0

0
0
.0

0
1

,0
0

0
.0

0
1

,0
0

0
.0

0

To
ta

l
5
,7

5
0
.8

1
6
,0

1
2
.0

0
6
,0

1
2
.0

0
6
,0

1
2
.0

0
6
,0

1
2
.0

0
0
.0

0
%

TO
W

N
 O

F 
TR

U
R

O
  

FY
 2

0
1

8
 M

U
N

IC
IP

A
L 

O
P

E
R

A
TI

N
G

 B
U

D
G

E
T 

 R
E
Q

U
E
S
T 

S
U

M
M

A
R

Y

A
C

C
O

U
N

T 
TI

TL
E



85 

  

D
E
P
T

2
0
1
6

2
0
1
7

2
0
1
8

2
0
1
8

2
0
1
8

#
A

c
tu

a
l 
E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
s

U
p

d
a

te
d

 

A
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
ti
o

n
D

e
p

a
rt

m
e

n
t 

R
e

q
u

e
st

F
in

 C
o

m
 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n

S
e

le
c

tm
e

n
 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
Y

-o
-Y

 %

2
2

0
F
IR

E
 D

E
P
A

R
TM

E
N

T/
R

E
S
C

U
E
 A

N
D

 E
M

E
R

G
E
N

C
Y

 M
E
D

IC
A

L 
S
E
R

V
IC

E
S

P
e

rs
o

n
n

e
l

5
6

0
,3

7
7

.4
6

8
2

4
,4

1
2

.0
0

8
1
5

,9
8

4
.0

0
8

0
5
,9

8
4
.0

0
8

0
5

,9
8

4
.0

0

E
x
p

e
n

se
s

1
5

9
,5

7
2

.6
5

1
6

9
,8

4
0

.0
0

1
5
0

,9
5

0
.0

0
1

5
0
,9

5
0
.0

0
1

5
0

,9
5

0
.0

0

To
ta

l
7
1
9
,9

5
0
.1

1
9
9
4
,2

5
2
.0

0
9
6
6
,9

3
4
.0

0
9
5
6
,9

3
4
.0

0
9
5
6
,9

3
4
.0

0
-3

.7
5
%

2
3

1
A

M
B

U
LA

N
C

E
 F

U
N

D

E
x
p

e
n

se
s

3
4

7
,4

8
4

.0
0

3
5

5
,8

1
7

.0
0

3
6
3

,8
2

3
.0

0
3

6
3
,8

2
3
.0

0
3

6
3

,8
2

3
.0

0

To
ta

l
3
4
7
,4

8
4
.0

0
3
5
5
,8

1
7
.0

0
3
6
3
,8

2
3
.0

0
3
6
3
,8

2
3
.0

0
3
6
3
,8

2
3
.0

0
2
.2

5
%

2
3

2
C

A
P
E
 &

 I
S
LA

N
D

S
 E

M
E
R

G
E
N

C
Y

 M
E
D

IC
A

L 
S
E
R

V
IC

E
S

E
x
p

e
n

se
s

1
,7

5
0

.0
0

1
,7

0
0

.0
0

1
,7

0
0
.0

0
1

,7
0

0
.0

0
1

,7
0

0
.0

0

To
ta

l
1
,7

5
0
.0

0
1
,7

0
0
.0

0
1
,7

0
0
.0

0
1
,7

0
0
.0

0
1
,7

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
%

2
4

1
B

U
IL

D
IN

G
/I

N
S
P
E
C

TI
O

N
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S
 D

E
P
A

R
TM

E
N

T

P
e

rs
o

n
n

e
l

1
9

2
,7

8
4

.5
4

1
8

7
,9

6
8

.0
0

1
8
2

,7
7

8
.0

0
1

8
2
,7

7
8
.0

0
1

8
2

,7
7

8
.0

0

E
x
p

e
n

se
s

3
,8

4
6

.0
5

5
,5

5
5

.0
0

6
,1

6
4
.0

0
6

,1
6

4
.0

0
6

,1
6

4
.0

0

To
ta

l
1
9
6
,6

3
0
.5

9
1
9
3
,5

2
3
.0

0
1
8
8
,9

4
2
.0

0
1
8
8
,9

4
2
.0

0
1
8
8
,9

4
2
.0

0
-2

.3
7
%

2
9

1
TR

U
R

O
 E

M
E
R

G
E
N

C
Y

 M
A

N
A

G
E
M

E
N

T 
A

G
E
N

C
Y

 (
C

iv
il
 D

e
fe

n
se

)

E
x
p

e
n

se
s

8
,5

0
8

.3
3

1
8

,7
5

0
.0

0
1
8

,7
5

0
.0

0
1
8

,7
5

0
.0

0
1

8
,7

5
0

.0
0

To
ta

l
8
,5

0
8
.3

3
1
8
,7

5
0
.0

0
1
8
,7

5
0
.0

0
1
8
,7

5
0
.0

0
1
8
,7

5
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
%

2
9

2
D

o
g

/A
n

im
a

l 
C

o
n

tr
o

l 
O

ff
ic

e
r

M
o

v
e

d
 t

o
 P

D
 B

u
d

g
e

t 
 2

0
1

8M
o

v
e

d
 t

o
 P

D
 B

u
d

g
e

t 
 2

0
1

8M
o

v
e

d
 t

o
 P

D
 B

u
d

g
e

t 
 2

0
1

8

P
e

rs
o

n
n

e
l

2
6

,4
1

6
.8

1
2

7
,6

6
4

.0
0

0
.0

0
0

.0
0

0
.0

0

E
x
p

e
n

se
s

1
,9

5
4

.3
3

8
,5

5
5

.0
0

To
ta

l
2
8
,3

7
1
.1

4
3
6
,2

1
9
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

TO
TA

L 
P

U
B

LI
C

 S
A

F
E
TY

3
,0

1
7

,8
1

6
.6

6
3

,5
6

4
,6

3
2

.0
6

3
,5

4
2

,5
4

6
.0

0
3

,5
3

2
,5

4
6

.0
0

3
,5

3
2

,5
4

6
.0

0
-0

.9
0
%

II
I.

  
P

U
B

LI
C

 E
D

U
C

A
TI

O
N

0
1
0
3
0
0

TR
U

R
O

 P
U

B
LI

C
 S

C
H

O
O

L

*
9

-4
4

  
R

E
G

U
LA

R
 D

A
Y

 P
R

O
G

R
A

M

1
0
0

0
 S

E
R

IE
S
 (

A
D

M
IN

IS
TR

A
TI

O
N

)
2

0
3

,6
6

8
.0

0
1

9
3

,9
6

9
.0

0

2
0
0

0
 S

E
R

IE
S
 (

IN
S
TR

U
C

TI
O

N
)

1
,3

2
6

,5
5

4
.0

0
1

,4
7

7
,8

6
8

.0
0

3
0
0

0
 S

E
R

IE
S
 (

O
TH

E
R

 S
E
R

V
IC

E
S
)

2
6

7
,1

7
3

.0
0

4
3

2
,3

3
2

.0
0

4
0
0

0
 S

E
R

IE
S
 (

M
A

IN
TE

N
A

N
C

E
)

3
0

8
,3

6
3

.0
0

3
1

4
,1

7
4

.0
0

5
0
0

0
 S

E
R

IE
S
 (

F
IX

E
D

 C
H

A
R

G
E
S
)

6
0
0

0
 S

E
R

IE
S
 (

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

 S
E
R

V
IC

E
S
)

1
,5

0
0

.0
0

1
,5

0
0

.0
0

7
0
0

0
 S

E
R

IE
S
 (

A
C

Q
 F

/A
)

  
  
 T

O
TA

L 
D

A
Y

 T
O

TA
LS

2
,1

0
7
,2

5
8
.0

0
2
,4

1
9
,8

4
3
.0

0

*
9

-4
5

  
C

H
A

P
TE

R
 7

6
6

 (
S
P

E
C

IA
L 

N
E
E
D

S
)

2
0
0

0
 S

E
R

IE
S
 (

IN
S
TR

U
C

TI
O

N
)

8
1

1
,1

5
8

.0
0

8
2

8
,5

2
3

.0
0

3
0
0

0
 S

E
R

IE
S
 (

O
TH

E
R

 S
E
R

V
IC

E
S
)

1
0

9
,2

7
1

.0
0

2
4

,3
5

0
.0

0

TO
W

N
 O

F 
TR

U
R

O
  

F
Y

 2
0

1
8

 M
U

N
IC

IP
A

L 
O

P
E
R

A
TI

N
G

 B
U

D
G

E
T 

 R
E
Q

U
E
S
T 

S
U

M
M

A
R

Y

A
C

C
O

U
N

T 
TI

TL
E



86 

 

D
E
P
T

2
0
1
6

2
0
1
7

2
0
1
8

2
0
1
8

2
0
1
8

#
A

c
tu

a
l 
E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
s

U
p

d
a

te
d

 

A
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
ti
o

n
D

e
p

a
rt

m
e

n
t 

R
e

q
u

e
st

F
in

 C
o

m
 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n

S
e

le
c

tm
e

n
 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
Y

-o
-Y

 %

5
0

0
0

 S
E
R

IE
S
 (

F
IX

E
D

 C
H

A
R

G
E
S
)

6
0

0
0

 S
E
R

IE
S
 (

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

 S
E
R

V
IC

E
S
)

7
5

0
.0

0
7

5
0

.0
0

7
0

0
0

 S
E
R

IE
S
 (

A
C

Q
 F

/A
)

9
0

0
0

 S
E
R

IE
S
 (

O
TH

E
R

 D
IS

)
1

7
2

,1
8

6
.0

0
1

0
6

,7
9

0
.0

0

  
  
 T

O
TA

L 
C

H
A

P
TE

R
 7

6
6

1
,0

9
5
,3

8
1
.0

0
9
6
2
,4

3
0
.0

0

A
D

U
LT

 E
D

U
C

A
TI

O
N

 &
 A

F
TE

R
 S

C
H

O
O

L 
A

C
TI

V
IT

IE
S

2
0

0
0

 S
E
R

IE
S

6
,0

0
0

.0
0

6
,0

0
0

.0
0

3
0

0
0

 S
E
R

IE
S

  
  
 T

O
TA

L 
A

D
U

LT
 E

D
/A

S
A

:
6
,0

0
0
.0

0
6
,0

0
0
.0

0

TO
TA

L 
N

E
T 

S
C

H
O

O
L 

B
U

D
G

E
T 

K
 -

 6
:

2
,9

0
4
,8

2
5
.8

4
3
,3

8
8
,2

7
3
.0

0

S
E
C

O
N

D
A

R
Y

 R
E
G

U
LA

R
 E

D
 -

 T
U

IT
IO

N
E
D

 O
U

T

IN
S
TR

U
C

TI
O

N

S
p

e
d

 P
a

ra
p

ro
fe

ss
io

n
a

l 
S
a

la
ry

S
p

e
d

 P
a

ra
p

ro
f 

Tu
to

ri
a

l 
S
u

p
p

o
rt

 7
 -

 1
2

S
p

e
d

 S
p

e
c

ia
lis

t 
Tu

to
ri
a

l 
S
u

p
p

o
rt

 7
 -

1
2

2
,0

0
0

.0
0

2
,0

0
0

.0
0

S
p

e
d

  
P

sy
c

h
 C

o
n

tr
a

c
t 

S
v

c
-G

ra
d

e
s 

7
-1

2
4

,0
0

0
.0

0
1

6
,4

3
0

.0
0

S
P

E
D

 I
n

st
ru

c
ti
o

n
a

l 
E
q

u
ip

m
e

n
t

1
0

0
.0

0
1

0
0

.0
0

S
P

E
D

 G
e

n
e

ra
l 
S
u

p
p

lie
s

1
0

0
.0

0
1

0
0

.0
0

S
P

E
D

 P
sy

c
h

o
lo

g
ic

a
l 
C

o
n

tr
a

c
te

d
 S

v
s-

G
ra

d
e

s 
7

-1
2

S
u

b
-T

o
ta

l:
6
,2

0
0
.0

0
1
8
,6

3
0
.0

0

O
TH

E
R

 S
C

H
O

O
L 

S
E
R

V
IC

E
S
 -

 R
E
G

U
LA

R
 D

A
Y

P
u

p
il 

Tr
a

n
sp

o
rt

a
ti
o

n
 (

7
 -

 1
2

 O
N

LY
)

1
4

8
,0

0
9

.0
0

P
u

p
il 

Tr
a

n
sp

o
rt

a
ti
o

n
 -

 S
p

e
d

2
7

,0
0

0
.0

0
1

6
8

,9
6

0
.0

0

S
u

b
-t

o
ta

l:
1
7
5
,0

0
9
.0

0
1
6
8
,9

6
0
.0

0

P
R

O
G

R
A

M
S
/O

TH
E
R

 D
IS

TR
IC

TS

Tu
it
io

n
 G

ra
d

e
s 

7
 -

 1
2

1
,5

5
0

,2
3

6
.0

0
1

,4
2

1
,7

0
0

.0
0

S
p

e
d

 T
u

it
io

n
s 

G
ra

d
e

s 
7

 -
 1

2
3

9
,2

7
3

.0
0

P
a

y
m

e
n

ts
 t

o
 N

o
n

-P
u

b
lic

 S
c

h
o

o
ls

2
0

0
,9

0
0

.0
0

2
1

1
,3

6
9

.0
0

P
a

y
m

e
n

ts
 t

o
 M

e
m

b
e

r 
C

o
lla

b
o

ra
ti
v

e

S
u

b
-t

o
ta

l:
1

,7
5

1
,1

3
6

.0
0

1
,6

7
2

,3
4

2
.0

0

TO
TA

L 
S
E
C

O
N

D
A

R
Y

 R
E
G

U
LA

R
 E

D
-T

U
IT

IO
N

E
D

 O
U

T:
1

,4
5

8
,1

4
5

.4
0

1
,8

5
9

,9
3

2
.0

0

TO
TA

L 
S
C

H
O

O
L 

B
U

D
G

E
T 

K
 -

 1
2

4
,3

6
2
,9

7
1
.2

4
5
,2

4
8
,2

0
5
.0

0
5
,4

4
5
,4

2
3
.0

0

C
A

P
IT

A
L 

P
R

O
J
E
C

TS
/E

X
P
E
N

S
E
S
-P

la
y

g
ro

u
n

d
 E

x
c

lu
si

o
n

1
2
5
,0

0
0
.0

0

0
1
0
3
0
0

TR
U

R
O

 P
R

E
-S

C
H

O
O

L 
P
R

O
G

R
A

M
1

1
4

,6
7

9
.0

0
1

2
4

,1
7

4
.0

0
1

2
4

,6
3

9
.0

0

TO
TA

L
1
1
4
,6

7
9
.0

0
1
2
4
,1

7
4
.0

0
1
2
4
,6

3
9
.0

0

0
1
0
3
1
6

C
A

P
E
 C

O
D

 R
E
G

IO
N

A
L 

TE
C

H
N

IC
A

L 
H

IG
H

 S
C

H
O

O
L 

A
S
S
E
S
S
M

E
N

T

 A
ss

e
ss

m
e

n
t 

D
u

e
3

6
,8

0
9

.0
0

1
9

,3
0

1
.0

0
5

7
,0

7
5

.0
0

To
ta

l
3
6
,8

0
9
.0

0
1
9
,3

0
1
.0

0
5
7
,0

7
5
.0

0

TO
TA

L 
P

U
B

LI
C

 E
D

U
C

A
TI

O
N

4
,6

3
9

,4
5

9
.2

4
5

,3
9

1
,6

8
0

.0
0

5
,6

2
7

,1
3

7
.0

0
5

,4
2

7
,1

3
7

.0
0

5
,4

2
7

,1
3

7
.0

0
0

.6
6

%

TO
W

N
 O

F 
TR

U
R

O
  

F
Y

 2
0

1
8

 M
U

N
IC

IP
A

L 
O

P
E
R

A
TI

N
G

 B
U

D
G

E
T 

 R
E
Q

U
E
S
T 

S
U

M
M

A
R

Y

A
C

C
O

U
N

T 
TI

TL
E



87 

 

D
E
P
T

2
0
1
6

2
0
1
7

2
0
1
8

2
0
1
8

2
0
1
8

#
A

c
tu

a
l 
E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
s

U
p

d
a

te
d

 

A
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
ti
o

n
D

e
p

a
rt

m
e

n
t 

R
e

q
u

e
st

F
in

 C
o

m
 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n

S
e

le
c

tm
e

n
 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
Y

-o
-Y

 %

IV
. 

 P
U

B
LI

C
 W

O
R

K
S

4
0

0
D

E
P
A

R
TM

E
N

T 
O

F
 P

U
B

LI
C

 W
O

R
K

S

P
e

rs
o

n
n

e
l

3
9

8
,2

9
0

.6
2

4
3

3
,1

8
9

.0
0

4
0

0
,2

6
1

.0
0

4
0

0
,2

6
1

.0
0

4
0

0
,2

6
1

.0
0

E
x
p

e
n

se
s

2
2

2
,9

9
6

.2
8

2
1

7
,2

6
0

.0
0

2
0

9
,6

6
6

.0
0

2
0

9
,6

6
6

.0
0

2
0

9
,6

6
6

.0
0

To
ta

l
6
2
1
,2

8
6
.9

0
6
5
0
,4

4
9
.0

0
6
0
9
,9

2
7
.0

0
6
0
9
,9

2
7
.0

0
6
0
9
,9

2
7
.0

0
-6

.2
3
%

4
2

3
S
N

O
W

 R
E
M

O
V

A
L

P
e

rs
o

n
n

e
l

3
1

,6
4

7
.4

5
1

1
,7

0
0

.0
0

1
1

,7
0

0
.0

0
1

1
,7

0
0

.0
0

1
1

,7
0

0
.0

0

E
x
p

e
n

se
s

1
7

,0
5

5
.9

7
1

3
,3

0
0

.0
0

1
3

,3
0

0
.0

0
1

3
,3

0
0

.0
0

1
3

,3
0

0
.0

0

To
ta

l
4
8
,7

0
3
.4

2
2
5
,0

0
0
.0

0
2
5
,0

0
0
.0

0
2
5
,0

0
0
.0

0
2
5
,0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
%

4
2

4
S
TR

E
E
T 

LI
G

H
TS

E
x
p

e
n

se
s

1
,8

7
0

.9
3

2
,7

0
0

.0
0

2
,2

0
0

.0
0

2
,2

0
0

.0
0

2
,2

0
0

.0
0

To
ta

l
1
,8

7
0
.9

3
2
,7

0
0
.0

0
2
,2

0
0
.0

0
2
,2

0
0
.0

0
2
,2

0
0
.0

0
-1

8
.5

2
%

4
3

0
TR

A
N

S
F
E
R

 S
TA

TI
O

N
/D

IS
P
O

S
A

L 
A

R
E
A

P
e

rs
o

n
n

e
l

1
9

9
,5

2
0

.0
4

1
7

3
,3

9
9

.0
0

1
7

5
,9

2
9

.0
0

1
7

5
,9

2
9

.0
0

1
7

5
,9

2
9

.0
0

E
x
p

e
n

se
s

1
7

2
,1

5
1

.4
0

2
0

5
,8

3
0

.0
0

2
2

0
,1

0
0

.0
0

2
2

0
,1

0
0

.0
0

2
2

0
,1

0
0

.0
0

To
ta

l
3
7
1
,6

7
1
.4

4
3
7
9
,2

2
9
.0

0
3
9
6
,0

2
9
.0

0
3
9
6
,0

2
9
.0

0
3
9
6
,0

2
9
.0

0
4
.4

3
%

4
7

0
P
U

B
LI

C
 B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 M

A
IN

TE
N

A
N

C
E

P
e

rs
o

n
n

e
l

2
1

3
,5

6
9

.1
9

2
5

7
,5

0
5

.0
0

2
6

4
,1

0
8

.0
0

2
6

4
,1

0
8

.0
0

2
6

4
,1

0
8

.0
0

E
x
p

e
n

se
s

2
1

1
,7

9
6

.5
0

2
3

7
,0

8
5

.0
0

2
0

8
,8

3
5

.0
0

2
0

8
,8

3
5

.0
0

2
0

8
,8

3
5

.0
0

To
ta

l
4
2
5
,3

6
5
.6

9
4
9
4
,5

9
0
.0

0
4
7
2
,9

4
3
.0

0
4
7
2
,9

4
3
.0

0
4
7
2
,9

4
3
.0

0
-4

.3
8
%

4
9

1
TO

W
N

 C
E
M

E
TE

R
IE

S

E
x
p

e
n

se
s

2
4

,0
2

2
.9

3
2

6
,3

0
0

.0
0

2
6

,3
0

0
.0

0
2

6
,3

0
0

.0
0

2
6

,3
0

0
.0

0

To
ta

l
2
4
,0

2
2
.9

3
2
6
,3

0
0
.0

0
2
6
,3

0
0
.0

0
2
6
,3

0
0
.0

0
2
6
,3

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
%

4
9

2
S
O

LD
IE

R
S
 &

 S
A

IL
O

R
S
 L

O
TS

  
  

  
E
x
p

e
n

se
s

2
,6

0
0

.0
0

2
,5

0
0

.0
0

2
,5

0
0

.0
0

2
,5

0
0

.0
0

2
,5

0
0

.0
0

To
ta

l
2
,6

0
0
.0

0
2
,5

0
0
.0

0
2
,5

0
0
.0

0
2
,5

0
0
.0

0
2
,5

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
%

4
9

9
C

A
P
E
 C

O
D

 G
R

E
E
N

H
E
A

D
 F

LY
 C

O
N

TR
O

L 
D

IS
TR

IC
T

P
u

rc
h

a
se

 o
f 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

1
,0

0
0

.0
0

1
,0

0
0

.0
0

1
,0

0
0

.0
0

1
,0

0
0

.0
0

1
,0

0
0

.0
0

To
ta

l
1
,0

0
0
.0

0
1
,0

0
0
.0

0
1
,0

0
0
.0

0
1
,0

0
0
.0

0
1
,0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
%

TO
TA

L 
P

U
B

LI
C

 W
O

R
K

S
1

,4
9

6
,5

2
1

.3
1

1
,5

8
1

,7
6

8
.0

0
1

,5
3

5
,8

9
9

.0
0

1
,5

3
5

,8
9

9
.0

0
1

,5
3

5
,8

9
9

.0
0

-2
.9

0
%

V
. 

 P
U

B
LI

C
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

5
1

0
H

U
M

A
N

 S
E
R

V
IC

E
S
 C

O
M

M
IT

TE
E

E
x
p

e
n

se
s

3
8

,3
5

0
.0

0
4

1
,3

0
0

.0
0

4
3

,1
0

0
.0

0
0

.0
0

0
.0

0

To
ta

l
3
8
,3

5
0
.0

0
4
1
,3

0
0
.0

0
4
3
,1

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
-1

0
0
.0

0
%

TO
W

N
 O

F 
TR

U
R

O
  

F
Y

 2
0

1
8

 M
U

N
IC

IP
A

L 
O

P
E
R

A
TI

N
G

 B
U

D
G

E
T 

 R
E
Q

U
E
S
T 

S
U

M
M

A
R

Y

A
C

C
O

U
N

T 
TI

TL
E



88 

 

D
E
P
T

2
0
1
6

2
0
1
7

2
0
1
8

2
0
1
8

2
0
1
8

#
A

c
tu

a
l 
E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
s

U
p

d
a

te
d

 

A
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
ti
o

n
D

e
p

a
rt

m
e

n
t 

R
e

q
u

e
st

Fi
n

 C
o

m
 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n

S
e

le
c

tm
e

n
 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
Y

-o
-Y

 %

5
1

1
H

E
A

LT
H

/C
O

N
S
E
R

V
A

TI
O

N
 D

E
P
A

R
TM

E
N

T

P
e

rs
o

n
n

e
l

1
2

4
,3

2
4

.0
7

1
5

6
,4

7
8

.0
0

1
5

9
,2

6
0

.0
0

1
5

9
,2

6
0

.0
0

1
5

9
,2

6
0

.0
0

E
xp

e
n

se
s

2
4

,0
2

7
.9

8
2

5
,3

3
2

.0
0

7
5

,4
0

7
.0

0
5

0
,4

0
7

.0
0

5
0

,4
0

7
.0

0

To
ta

l
1
4
8
,3

5
2
.0

5
1
8
1
,8

1
0
.0

0
2
3
4
,6

6
7
.0

0
2
0
9
,6

6
7
.0

0
2
0
9
,6

6
7
.0

0
1
5
.3

2
%

5
1

2
W

A
TE

R
 R

E
S
O

U
R

C
E
 O

V
E
R

S
IG

H
T 

C
O

M
M

IT
TE

E

E
xp

e
n

se
s

4
,4

7
2

.7
6

4
,0

9
0

.0
0

4
,0

9
0

.0
0

4
,0

9
0

.0
0

4
,0

9
0

.0
0

To
ta

l
4
,4

7
2
.7

6
4
,0

9
0
.0

0
4
,0

9
0
.0

0
4
,0

9
0
.0

0
4
,0

9
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
%

5
4

1
C

O
U

N
C

IL
 O

N
 A

G
IN

G

P
e

rs
o

n
n

e
l

2
1

7
,3

0
6

.0
5

2
5

5
,7

1
4

.0
0

2
5

7
,3

3
9

.0
0

2
5

7
,3

3
9

.0
0

2
5

7
,3

3
9

.0
0

E
xp

e
n

se
s

2
2

,1
0

0
.1

7
3

6
,9

3
9

.0
0

3
6

,8
1

1
.0

0
3

6
,8

1
1

.0
0

3
6

,8
1

1
.0

0

To
ta

l
2
3
9
,4

0
6
.2

2
2
9
2
,6

5
3
.0

0
2
9
4
,1

5
0
.0

0
2
9
4
,1

5
0
.0

0
2
9
4
,1

5
0
.0

0
0
.5

1
%

5
4

3
V

E
TE

R
A

N
S
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

E
xp

e
n

se
s

2
1

,8
6

6
.1

3
3

0
,2

1
4

.3
6

3
0

,9
4

0
.0

0
3

0
,9

4
0

.0
0

3
0

,9
4

0
.0

0

To
ta

l
2
1
,8

6
6
.1

3
3
0
,2

1
4
.3

6
3
0
,9

4
0
.0

0
3
0
,9

4
0
.0

0
3
0
,9

4
0
.0

0
2
.4

0
%

5
4

5
C

O
M

M
IS

S
IO

N
 O

N
 D

IS
A

B
IL

IT
IE

S

E
xp

e
n

se
s

5
4

.5
0

2
0

0
.0

0
2

0
0

.0
0

2
0

0
.0

0
2

0
0

.0
0

To
ta

l
5
4
.5

0
2
0
0
.0

0
2
0
0
.0

0
2
0
0
.0

0
2
0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
%

TO
TA

L 
P

U
B

LI
C

 S
E
R

V
IC

E
S

4
5

2
,5

0
1

.6
6

5
5

0
,2

6
7

.3
6

6
0

7
,1

4
7

.0
0

5
3

9
,0

4
7

.0
0

5
3

9
,0

4
7

.0
0

-2
.0

4
%

V
I.

  
C

U
LT

U
R

E
 &

 R
E
C

R
E
A

TI
O

N
6

1
0

TO
W

N
 L

IB
R

A
R

IE
S

P
e

rs
o

n
n

e
l

2
3

6
,5

1
1

.4
2

2
4

6
,8

2
1

.0
0

2
5

9
,6

5
2

.0
0

2
5

7
,1

5
2

.0
0

2
5

7
,1

5
2

.0
0

E
xp

e
n

se
s

1
2

1
,6

8
2

.0
5

1
4

4
,1

3
5

.0
0

1
4

4
,2

3
5

.0
0

1
3

8
,3

3
5

.0
0

1
3

8
,3

3
5

.0
0

To
ta

l
3
5
8
,1

9
3
.4

7
3
9
0
,9

5
6
.0

0
4
0
3
,8

8
7
.0

0
3
9
5
,4

8
7
.0

0
3
9
5
,4

8
7
.0

0
1
.1

6
%

6
3

0
R

E
C

R
E
A

TI
O

N
 P

R
O

G
R

A
M

S

P
e

rs
o

n
n

e
l

1
8

9
,6

2
4

.3
2

1
9

8
,5

9
4

.0
0

2
1

0
,6

5
9

.0
0

2
1

0
,6

5
9

.0
0

2
1

0
,6

5
9

.0
0

E
xp

e
n

se
s

5
3

,8
9

7
.0

7
5

9
,6

6
0

.0
0

6
1

,0
7

7
.0

0
4

6
,3

8
5

.0
0

4
6

,3
8

5
.0

0

To
ta

l
2
4
3
,5

2
1
.3

9
2
5
8
,2

5
4
.0

0
2
7
1
,7

3
6
.0

0
2
5
7
,0

4
4
.0

0
2
5
7
,0

4
4
.0

0
-0

.4
7
%

6
3

5
B

IC
Y

C
LE

 A
N

D
 W

A
LK

W
A

Y
S
 C

O
M

M
IT

TE
E

E
xp

e
n

se
s

1
,3

0
0

.4
0

2
,0

0
0

.0
0

2
,0

0
0

.0
0

2
,0

0
0

.0
0

2
,0

0
0

.0
0

To
ta

l
1
,3
0
0
.4
0

2
,0
0
0
.0
0

2
,0
0
0
.0
0

2
,0
0
0
.0
0

2
,0
0
0
.0
0

0
.0

0
%

6
4

0
B

E
A

C
H

 P
R

O
G

R
A

M
 O

P
E
R

A
TI

O
N

S

P
e

rs
o

n
n

e
l

1
7

0
,8

0
5

.2
0

1
9

3
,9

8
6

.0
0

1
9

1
,9

9
8

.0
0

9
3

,2
0

7
.0

0
9

3
,2

0
7

.0
0

E
xp

e
n

se
s

2
8

,7
4

0
.9

9
4

5
,6

9
5

.0
0

4
2

,2
4

0
.0

0
4

2
,2

4
0

.0
0

4
2

,2
4

0
.0

0

To
ta

l
1
9
9
,5

4
6
.1

9
2
3
9
,6

8
1
.0

0
2
3
4
,2

3
8
.0

0
1
3
5
,4

4
7
.0

0
1
3
5
,4

4
7
.0

0
-4

3
.4

9
%

TO
W

N
 O

F 
TR

U
R

O
  
FY

 2
0

1
8

 M
U

N
IC

IP
A

L 
O

P
E
R

A
TI

N
G

 B
U

D
G

E
T 

 R
E
Q

U
E
S
T 

S
U

M
M

A
R

Y

A
C

C
O

U
N

T 
TI

TL
E



89 

 

D
E
P
T

2
0
1
6

2
0
1
7

2
0
1
8

2
0
1
8

2
0
1
8

#
A

c
tu

a
l 
E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
s

U
p

d
a

te
d

 

A
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
ti
o

n
D

e
p

a
rt

m
e

n
t 

R
e

q
u

e
st

Fi
n

 C
o

m
 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n

S
e

le
c

tm
e

n
 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
Y

-o
-Y

 %

6
6

0
P
A

M
E
T 

H
A

R
B

O
R

 C
O

M
M

IS
S
IO

N

P
e

rs
o

n
n

e
l

0
.0

0
5

0
0

.0
0

3
5

0
.0

0
3

5
0
.0

0
3
5

0
.0

0

E
xp

e
n

se
s

9
9

,6
3

3
.3

7
1

0
2

,2
7

5
.0

0
1
0
4

,6
2

5
.0

0
1
0

4
,6

2
5
.0

0
1

0
4

,6
2

5
.0

0

To
ta

l
9
9
,6

3
3
.3

7
1
0
2
,7

7
5
.0

0
1
0
4
,9

7
5
.0

0
1
0
4
,9

7
5
.0

0
1
0
4
,9

7
5
.0

0
2
.1

4
%

6
6

1
P
A

M
E
T 

H
A

R
B

O
R

 O
P
E
R

A
TI

O
N

S
 /

 S
H

E
LL

FI
S
H

 W
A

R
D

E
N

P
e

rs
o

n
n

e
l

9
4

,1
3

7
.8

9
1

0
3

,4
8

1
.0

0
1
0
9

,3
6

5
.0

0
1
0

9
,3

6
5
.0

0
1

0
9

,3
6

5
.0

0

E
xp

e
n

se
s

1
1

,4
8

9
.1

2
2

4
,9

3
0

.0
0

2
9

,4
8

5
.0

0
2

9
,4

8
5

.0
0

2
9
,4

8
5

.0
0

To
ta

l
1
0
5
,6

2
7
.0

1
1
2
8
,4

1
1
.0

0
1
3
8
,8

5
0
.0

0
1
3
8
,8

5
0
.0

0
1
3
8
,8

5
0
.0

0
8
.1

3
%

6
9

1
H

IS
TO

R
IC

A
L 

C
O

M
M

IS
S
IO

N

E
xp

e
n

se
s

2
0

0
.0

0
2

0
0

.0
0

2
0

0
.0

0
2

0
0
.0

0
2
0

0
.0

0

To
ta

l
2
0
0
.0

0
2
0
0
.0

0
2
0
0
.0

0
2
0
0
.0

0
2
0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
%

6
9

2
H

IS
TO

R
IC

 R
E
V

IE
W

 B
O

A
R

D

E
xp

e
n

se
s

6
7

.5
2

1
2

5
.0

0
1

2
5

.0
0

1
2

5
.0

0
1
2

5
.0

0

To
ta

l
6
7
.5

2
1
2
5
.0

0
1
2
5
.0

0
1
2
5
.0

0
1
2
5
.0

0
0
.0

0
%

TO
TA

L 
C

U
LT

U
R

E
 &

 R
E
C

R
E
A

TI
O

N
1

,0
0

8
,0

8
9

.3
5

1
,1

2
2

,4
0

2
.0

0
1

,1
5

6
,0

1
1

.0
0

1
,0

3
4

,1
2

8
.0

0
1

,0
3

4
,1

2
8

.0
0

-7
.8

6
%

V
II

. 
 D

E
B

T 
S
E
R

V
IC

E
7

1
0

R
E
TI

R
E
M

E
N

T 
O

F
 D

E
B

T 
- 

P
R

IN
C

IP
A

L 
(G

E
N

E
R

A
L 

FU
N

D
)

E
xp

e
n

se
s

8
8

2
,0

2
5

.0
0

8
4

5
,4

0
0

.0
0

8
4
0

,4
0

0
.0

0
8
4

0
,4

0
0
.0

0
8

4
0

,4
0

0
.0

0

To
ta

l
8
8
2
,0

2
5
.0

0
8
4
5
,4

0
0
.0

0
8
4
0
,4

0
0
.0

0
8
4
0
,4

0
0
.0

0
8
4
0
,4

0
0
.0

0
-0

.5
9
%

7
5

1
IN

TE
R

E
S
T 

P
A

Y
M

E
N

TS
 -

 L
O

N
G

 T
E
R

M
 D

E
B

T

E
xp

e
n

se
s

3
3

5
,9

2
0

.0
0

1
6

3
,4

9
5

.0
0

1
3
4

,4
4

5
.0

0
1
3

4
,4

4
5
.0

0
1

3
4

,4
4

5
.0

0

To
ta

l
3
3
5
,9

2
0
.0

0
1
6
3
,4

9
5
.0

0
1
3
4
,4

4
5
.0

0
1
3
4
,4

4
5
.0

0
1
3
4
,4

4
5
.0

0
-1

7
.7

7
%

7
5

2
IN

TE
R

E
S
T 

P
A

Y
M

E
N

TS
 -

 S
H

O
R

T 
TE

R
M

 D
E
B

T

E
xp

e
n

se
s

2
,3

6
0

.8
5

1
2

,5
9

5
.7

3
1
5

,3
3

7
.0

0
1

5
,3

3
7

.0
0

1
5
,3

3
7

.0
0

To
ta

l
2
,3

6
0
.8

5
1
2
,5

9
5
.7

3
1
5
,3

3
7
.0

0
1
5
,3

3
7
.0

0
1
5
,3

3
7
.0

0
2
1
.7

6
%

TO
TA

L 
D

E
B

T 
S
E
R

V
IC

E
1

,2
2

0
,3

0
5

.8
5

1
,0

2
1

,4
9

0
.7

3
9

9
0

,1
8

2
.0

0
9

9
0

,1
8

2
.0

0
9

9
0

,1
8

2
.0

0
-3

.0
7
%

V
II

I.
  

E
M

P
LO

Y
E
E
 B

E
N

E
FI

TS
9

1
1

R
E
TI

R
E
M

E
N

T 
A

N
D

 P
E
N

S
IO

N

C
o

u
n

ty
 R

e
ti
re

m
e

n
t 

A
ss

e
ss

m
e

n
t

9
4

9
,1

1
5

.0
0

1
,0

1
0

,2
3

2
.0

0
1

,0
6
3

,7
8

4
.0

0
1
,0

6
3
,7

8
4
.0

0
1
,0

6
3

,7
8

4
.0

0

To
ta

l
9
4
9
,1

1
5
.0

0
1
,0

1
0
,2

3
2
.0

0
1
,0

6
3
,7

8
4
.0

0
1
,0

6
3
,7

8
4
.0

0
1
,0

6
3
,7

8
4
.0

0
5
.3

0
%

9
1

2
W

O
R

K
E
R

'S
 C

O
M

P
E
N

S
A

TI
O

N

W
o

rk
e

r'
s 

C
o

m
p

e
n

sa
ti
o

n
 I
n

su
ra

n
c

e
4

7
,4

8
3

.1
1

4
9

,0
0

0
.0

0
5
1

,0
0

0
.0

0
5

1
,0

0
0

.0
0

5
1
,0

0
0

.0
0

To
ta

l
4
7
,4

8
3
.1

1
4
9
,0

0
0
.0

0
5
1
,0

0
0
.0

0
5
1
,0

0
0
.0

0
5
1
,0

0
0
.0

0
4
.0

8
%

TO
W

N
 O

F 
TR

U
R

O
  

FY
 2

0
1

8
 M

U
N

IC
IP

A
L 

O
P

E
R

A
TI

N
G

 B
U

D
G

E
T 

 R
E
Q

U
E
S
T 

S
U

M
M

A
R

Y

A
C

C
O

U
N

T 
TI

TL
E



90 

 

D
E
P
T

2
0
1
6

2
0
1
7

2
0
1
8

2
0
1
8

2
0
1
8

#
A

c
tu

a
l 
E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
s

U
p

d
a

te
d

 

A
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
ti
o

n
D

e
p

a
rt

m
e

n
t 

R
e

q
u

e
st

F
in

 C
o

m
 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n

S
e

le
c

tm
e

n
 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
Y

-o
-Y

 %

9
1

3
U

N
E
M

P
LO

Y
M

E
N

T 
IN

S
U

R
A

N
C

E
 C

O
M

P
E
N

S
A

TI
O

N

U
n

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
C

o
m

p
e

n
sa

ti
o

n
3

1
,8

3
1

.9
3

9
2

,0
0

0
.0

0
7

3
,5

0
0

.0
0

7
3

,5
0

0
.0

0
7

3
,5

0
0

.0
0

To
ta

l
3
1
,8

3
1
.9

3
9
2
,0

0
0
.0

0
7
3
,5

0
0
.0

0
7
3
,5

0
0
.0

0
7
3
,5

0
0
.0

0
-2

0
.1

1
%

9
1

4
G

R
O

U
P
 H

E
A

LT
H

 I
N

S
U

R
A

N
C

E
 -

 E
M

P
LO

Y
E
R

 S
H

A
R

E

G
ro

u
p

 H
e

a
lt
h

 P
re

m
iu

m
 P

a
y
m

e
n

ts
1

,1
9

4
,9

3
4

.1
4

1
,4

0
5

,6
4

7
.0

0
1

,5
0

9
,9

3
9

.0
0

1
,5

0
9

,9
3

9
.0

0
1

,5
0

9
,9

3
9

.0
0

To
ta

l
1
,1

9
4
,9

3
4
.1

4
1
,4

0
5
,6

4
7
.0

0
1
,5

0
9
,9

3
9
.0

0
1
,5

0
9
,9

3
9
.0

0
1
,5

0
9
,9

3
9
.0

0
7
.4

2
%

9
1

5
G

R
O

U
P
 L

IF
E
 I
N

S
U

R
A

N
C

E
 -

 E
M

P
LO

Y
E
R

 S
H

A
R

E

G
ro

u
p

 L
if
e

 P
re

m
iu

m
 P

a
y
m

e
n

ts
1

,9
4

6
.6

4
2

,0
5

1
.0

0
2

,1
1

4
.0

0
2

,1
1

4
.0

0
2

,1
1

4
.0

0

To
ta

l
1
,9

4
6
.6

4
2
,0

5
1
.0

0
2
,1

1
4
.0

0
2
,1

1
4
.0

0
2
,1

1
4
.0

0
3
.0

7
%

9
1

6
F
IC

A
/M

E
D

IC
A

R
E
 I
N

S
U

R
A

N
C

E
S
 -

 E
M

P
LO

Y
E
R

 S
H

A
R

E

F
IC

A
/M

e
d

ic
a

re
 P

a
y
m

e
n

ts
1

0
0

,9
6

7
.7

5
1

1
7

,0
0

0
.0

0
1

2
0

,0
0

0
.0

0
1

2
0

,0
0

0
.0

0
1

2
0

,0
0

0
.0

0

To
ta

l
1
0
0
,9

6
7
.7

5
1
1
7
,0

0
0
.0

0
1
2
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
1
2
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
1
2
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
2
.5

6
%

TO
TA

L 
E
M

P
LO

Y
E
E
 B

E
N

E
F
IT

S
2

,3
2

6
,2

7
8

.5
7

2
,6

7
5

,9
3

0
.0

0
2

,8
2

0
,3

3
7

.0
0

2
,8

2
0

,3
3

7
.0

0
2

,8
2

0
,3

3
7

.0
0

5
.4

0
%

IX
. 

 M
U

N
IC

IP
A

L 
LI

A
B

IL
IT

Y
 I

N
S
U

R
A

N
C

E
S

9
4

5
M

U
N

IC
IP

A
L 

LI
A

B
IL

IT
Y

 I
N

S
U

R
A

N
C

E
S

In
su

ra
n

c
e

 P
a

y
m

e
n

ts
1

9
5

,3
4

2
.4

0
2

1
2

,8
1

5
.0

0
2

1
2

,8
1

5
.0

0
2

1
2

,8
1

5
.0

0
2

1
2

,8
1

5
.0

0
0

.0
0

To
ta

l
1
9
5
,3

4
2
.4

0
2
1
2
,8

1
5
.0

0
2
1
2
,8

1
5
.0

0
2
1
2
,8

1
5
.0

0
2
1
2
,8

1
5
.0

0
0

.0
0

TO
TA

L 
M

U
N

IC
IP

A
L 

IN
S
U

R
A

N
C

E
S

1
9

5
,3

4
2

.4
0

2
1

2
,8

1
5

.0
0

2
1

2
,8

1
5

.0
0

2
1

2
,8

1
5

.0
0

2
1

2
,8

1
5

.0
0

0
.0

0
%

G
R

A
N

D
 T

O
TA

L 
O

P
E
R

A
TI

N
G

 B
U

D
G

E
T:

1
6

,5
2

7
,5

4
5

.2
7

1
8

,7
0

3
,1

2
3

.1
5

1
9

,0
8

5
,4

9
0

.0
0

1
8

,4
8

0
,0

3
2

.0
0

1
8

,4
8

0
,0

3
2

.0
0

-1
.1

9
%

2
0
1
6

2
0
1
7

2
0
1
8

2
0
1
8

2
0
1
8

A
c

tu
a

l 
E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
s

U
p

d
a

te
d

 

A
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
ti
o

n
D

e
p

a
rt

m
e

n
t 

R
e

q
u

e
st

F
in

 C
o

m
 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n

S
e

le
c

tm
e

n
 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
Y

-o
-Y

 %

I.
  

G
E
N

E
R

A
L 

G
O

V
E
R

N
M

E
N

T
2,
17
1,2

30
.2
3

2,
58

2,
13
8.
00

2,
59

3,
41
6.
00

2,
38

7,
94

1.0
0

2,
38

7,
94

1.0
0

-7
.5
2%

II
. 
 P

U
B

LI
C

 S
A

F
E
TY

3,
01

7,
81
6.
66

3,
56

4,
63

2.
06

3,
54

2,
54

6.
00

3,
53

2,
54

6.
00

3,
53

2,
54

6.
00

-0
.9
0%

II
I.
  

P
U

B
LI

C
 E

D
U

C
A

TI
O

N
4,
63

9,
45

9.
24

5,
39

1,6
80

.0
0

5,
62

7,
13
7.
00

5,
42

7,
13
7.
00

5,
42

7,
13
7.
00

0.
66

%
IV

. 
 P

U
B

LI
C

 W
O

R
K

S
1,4

96
,5
21
.3
1

1,5
81
,7
68

.0
0

1,5
35

,8
99

.0
0

1,5
35

,8
99

.0
0

1,5
35

,8
99

.0
0

-2
.9
0%

V
. 
 P

U
B

LI
C

 S
E
R

V
IC

E
S

45
2,
50

1.6
6

55
0,
26

7.
36

60
7,
14
7.
00

53
9,
04

7.
00

53
9,
04

7.
00

-2
.0
4%

V
I.
  

C
U

LT
U

R
E
 &

 R
E
C

R
E
A

TI
O

N
1,0

08
,0
89

.3
5

1,1
22

,4
02

.0
0

1,1
56

,0
11
.0
0

1,0
34

,12
8.
00

1,0
34

,12
8.
00

-7
.8
6%

V
II
. 
 D

E
B

T 
S
E
R

V
IC

E
1,2

20
,3
05

.8
5

1,0
21
,4
90

.7
3

99
0,
18
2.
00

99
0,
18
2.
00

99
0,
18
2.
00

-3
.0
7%

V
II
I.
  

E
M

P
LO

Y
E
E
 B

E
N

E
F
IT

S
2,
32

6,
27

8.
57

2,
67

5,
93

0.
00

2,
82

0,
33

7.
00

2,
82

0,
33

7.
00

2,
82

0,
33

7.
00

5.
40

%
IX

. 
 M

U
N

IC
IP

A
L 

LI
A

B
IL

IT
Y

 I
N

S
U

R
A

N
C

E
S

1
9

5
,3

4
2

.4
0

2
1

2
,8

1
5

.0
0

2
1

2
,8

1
5

.0
0

2
1

2
,8

1
5

.0
0

2
1

2
,8

1
5

.0
0

0.
00

%
1
6
,5

2
7
,5

4
5
.2

7
1
8
,7

0
3
,1

2
3
.1

5
1
9
,0

8
5
,4

9
0
.0

0
1
8
,4

8
0
,0

3
2
.0

0
1
8
,4

8
0
,0

3
2
.0

0
-1

.1
9
%

TO
W

N
 O

F 
TR

U
R

O
  
F
Y

 2
0

1
8

 M
U

N
IC

IP
A

L 
O

P
E
R

A
TI

N
G

 B
U

D
G

E
T 

 R
E
Q

U
E
S
T 

S
U

M
M

A
R

Y

A
C

C
O

U
N

T 
TI

TL
E

TO
TA

L 
I 
- 

IX
:

O
P

E
R

A
TI

N
G

 B
U

D
G

E
T 

S
U

M
M

A
R

Y



91 

  



92 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

TRURO RECYCLES! 
Please consider recycling this document. 



1 

 

Agenda Item: 5C  

  

TOWN OF TRURO 
 Board of Selectmen Agenda Item  

 
DEPARTMENT:  Police 

 

REQUESTOR:   Chief Kyle Takakjian 

 

REQUESTED MEETING DATE: April 18, 2017 

 

ITEM:  Discussion of Truro Police and Immigration Enforcement 

 

EXPLANATION:  Attached for your review and discussion are a memorandum regarding immigration 

enforcement as it pertains to the Truro Police Department and a document outlining the Consular Notification 

Process when arresting a non-U.S. citizen.   

 

IMPACT IF NOT APPROVED:  Not applicable. 

 

SUGGESTED ACTION:  No motion needed.  
 

ATTACHMENTS:   

1. Memo Re: Immigration Enforcement 

2. U.S. Department of State-Arresting a Non-U.S. Citizen Consular Notification Process 

 

 



KYLE TAKAKJIAN KYLE TAKAKJIAN 
CHIEF OF POLICE 

CRAIG DANZIGER 
LT. / EXECUTIVE OFFICER

344 Route 6, Post Office Box 995, Truro, Massachusetts 02666-0995    
508-487-8730    www.truropolice.org 

Immigration Enforcement 

Many of our citizens have stopped to ask me what the policies are for the Truro Police Department 

concerning Immigration Enforcement.  In addition to your questions, the topic was recently discussed 

at length at the Nauset Interfaith Association meeting during which our local Police Chiefs and 

representatives from local Churches discuss current trends or events affecting our communities.   

I wanted to help our residents and visitors alike to understand a few important things regarding 

immigration and enforcement; the first is that the Truro Police Department treats everyone equally, 

regardless of their immigration status. Secondly, we are NOT authorized to enforce immigration laws 

by statute. Immigration Laws are Federal Laws under which we do not have enforcement authority.  

Finally, if you are a victim of a crime, we want you to feel free to come and report what has happened 

without fear.  

The reinstituted DHS Secure Communities Program (“S-Comm”) replaced the now discontinued 

Priority Enforcement Program (PEP) on January 25, 2017 as a result of a Presidential Executive Order. 

This S-Comm Program is a federal program administered solely by the Department of Homeland 

Security—Immigration and Customs Enforcement (DHS-ICE). It is in effect in all 50 states across the 

country as well as Puerto Rico. 

This federal program will in no way change how the Truro Police protects the public that we serve by 

enforcing existing state and local laws in a fair, impartial and professional manner to our entire 

community. I ask for your faith, confidence and trust in your Police Department as we continue to 

work together to ensure a safe and positive environment for Truro.  

The Secure Communities Program has no impact on individuals who are stopped (cited or warned) 

solely for Civil Motor Vehicle Infractions in Massachusetts.  If you are arrested for a crime, and you are 

not a US Citizen, a native from one of 47 specific countries, the State Department requires us to ask 

you if you wish for us to notify that Countries Consulate.  If yes, then we do, if no, then we don’t and 

that’s it – nothing further. 

If a person is arrested for any a criminal offense, the Truro Police Department sends fingerprints of 

those individuals to the State Police, who in turn sends them to the FBI, who then sends them to other 

Federal Agencies such as ICE / DHS.  

        Agenda Item: 5C1



 2 

What about ICE Detainers?  How are they handled?  A detainer is a request from Immigration and 

Customs Enforcement (ICE) to hold a suspect for up to 48 hours.  It is NOT a court order and we do not 

hold people on an ICE Detainer.  The Courts are notified of the detainer and may choose to hold 

someone based upon normal bail considerations, not the Detainer alone.  

If ICE comes to the Truro Police Station with an arrest warrant for an individual, we will provide 

assistance, just as we would to any other law enforcement agency.    

ICE and DHS Officials from Washington, D.C. and here in Massachusetts have assured Police Chiefs 

across the state over the past several years that they are absolutely committed to focusing their 

immigration enforcement resources in a manner that best promotes national security, public safety 

and border security. It is our understanding that ICE will continue to prioritize their enforcement and 

investigatory resources focusing on offenders who commit serious violent crimes, drug dealers, 

human trafficking, sex offenders, gang members, & suspected terrorists and also those who are 

considered “Illegal Re-entries” (those individuals previously ordered as deported by a court of 

competent jurisdiction).  

Finally, as members of the Truro Police Department, we remain committed to our community and will 

treat all that we encounter with the utmost of respect and dignity.  

 

SUMMARY 

The Truro Police have no authority to enforce federal immigration laws, and the implementation of 

the Secure Communities Program does not provide any additional authority or power to further 

immigration arrests by local police departments. 

We want to assure any residents or visitors of Truro, who are in need of services or who may be the 

victims of a crime, to ask us for help without fear of immigration issues. 

The Truro Police Department will not be involved in any type of profiling or targeting of any specific 

ethnic group or presumed nationality class because of the implementation of the DHS –ICE Secure 

Communities Program.  

This federal program will in no way change how the Truro Police protect the public that we serve by 

enforcing existing state and local laws in a fair and impartial manner.  

Finally, as members of the Truro Police Department, we remain committed to our community and will 

continue to treat all that we encounter with the utmost degree of respect and dignity.   

 
 

 



 Agenda Item: 5C2



 

TOWN OF TRURO 
P.O. Box 2030, Truro, MA  02666 

Tel:  508-349-7004, Extension: 110 or 124  Fax: 508-349-5505 

 
 

 

 
 

 
6.  CONSENT AGENDA 

A. Review/Approve and Authorize Signature:  

1. None 
B.   Review and Approve 2017 Seasonal Licenses: Jules Besch Stationers (Transient Vendor), North of 

Highland Camping Area, LLC (Transient Vendor and Pool Table License), Highland Links Golf Course 
(Transient Vendor and Common Victualer), and Terra Luna Restaurant (Common Victualer) 

C.   Review and Approve One Day Entertainment Licenses for Truro Vineyards of Cape Cod  
D.   Review and Approve Renewal of Aquaculture Development Area Licenses – Dana Pazolt, William and 

Cheryl Souza  
E.   Review and Approve Gary Sharpless for full membership and Dana Pazolt as Alternate on the Shellfish 

Advisory Committee 
F. Review and Approve Board of Selectmen Minutes: March 21, 2017 (Work Session), and March 27, 

2017 (Regular) 

 

 

 

 

 



 

1 

 

                                                               Consent Agenda Item: 6B 

TOWN OF TRURO 
                     Board of Selectmen Agenda Item  

 
DEPARTMENT:  Licensing Department  

 

REQUESTOR: Nicole Tudor, Executive Assistant 

 

REQUESTED MEETING DATE: April 18, 2017  

 

ITEM: Approval of 2017 Seasonal License Renewals                   

EXPLANATION: There are five 2017 seasonal license renewal applications and supporting documentation under the authority 
of the Board of Selectmen as Local Licensing Authorities.  There were no reported issues with these establishments in 2016.  If 
you approve this for renewal, the licenses will be issued only upon compliance with all regulations and upon receipt of the 
necessary documents and fees. 
 

Mass General Law  
Licenses & Permits Issued by 

Board of Selectmen  Names of Businesses  

Chapter 140 § 2 
 
 

Common Victualer-Cook, 
Prepare & Serve Food  

Highland Links Golf Course 
Terra Luna Restaurant  

                                   

Chapter 101 §2 
 

Transient Vendor  North of Highland Camp Area 
Jules Besch Stationers 

                                   

 Chapter 140 § 177 Licensing for Billiards, Pool or 
Sippio table or bowling alley 

Pool Tables (2) 

North of Highland Camping Area 
 

Does not require Sunday State License per MA Dept. of 
Public Safety 

 

IMPACT IF NOT APPROVED:  The Licenses will not be issued.  

 

SUGGESTED ACTION:  MOTION TO approve 2017 seasonal Common Victualer (food), Transient Vendor and Pool Table 

licenses for: Jules Besch Stationers, North of Highland Camping Area, Highland Links Golf Course, and Terra Luna 

Restaurant upon compliance with all regulations and receipt of the necessary documents and fees and compliance with 

requirements from the Health Department and Authorize the Chair to sign the Entertainment Application for Pool Table 

License.  

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Renewal Application for 2017:  Jules Besch Stationers 

2. Renewal Application for 2017:  North of Highland Camping Area LLC 

3. Renewal Application for 2017:  Highland Links Golf Course 

4. Renewal Application for 2017:  Terra Luna Restaurant  

 



Consent Agenda Item: 6B1









  Consent Agenda Item: 6B2















Consent Agenda Item: 6B3

































            Consent Agenda Item: 6B4





















 

1 

 

 

TOWN OF TRURO 
 

 Board of Selectmen Agenda Item  
 

DEPARTMENT:  Licensing Department 

 

REQUESTOR:  Nicole Tudor, Executive Assistant on behalf of Truro Vineyards of Cape Cod  

 

REQUESTED MEETING DATE:  April 18, 2017 

 

ITEM:  Approval of the One Day Entertainment Licenses for Kick-Off party and WAAM (Wednesday Night 

Wine Series) at Truro Vineyards of Cape Cod, 11 Shore Road.  

           

EXPLANATION:  MGL Chapter 140 § 181 provides local authority to license performance events.  The One 

Day Entertainment Applications for review and approval are for a Wednesday Evening Wine Series starting 

June 28-August 30, 2017 from 6:00-9:00pm with live music, not amplified and the Kick-Off party Saturday June 

24, 2017 from 2:00pm-6:00pm with live amplified music. The Entertainment applications have been reviewed 

by the Chief of Police.  

 

FINANCIAL SOURCE (IF APPLICABLE):  N/A 

 

IMPACT IF NOT APPROVED:  Truro Vineyards will not be able to hold their Kick-off party and their 

Wednesday Wine Series.  

 

SUGGESTED ACTION:  MOTION TO approve One Day Entertainment Licenses for Truro Vineyards  

for Saturday June 24, 2017 from 2:00pm-6:00pm and June 28-August 30, 2017 from 6:00-9:00pm at 11 Shore 

Road in Truro and to authorize the Chair to sign the applications.   

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. One Day Entertainment Application approved by Chief of Police (June 24) 

2. One Day Entertainment Application approved by Chief of Police (Wednesdays June 28-August 30) 

 

 

Consent Agenda Item:  6C 
 

 

 

 



   Consent Agenda Item: 6C1





           Consent Agenda Item: 6C2





 

1 

 

Consent Agenda Item:  6D 

TOWN OF TRURO 
               Board of Selectmen Agenda Item  

 
 

DEPARTMENT: Shellfish Department 

 

REQUESTOR:   Tony Jackett, Harbormaster/ Shellfish Constable 

 

REQUESTED MEETING DATE:  April 18, 2017 

 

ITEM: Aquaculture Shellfish License Renewals for William and Cheryl Souza, and Dana Pazolt 

 

EXPLANATION:  William and Cheryl Souza (Grants #9 & #10) need the BOS approval to continue to work on 

their shellfish grant which now qualifies for a five (5) year lease.  The Souza’s are current with permits and 

fees, and are in compliance with all rules and regulations. 

 

Dana Pazolt (Grants # 1-5) also needs the BOS approval to continue to work his shellfish grant which now 

qualifies for a five (5) year lease. Mr. Pazolt is current with permits and fees, and is in compliance with all rules 

and regulations. Dana would like to add his young assistant, John Burns, to the License. The Truro Regulations 

for Aquaculture Licenses (p. 3, #10) allow renewals subsequent to the first-time license to be made for five (5) 

year periods.   

 

FINANCIAL SOURCE (IF APPLICABLE):  N/A 

 

IMPACT IF NOT APPROVED:  The applicants will not be authorized to conduct aquaculture operations at the 

site and may discourage future applicants. 

 

SUGGESTED ACTION: Motion to issue an Aquaculture Development Area license to William and Cheryl Souza 

and Dana Pazolt for a term of five (5) years beginning April 18, 2017 and ending April 18, 2022. 

 

ATTACHMENTS:   

1. Souza Shellfish License Renewal Application , Propagation permit , Current Aquaculture License  

and 2016 report. 

2. Pazolt Shellfish License Renewal Application , Propagation permit , Current Aquaculture License  

and 2016 report. 

3. Aquaculture Regulations 

 

 



Consent Agenda Item: 6D1





Commonwealth of Massachusetts 

Division of Marine Fisheries 

251 Causeway Street, Suite 400 

 Boston, MA  02114  

617-626-1520 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
  

 
 
 
 
 

 
SHELLFISH AQUACULTURE PERMIT CONDITIONS               
Effective January 1, 2017 - December 31, 2017 
 

 

General Conditions 
 

1.  All activities conducted under authority of this permit shall be completed in accordance with the                                                                                                                                                              

     provisions of 322 CMR: 3.03: Transplanting Seed and Adult Oysters; 6.20: Minimum Sizes;                                                    

     15.00: Management of Marine Aquaculture; 16.00: Shellfish Harvest and Handling and all other Marine  

     Fisheries regulations and statutes pertaining to shellfish and shellfisheries, unless exempted by this permit. 

     No seed or adult shellfish may be introduced or planted into coastal waters without specific permission.                                                              
     

2.  Any violations of the conditions of this permit may result in fines, suspensions, revocation or       

     prosecution under pertinent sections of Chapter 130, MGL and 322 CMR (Code of Massachusetts       

     Regulations). 

 

3.  All activities conducted under authority of this permit are subject to inspection at any reasonable time by  

     MarineFisheries employees, Office of Law Enforcement environmental police officers and local shellfish              

     constables (Chapter 130, section 98, MGL). 

 

4.  An annual report must be filed with MarineFisheries indicating the amount and source of shellfish  

     obtained, grown and the amount of seed sold not later than February 28, 2017 (Chapter 130, section 65, MGL). 

 

5.  All shellfish obtained for transport and propagation must be of a species and from a source approved by      

     MarineFisheries. 

 

6.  The sale of shellfish for consumption must comply with the provisions of Chapter 130, sections 2, 80,  

      81, 82, and 83; 322 CMR, 7.00 and 16.00, and 105 CMR 533.000 (Department of Public Health) and provisions of  

      this aquaculture permit. 

 

7.  This permit is valid until midnight December 31, 2016 for the possession of seed shellfish on the aquaculture      

      site and for culling, if endorsed, unless sooner revoked for cause. 

 

8.   In the event of shellfish closures to protect public health under authority of Chapter 130, section 74A,     

      MGL such as those resulting from unusual rainfall, red tide or oil spills, no activity other than emergency    

      maintenance of gear and shellfish shall be conducted unless prior permission is obtained from the Division   

      of Marine Fisheries or the local shellfish constable who must notify MarineFisheries. 

 

 9.  All permit holders are required to maintain a list of individuals authorized to work on the permit holder’s licensed                                        

       aquaculture site. Permit holders are required to update the list regularly and to provide a copy of the most recent            

       list of authorized individuals to their local Shellfish Constable. Non-permitted individuals who are authorized to 

       work on an aquaculture site are allowed to transport seed or market size shellfish for culling and/or over                

       wintering if they are named on the list. Non-permitted employees may sell shellfish to a wholesale dealer on  

       behalf of their employer if they possess an Employee Transaction Card issued by MarineFisheries. 

 

 

 

 

WILLIAM H. SOUZA 

SOUZA FISHING CORP. 

P.O. BOX 363 

NORTH TRURO, MA. 02652 

 

169493 



 

 

10. Bulk Tagging for Culling and Over Wintering 

       If a permit is endorsed for off-site culling or off-site over wintering, the permit holder may bulk tag individual  

       lots of shellfish during transport to and from the aquaculture license site and the off-site location. 

 

A single green water proof tag may be used indicating the permit holders name, Shellfish Aquaculture Permit number, 

date of removal, and location of the licensed site (town and water body), number of containers in the lot with the following 

statement: All shellfish containers in this lot have the same removal date and are from the same licensed site. 

 

Additionally, one of the following statements must be on the tag: 

 1. Aquaculturally Reared :To be culled or overwintered. 

 2. Aquaculturally Reared : Culled or over wintered, for return License Site. 

    

 

       The permit holder shall have a bound log book with the same information on the green tag recorded in ink and the   

       book shall be kept with the shellfish in the cargo area and not in the driving compartment of the motor vehicle.  

 

     BULK TAGGING OF SHELLFISH IN TRANSPORT FOR COMMERCIAL PURPOSES IS PROHIBITED. 

 

     It is unlawful for any person to possess or transport shellfish (shellstock) for commercial purposes that is not    

     tagged, as required in 322 CMR 16.03.   

                                                                            

 

Endorsement Conditions 
 

A. Grow-out 
 

The permit holder is authorized to grow the shellfish as endorsed at A. from sources approved by MarineFisheries. 

 

B. Intermediate Grow-out   

                                                                                                                                                                             
This permit authorizes the intermediate grow out of seed in an upweller, downweller, flupsy or other device as endorsed in B. If 

these devices are in coastal waters they must be located on the permit holder’s privately licensed aquaculture site. Upwellers 

and downwellers may also be land based or located on a dock if authorized by this permit at B.  

 

1. Prior to transport and transplant of any seed from an intermediate grow out site to a licensed aquaculture site, or      

    other location, permission must be obtained from MarineFisheries through an amendment to this permit. 

    MarineFisheries may also require shellfish disease testing before such permission is granted. 

                                                                                                                               

C. Off -Site Culling 
 
Permitted shellfish seed and/or market sized shellfish may be transported to an off-site location away from the permit holder’s 

private shellfish aquaculture site as endorsed at C. for the purpose of culling subject to the following conditions except for 

market sized oysters during the Vibrio parahaemolyticus (Vp) control period (May 21- October 18) which must adhere to 

Vibrio Management regulations in 322 CMR 16.05: (4). 

 

1. The permit holder informs the local shellfish constable that their permit is endorsed for off-site culling. 

 

2. All shellfish in transport to and from the off-site culling location shall adhere to the Bulk Tagging provisions at  

    General Conditions, no.10 of this permit or each container may be individually tagged using the same record 

    keeping requirements at the permit holder’s discretion. 

 

3. This permit endorsement does not authorize the possession or transport of seed shellfish of any kind other than     

     provided for in this permit. 

 

D. Seed Sales 
 
This permit authorizes the sale of seed shellfish as endorsed at B. subject to the following conditions: 

 

1.  Sale of seed shellfish shall be made only to persons holding a valid aquaculture or propagation permit                                                                                                                              

     from MarineFisheries or to persons holding a similar permit from other states or provinces. 

 

2. Prior to the sale or transplant of any species of seed or adult shellfish from a licensed aquaculture site, upweller                           

    or other location permission must be obtained from Marine Fisheries through an amendment to this permit. 

    MarineFisheries may also require shellfish disease testing before such permission is granted. 

 

 



 

E. Over Wintering 
 

This permit authorizes the over wintering of seed and/or market sized oysters at other than the aquaculture site as endorsed at E. 

subject to the following conditions: 

 

1.  Over wintering of seed or market size oysters off the licensed culture site is only authorized for the purpose of      

     re-planting on the permit holder’s aquaculture site from which the shellfish originated. 

 

2. Oysters, both seed and market size may be stored or overwintered out of water in pits, or cold storage units as   

    endorsed at E. 

 

3.  No direct marketing of shellfish is allowed from any type of land based over wintering operation. All market sized  

     oysters over wintered out of water must be re-submerged  (re-conditioned) for a minimum of 14 days prior to   

     harvest for human consumption.    

 

4.  In water, off-site over wintering of seed oysters shall only be conducted at another licensed site in the same   

      growing area as authorized at E.                 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                  

5.  This permit does not authorize the storage of petite (2.5 -3 inches) or adult (3 inch legal sized) shellfish for the                

      purpose of marketing for human consumption at other than the permit holders aquaculture site. 

 

6.  All shellfish in transport to and from the over wintering location shall adhere to the Bulk Tagging provisions at  

     General Conditions, no. 10 of this permit or each container may be individually tagged using the same record 

      keeping requirements, at the permit holder’s discretion.  

                              

F. Spat Collection 
 
The permit holder is authorized to conduct shellfish spat collection as endorsed at F. subject to the following conditions: 

 

1.  Off site spat collection if endorsed shall commence on June, 15 or later and cease on or before                                     

     September, 15. No gear shall be placed in the water, prior to or remain in the water after the inclusive           

     dates. This does not release the permit holder from obtaining local permission. 

 

2. Off-site spat collection may only be conducted in the same body of water where the permit holder’s license site is  

    located as determined by MarineFisheries and endorsed at F. 

 

3.  On site spat collection shall be in accordance with the provisions of the Aquaculture Guidelines of the  

     Department of the Army,  General Permit for the Commonwealth of Massachusetts. 

 

G. Sale of Undersized (Seed) Shellfish for Market Consumption 
 
MarineFisheries allows the sale of undersized “aquaculture reared” or “farm raised” quahogs, oysters and surf clams 

otherwise known as “seed” for market consumption subject to MarineFisheries regulations at 322 CMR: 6.08, 6.20 and 14.03, 

and the conditions of this permit: 

 

1. Only aquaculturally reared oysters, quahogs and surf clams grown on and harvested from the permit holders licensed private   

    aquaculture site may be sold under this authorization.  No naturally occurring shellfish from public beds below the 

wild minimum size defined at 322 CMR 6.08 and 6.20 may be harvested and sold as aquaculture reared. 
 

2.  All containers that hold aquaculture raised oysters, quahogs and surf clams that are smaller than the wild minimum size 

must have the words “AQUACULTURE REARED” or “FARM RAISED” on the shellfish tag. 

 

3.  Aquaculture reared quahogs shall only be sold  outside of  the Commonwealth. Propagation permit holders shall only sell 

undersized quahogs to authorized wholesale dealers who are approved primary buyers by the Director pursuant to 322 CMR: 7. 

07: Dealers Acting as Primary Buyers, and 14.03: Regulation of Aquaculture Products and certified by the Department of 

Public Health for transport and sale of shellfish outside the Commonwealth.  

 

4.  All records concerning this activity shall be open to inspection by Marine Fisheries at any time, and       

     areas utilized for storage and packing of same shall be open to inspection by any officer authorized to  

     enforce the shellfish rules and regulations of the Commonwealth. 

                                                                                                            

 
                                                                                                            

       Rev 12/21/16 (JMH) 

 



Commonwealth of Massachusetts 
Division of Marine Fisheries 
251 Causeway Street, Suite 400 

Boston, Massachusetts  02114 

(617)626-1520 

fax (617)626-1509 

 
Shellfish Propagation/Private Aquaculture Permit No. 169493 

 

Class 3  Type 1 

 

FEE: $10.00       ISSUED: 1/18/2017   EXPIRES: 12/31/2017 

 

TO WHOM IT MAY CONCERN: 

 

Pursuant to Paragraphs 2 and 3, Section 17; Sections 69, 75, 80 and 83 of Chapter 130 of the 

Massachusetts  General Laws and 322 CMR 3.03; 6.05; 6.08; 6.10; 6.20; 7.01(4)(d) and 15:00, 

permission is hereby given, subject to the attached Shellfish Aquaculture Permit Conditions to: 

 

WILLIAM H. SOUZA 

SOUZA FISHING CORP. 

P.O. BOX 363 

NORTH TRURO, MA. 02652 

 

To possess naturally occurring seed shellfish, seed shellfish transplanted under previously issued permits 

and to transplant seed and/or adult shellfish from Division of Marine Fisheries approved sources at and to 

the permit holders private shellfish aquaculture site, licensed under authority of Chapter 130, Section 57 

of the Massachusetts General Laws; or at other locations authorized by endorsements made part of this 

permit; or to municipal propagation sites maintained under authority of Chapter 130, section 52 and 54 

for cultivation of shellfish by coastal municipalities. 

 

LOCATION OF AQUACULTURE SITE(S): TOWN: TRURO      DSGA: CCB4   

SITE NUMBER: 9-10 WATERBODY: PROVINCETOWN HARBOR  LOCATION: TRURO ADA 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

C. OFF-SITE CULLING 

 

OFF-SITE CULLING ALLOWED: N 

 

LOCATION:  

 
David E. Pierce 

Director 

 
 Charles D. Baker 

Governor 

Karyn E. Polito 

Lieutenant Governor 

Matthew A. Beaton 

Secretary 

George N. Peterson, Jr. 

Commissioner 

Mary-Lee King 

Deputy Commissioner 

 

A. GROW OUT AND SEED PURCHASES         
SOURCE   

FISHER'S ISLAND       
 

B. INTERMEDIATE GROWOUT 

ON-SITE: N 

OFF-SITE: N 

 

TYPE:  

 

LOCATION:  

D. SEED SALES 

 

SEED SALES ALLOWED: N  

SEE SPECIAL CONDITIONS 

 

SPECIES 

OYSTER     
 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

______________________________ 

Approved by: 

David E. Pierce 

Director 

 

 

 
CC TO: 

SHELLFISH CONSTABLE(S): TRURO 

DMF: J.M. HICKEY, T. SHIELDS, C. SCHILLACI, D. MCKIERNAN  

E. OFF-SITE OVERWINTERING 

 

OVERWINTERING ALLOWED: y 

 

METHOD: COOLER 

 

LOCATION: 4 PROFESSIONAL HEIGHTS, North 

Truro 

 

F. SPAT COLLECTION 

 

SPAT COLLECTION ALLOWED: N 

 

OFF-SITE: N 

 

LOCATION:  

 

METHOD:  

 

G. SALE OF UNDERSIZE SHELLFISH FOR CONSUMPTION: 

 

PETITE SALES: Y    

 

SPECIES: OYSTERS 

H. SPECIAL CONDITIONS: 

 

ALL SEED SOURCES LISTED ON THIS PERMIT MUST BE ADDED TO THE 2017 DIVISION OF MARINE 

FISHERIES APPROVED SOURCE LIST PRIOR TO PLANTING. IF YOU WISH TO PURCHASE SEED FROM 

SOURCES NOT LISTED ON THIS PERMIT YOU MUST FIRST OBTAIN AUTHORIZATION FROM MARINE 

FISHERIES. 







            Consent Agenda Item: 6D2





Commonwealth of Massachusetts 

Division of Marine Fisheries 

251 Causeway Street, Suite 400 

 Boston, MA  02114  

617-626-1520 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
  

 
 
 
 
 

 
SHELLFISH AQUACULTURE PERMIT CONDITIONS               
Effective January 1, 2017 - December 31, 2017 
 

 

General Conditions 
 

1.  All activities conducted under authority of this permit shall be completed in accordance with the                                                                                                                                                              

     provisions of 322 CMR: 3.03: Transplanting Seed and Adult Oysters; 6.20: Minimum Sizes;                                                    

     15.00: Management of Marine Aquaculture; 16.00: Shellfish Harvest and Handling and all other Marine  

     Fisheries regulations and statutes pertaining to shellfish and shellfisheries, unless exempted by this permit. 

     No seed or adult shellfish may be introduced or planted into coastal waters without specific permission.                                                              
     

2.  Any violations of the conditions of this permit may result in fines, suspensions, revocation or       

     prosecution under pertinent sections of Chapter 130, MGL and 322 CMR (Code of Massachusetts       

     Regulations). 

 

3.  All activities conducted under authority of this permit are subject to inspection at any reasonable time by  

     MarineFisheries employees, Office of Law Enforcement environmental police officers and local shellfish              

     constables (Chapter 130, section 98, MGL). 

 

4.  An annual report must be filed with MarineFisheries indicating the amount and source of shellfish  

     obtained, grown and the amount of seed sold not later than February 28, 2017 (Chapter 130, section 65, MGL). 

 

5.  All shellfish obtained for transport and propagation must be of a species and from a source approved by      

     MarineFisheries. 

 

6.  The sale of shellfish for consumption must comply with the provisions of Chapter 130, sections 2, 80,  

      81, 82, and 83; 322 CMR, 7.00 and 16.00, and 105 CMR 533.000 (Department of Public Health) and provisions of  

      this aquaculture permit. 

 

7.  This permit is valid until midnight December 31, 2016 for the possession of seed shellfish on the aquaculture      

      site and for culling, if endorsed, unless sooner revoked for cause. 

 

8.   In the event of shellfish closures to protect public health under authority of Chapter 130, section 74A,     

      MGL such as those resulting from unusual rainfall, red tide or oil spills, no activity other than emergency    

      maintenance of gear and shellfish shall be conducted unless prior permission is obtained from the Division   

      of Marine Fisheries or the local shellfish constable who must notify MarineFisheries. 

 

 9.  All permit holders are required to maintain a list of individuals authorized to work on the permit holder’s licensed                                        

       aquaculture site. Permit holders are required to update the list regularly and to provide a copy of the most recent            

       list of authorized individuals to their local Shellfish Constable. Non-permitted individuals who are authorized to 

       work on an aquaculture site are allowed to transport seed or market size shellfish for culling and/or over                

       wintering if they are named on the list. Non-permitted employees may sell shellfish to a wholesale dealer on  

       behalf of their employer if they possess an Employee Transaction Card issued by MarineFisheries. 

 

 

 

 

DANA PAZOLT  
P.O. BOX 126 

NORTH TRURO, MA. 02652 

 

165432 



 

 

10. Bulk Tagging for Culling and Over Wintering 

       If a permit is endorsed for off-site culling or off-site over wintering, the permit holder may bulk tag individual  

       lots of shellfish during transport to and from the aquaculture license site and the off-site location. 

 

A single green water proof tag may be used indicating the permit holders name, Shellfish Aquaculture Permit number, 

date of removal, and location of the licensed site (town and water body), number of containers in the lot with the following 

statement: All shellfish containers in this lot have the same removal date and are from the same licensed site. 

 

Additionally, one of the following statements must be on the tag: 

 1. Aquaculturally Reared :To be culled or overwintered. 

 2. Aquaculturally Reared : Culled or over wintered, for return License Site. 

    

 

       The permit holder shall have a bound log book with the same information on the green tag recorded in ink and the   

       book shall be kept with the shellfish in the cargo area and not in the driving compartment of the motor vehicle.  

 

     BULK TAGGING OF SHELLFISH IN TRANSPORT FOR COMMERCIAL PURPOSES IS PROHIBITED. 

 

     It is unlawful for any person to possess or transport shellfish (shellstock) for commercial purposes that is not    

     tagged, as required in 322 CMR 16.03.   

                                                                            

 

Endorsement Conditions 
 

A. Grow-out 
 

The permit holder is authorized to grow the shellfish as endorsed at A. from sources approved by MarineFisheries. 

 

B. Intermediate Grow-out   

                                                                                                                                                                             
This permit authorizes the intermediate grow out of seed in an upweller, downweller, flupsy or other device as endorsed in B. If 

these devices are in coastal waters they must be located on the permit holder’s privately licensed aquaculture site. Upwellers 

and downwellers may also be land based or located on a dock if authorized by this permit at B.  

 

1. Prior to transport and transplant of any seed from an intermediate grow out site to a licensed aquaculture site, or      

    other location, permission must be obtained from MarineFisheries through an amendment to this permit. 

    MarineFisheries may also require shellfish disease testing before such permission is granted. 

                                                                                                                               

C. Off -Site Culling 
 
Permitted shellfish seed and/or market sized shellfish may be transported to an off-site location away from the permit holder’s 

private shellfish aquaculture site as endorsed at C. for the purpose of culling subject to the following conditions except for 

market sized oysters during the Vibrio parahaemolyticus (Vp) control period (May 21- October 18) which must adhere to 

Vibrio Management regulations in 322 CMR 16.05: (4). 

 

1. The permit holder informs the local shellfish constable that their permit is endorsed for off-site culling. 

 

2. All shellfish in transport to and from the off-site culling location shall adhere to the Bulk Tagging provisions at  

    General Conditions, no.10 of this permit or each container may be individually tagged using the same record 

    keeping requirements at the permit holder’s discretion. 

 

3. This permit endorsement does not authorize the possession or transport of seed shellfish of any kind other than     

     provided for in this permit. 

 

D. Seed Sales 
 
This permit authorizes the sale of seed shellfish as endorsed at B. subject to the following conditions: 

 

1.  Sale of seed shellfish shall be made only to persons holding a valid aquaculture or propagation permit                                                                                                                              

     from MarineFisheries or to persons holding a similar permit from other states or provinces. 

 

2. Prior to the sale or transplant of any species of seed or adult shellfish from a licensed aquaculture site, upweller                           

    or other location permission must be obtained from Marine Fisheries through an amendment to this permit. 

    MarineFisheries may also require shellfish disease testing before such permission is granted. 

 

 



 

E. Over Wintering 
 

This permit authorizes the over wintering of seed and/or market sized oysters at other than the aquaculture site as endorsed at E. 

subject to the following conditions: 

 

1.  Over wintering of seed or market size oysters off the licensed culture site is only authorized for the purpose of      

     re-planting on the permit holder’s aquaculture site from which the shellfish originated. 

 

2. Oysters, both seed and market size may be stored or overwintered out of water in pits, or cold storage units as   

    endorsed at E. 

 

3.  No direct marketing of shellfish is allowed from any type of land based over wintering operation. All market sized  

     oysters over wintered out of water must be re-submerged  (re-conditioned) for a minimum of 14 days prior to   

     harvest for human consumption.    

 

4.  In water, off-site over wintering of seed oysters shall only be conducted at another licensed site in the same   

      growing area as authorized at E.                 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                  

5.  This permit does not authorize the storage of petite (2.5 -3 inches) or adult (3 inch legal sized) shellfish for the                

      purpose of marketing for human consumption at other than the permit holders aquaculture site. 

 

6.  All shellfish in transport to and from the over wintering location shall adhere to the Bulk Tagging provisions at  

     General Conditions, no. 10 of this permit or each container may be individually tagged using the same record 

      keeping requirements, at the permit holder’s discretion.  

                              

F. Spat Collection 
 
The permit holder is authorized to conduct shellfish spat collection as endorsed at F. subject to the following conditions: 

 

1.  Off site spat collection if endorsed shall commence on June, 15 or later and cease on or before                                     

     September, 15. No gear shall be placed in the water, prior to or remain in the water after the inclusive           

     dates. This does not release the permit holder from obtaining local permission. 

 

2. Off-site spat collection may only be conducted in the same body of water where the permit holder’s license site is  

    located as determined by MarineFisheries and endorsed at F. 

 

3.  On site spat collection shall be in accordance with the provisions of the Aquaculture Guidelines of the  

     Department of the Army,  General Permit for the Commonwealth of Massachusetts. 

 

G. Sale of Undersized (Seed) Shellfish for Market Consumption 
 
MarineFisheries allows the sale of undersized “aquaculture reared” or “farm raised” quahogs, oysters and surf clams 

otherwise known as “seed” for market consumption subject to MarineFisheries regulations at 322 CMR: 6.08, 6.20 and 14.03, 

and the conditions of this permit: 

 

1. Only aquaculturally reared oysters, quahogs and surf clams grown on and harvested from the permit holders licensed private   

    aquaculture site may be sold under this authorization.  No naturally occurring shellfish from public beds below the 

wild minimum size defined at 322 CMR 6.08 and 6.20 may be harvested and sold as aquaculture reared. 
 

2.  All containers that hold aquaculture raised oysters, quahogs and surf clams that are smaller than the wild minimum size 

must have the words “AQUACULTURE REARED” or “FARM RAISED” on the shellfish tag. 

 

3.  Aquaculture reared quahogs shall only be sold  outside of  the Commonwealth. Propagation permit holders shall only sell 

undersized quahogs to authorized wholesale dealers who are approved primary buyers by the Director pursuant to 322 CMR: 7. 

07: Dealers Acting as Primary Buyers, and 14.03: Regulation of Aquaculture Products and certified by the Department of 

Public Health for transport and sale of shellfish outside the Commonwealth.  

 

4.  All records concerning this activity shall be open to inspection by Marine Fisheries at any time, and       

     areas utilized for storage and packing of same shall be open to inspection by any officer authorized to  

     enforce the shellfish rules and regulations of the Commonwealth. 

                                                                                                            

 
                                                                                                            

       Rev 12/21/16 (JMH) 

 



Commonwealth of Massachusetts 
Division of Marine Fisheries 
251 Causeway Street, Suite 400 

Boston, Massachusetts  02114 

(617)626-1520 

fax (617)626-1509 

 
Shellfish Propagation/Private Aquaculture Permit No. 165432 

 

Class 3  Type 1 

 

FEE: $10.00       ISSUED: 1/18/2017   EXPIRES: 12/31/2017 

 

TO WHOM IT MAY CONCERN: 

 

Pursuant to Paragraphs 2 and 3, Section 17; Sections 69, 75, 80 and 83 of Chapter 130 of the 

Massachusetts  General Laws and 322 CMR 3.03; 6.05; 6.08; 6.10; 6.20; 7.01(4)(d) and 15:00, 

permission is hereby given, subject to the attached Shellfish Aquaculture Permit Conditions to: 

 

DANA PAZOLT 

P.O. BOX 126 

NORTH TRURO, MA. 02652 

 

To possess naturally occurring seed shellfish, seed shellfish transplanted under previously issued permits 

and to transplant seed and/or adult shellfish from Division of Marine Fisheries approved sources at and to 

the permit holders private shellfish aquaculture site, licensed under authority of Chapter 130, Section 57 

of the Massachusetts General Laws; or at other locations authorized by endorsements made part of this 

permit; or to municipal propagation sites maintained under authority of Chapter 130, section 52 and 54 

for cultivation of shellfish by coastal municipalities. 

 

LOCATION OF AQUACULTURE SITE(S): TOWN: TRURO       

SITE #: 1-5  DSGA: CCB4- PROVINCETOWN HARBOR      LOCATION: TRURO ADA 

SITE #: 01  DSGA: CCB4- PROVINCETOWN HARBOR      LOCATION: 654 SHORE RD 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

C. OFF-SITE CULLING 

 

OFF-SITE CULLING ALLOWED: Y 

 

LOCATION: 643 SHORE RD. TRURO, 

MACMILLIAN PIER 

 
David E. Pierce 

Director 

 
 Charles D. Baker 

Governor 

Karyn E. Polito 

Lieutenant Governor 

Matthew A. Beaton 

Secretary 

George N. Peterson, Jr. 

Commissioner 

Mary-Lee King 

Deputy Commissioner 

 

A. GROW OUT AND SEED PURCHASES         
SOURCE   

FISHER'S ISLAND   

MOOK      

B. INTERMEDIATE GROWOUT 

ON-SITE: Y OFF-SITE: N 

 

TYPE: FLOATING 

 

LOCATION:  

D. SEED SALES 

SEED SALES ALLOWED: N 

  
 

SEE SPECIAL CONDITIONS 

 

SPECIES 

OYSTER 

OYSTER    



 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

______________________________ 

Approved by: 

David E. Pierce 

Director 

 

 
 

CC TO: 

SHELLFISH CONSTABLE(S): TRURO 

DMF: J.M. HICKEY, T. SHIELDS, C. SCHILLACI, D. MCKIERNAN  

E. OFF-SITE OVERWINTERING 

OVERWINTERING ALLOWED: Y 

 

METHOD: PIT/COOLER 

 

LOCATION: 643 AND 654 SHORE RD. 

 

F. OFF-SITE SPAT COLLECTION 

 

SPAT COLLECTION ALLOWED: Y 

 

OFF-SITE: N 

 

OFF-SITE LOCATION:  

 

METHOD: CHINESE HATS 

 

G. SALE OF UNDERSIZE SHELLFISH FOR CONSUMPTION: 

 

PETITE SALES: Y  

 

SPECIES: OYSTERS 

H. SPECIAL CONDITIONS: 

 

ALL SEED SOURCES LISTED ON THIS PERMIT MUST BE ADDED TO THE 2017 DIVISION OF MARINE 

FISHERIES APPROVED SOURCE LIST PRIOR TO YOU TAKING POSSESSION OF THE SEED. IF YOU WISH 

TO PURCHASE SEED FROM SOURCES NOT LISTED ON THIS PERMIT YOU MUST FIRST OBTAIN 

AUTHORIZATION FROM MARINE FISHERIES. 

  







Regulations for Aquaculture Licenses Page 3 of 6

A. If the license site has been inactive for a period of more than two years the Harbor Master 

Shellfish Constable shall make an inspection of the license area together with the Division of 

Marine Fisheries which shall prepare a written report on the standing shellfish within the license 

area in order to determine productivity of the site 

B. If the license is approved, the Selectmen shall issue a license permit and license number in 

accordance with established regulations. Final location of the license is subject to decision by the 

Board.  

10. In the event that an applicant is approved for a license, the initial period will be for two (2)

growing seasons and expire on the 31
st
 of December following the second growing season. The

license holder shall comply will all Federal, State and Town regulations while holding the 

license. The license holder shall provide information related to activity on the license site at least 

annually. License renewals following the initial period may be applied for at anytime during year 

two. Established license holders with a five year period may apply for renewal at anytime during 

years four or five of the license period. License renewals following the initial two year period 

may be made for a period of five year period. In order to be reviewed and considered for 

renewal, the license holder must have complied with all of the following four items: 

a) All Town fees paid in full

b) Compliance Bond must be current and in full force

c) Evidence of Propagation Permit from DMF

d) Compliance with Annual Activity Report Submission

If the license holder fails to comply with any or all of the items listed above, the license renewal 

will not be recommended by the Shellfish Advisory Committee or Harbor Master Shellfish 

Constable. All renewals shall be subject to approval by the Board of Selectmen with 

recommendations by the Harbor Master Shellfish Constable.  

11. Annual reporting shall be completed on forms provided by the Harbor Master Shellfish

Constable to each license holder on or before December 31 of each year for the previous year’s 

effort. Within a reasonable amount of time, the Harbor Master Shellfish Constable  shall review 

the license report submitted by the license holders and submit a copy of said report to the Board 

of Selectmen. The license holder shall produce documents at the request of the Harbor Master 

Shellfish Constable Harbor Master Shellfish Constable showing shellfish purchase and sales 

slips.  

12. Each license shall be reviewed annually by the Board of Selectmen and the Harbor Master

Shellfish Constable involving a review of the license holder’s yearly production report. If it 

cannot be shown by the license holder that a reasonable amount of shellfish has been produced 

on the license area during the preceding year the license may be deemed forfeited by the Board 

of Selectmen. As a minimum for the purposes stated a reasonable amount shall not be less than 

the statuary requirements as set forth by Section 65 of MGL Chapter 130. Applicant shall be 

responsible for state reports.  

Consent Agenda Item: 6D3

ntudor
Highlight

ntudor
Highlight



1 

 

Consent Agenda Item: 6E 

TOWN OF TRURO 
 Board of Selectmen Agenda Item  

 

 

BOARD/COMMITTEE/COMMISSION:  Shellfish Advisory Committee  

 

REQUESTOR: Nicole Tudor, Executive Assistant  

 

REQUESTED MEETING DATE: April 18, 2017 

 

ITEM: Approval of Appointment of Gary Sharpless as Full Member and Dana Pazolt as 

Alternate to Shellfish Advisory Committee  

 

EXPLANATION: Dana Pazolt submitted an Application to Serve on March 31 2017, for the 

Alternate vacancy on the Shellfish Advisory Committee. Gary Sharpless submitted an 

Application to Serve on April 10, 2017 for the full member vacancy on the Shellfish Advisory 

Committee. Scott Lindell, the Shellfish Advisory Committee Chair has endorsed the 

appointments.  

 

FINANCIAL SOURCE (IF APPLICABLE): N/A 

 

IMPACT IF NOT APPROVED:   The vacancy position on the Shellfish Advisory Committee will 

remain open. 

 

SUGGESTED ACTION:  MOTION TO appoint Gary Sharpless to full membership on the Shellfish 

Advisory Committee for a term to expire June 30, 2020 and Dana Pazolt as Alternate for a one 

year term on the Shellfish Advisory Committee for a term to expire June 30, 2018. 

 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Application to Serve - Dana Pazolt  

2. Application to Serve - Gary Sharpless 

 



  Agenda Item: 6E1



Consent Agenda Item: 6E2



DRAFT Consent Agenda Item: 6F

Truro Board of Selectmen Meeting 

Council on Aging – 7 Standish Way, Truro, MA 

Tuesday, March 21, 2017 

Members Present: Chair Paul Wisotzky; Maureen Burgess, Robert Weinstein, Janet 

Worthington  

Regrets: Jay Coburn 

Present: Town Manager Rae Ann Palmer; Assistant Town Manager Kelly Clark; Town 

Moderator Monica Kraft; Finance Committee Vice-chair Richard Wood; DPW Director Jarrod 

Cabral 

Chair Paul Wisotzky called the meeting to order at 5:00 p.m. 

WARRANT REVIEW 

Town Manager Rae Ann Palmer distributed the draft Annual Town Meeting Warrant, which the 

Selectmen will be voting on at their regular meeting on Monday, March 27, 2017.  The 

Selectmen proofread items as they went. The Warrant included the Budget, the General 

Override, Transfers and the other Articles.  There was discussion of presenting each item for the 

Override and how the vote and ballot question would be handled.  Rae Ann Palmer said that 

Town Counsel will determine this.  The DPW hours for the Transfer Station will be taken out of 

Override consideration.   

CPA Secretary/Consultant Mary Rogers explained the Community Preservation Article 7, 

Sections 1-9.  Rae Ann Palmer continued the review of the rest of the Articles, stopping to 

discuss Article 10 for the Culvert at East Harbor.  Article 11 for non-union personnel increase 

has a table at the end of the Warrant.  Assistant Town Manager Kelly Clark explained Article 12 

on reclassifications for seasonal Beach/Recreation positions.   Rae Ann Palmer examined Article 

13 for the transfer of funds to the employee benefits account and  Article 14 for the COA 

Revolving Fund.  She stopped to explained the amendment to the Personnel Bylaw proposed for 

vacation time in Article 15.  Article 16 makes provisions for a two-thirds vote at Town Meeting.   

Ms. Palmer reviewed Articles 17 and 18.  Article 18 is for establishing interest in electronic 

voting at Town Meeting.  Article 19 is a proposal for combining the Historical Commission and 

the Historical Review Board. 

Kelly Clark explained that Article 20 was a housekeeping item.  Article 21 adds a ticketing 

mechanism for parking violations.  Article 22 is another housekeeping item, she said.  Rae Ann 

Palmer reviewed Articles 23 through 28 for Charter Amendments.  Article 34 concerned the 

Herring River Restoration Project. 

Articles 29 through 33 were Zoning Bylaws proposals, but there had been a suggestion to move 

them to an earlier section in the Warrant.  Town Moderator Monica Kraft said Zoning Bylaws 

always draw people to Town Meeting.  She said moving them could have the negative effect of 

losing a quorum if people left after those votes.  Selectmen continued to express interest in trying 

something new by reordering placement of the Zoning Bylaws towards the front of the Warrant.  

Richard Wood from the Finance Committee said people would come back for a second night for 



Minutes of the Board of Selectmen’s meeting of 3/21/17 2 

 

the Zoning Bylaw Articles if necessary.  The Town Moderator has the authority to reorder 

Articles at Town Meeting to keep a quorum or hold the voters’ attention.  Rae Ann Palmer said 

the order of the Articles would be voted at the Monday Selectmen’s meeting. The Selectmen and 

Town Moderator continued to weigh the pro’s and con’s of moving the Zoning Bylaw Articles.  

There were also suggestions for the order in which the Zoning Bylaw items should appear.  Janet 

Worthington recommended placing the Article for the Seashore building size before the 

petitioned Article on house size for the whole town.  Robert Weinstein suggested placing the 

Accessory Dwelling Unit Articles before the housing size Bylaws.  

On Monday, the Selectmen will vote their recommendations and vote on ordering the Articles.  

Rae Ann Palmer will prepare the Override material the way it will be presented in the Warrant. 

 

PARKING 

DPW Director Jarrod Cabral reported on a possible parking area beside the Public Safety 

Facility. He reviewed the work that would be needed at the location:  a MESA review, an 

engineering study, Site Plan Review, a possible curb cut, grading and construction.  The second 

alternative is Lot 1 at the old burn dump on South Highland Rd.  No MESA review would be 

required but it would need a Site Plan Review and a public hearing.  The lot could accommodate 

70 to 75 spots.  Robert Weinstein said there was one other possible location for parking at South 

Hollow Rd.  If the portion to the west of Rte. 6 were closed in the summer, that part of the road 

could be used for parking.  The South Highland lot will be the first location to be developed  

with a private shuttle service offered to the beaches and other locations. 

 

DPW FACILITY  

Jarrod Cabral discussed options for relocating the DPW facility.  The lot next to the Public 

Safety Facility, which was discussed for parking, was one possibility, but it has limited space.  

He said there was a potential land swap with the Seashore for an area near the Transfer Station.  

Rae Ann Palmer considered this location a good possibility.  The Transfer Station location is 

outside the wellhead, requires no MESA review and is zoned for Municipal use.  The DOT 

property on Rte. 6 is not available, nor is it a good option, she said.  Relocating at least one of the 

DPW buildings was a condition when Town Hall was rehabilitated.  The DPW facility will be an 

agenda item for a future meeting. 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

Maureen Burgess moved to adjourn.  Janet Worthington seconded, and the motion carried 4 -0. 

The meeting was adjourned at 6:43 p.m. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

  

Mary Rogers, Secretary 

 

 



Minutes of the Board of Selectmen’s meeting of 3/21/17 3 

 

 

 

________________________________ ____________________________________ 

Paul Wisotzky, Chair     Maureen Burgess 

  

 

________________________________        ____________________________________ 

Jay Coburn, Clerk     Janet Worthington, Vice-chair 

 

 

________________________________         

   Robert Weinstein 

 

 

 

Public Records Material of 3/21/17 

1. Draft Warrant for 2017 Annual Town Meeting 

2. Lot maps for parking and DPW facility 



DRAFT Consent Agenda Item: 6F

Truro Board of Selectmen Meeting 

Public Safety Facility 

Monday, March 27, 2017 

Members Present: Chair Paul Wisotzky; Maureen Burgess, Jay Coburn, Robert Weinstein, 

Janet Worthington  

Present: Town Manager Rae Ann Palmer; Assistant Town Manager Kelly Clark 

Chair Paul Wisotzky called the meeting to order at 5:01 p.m. 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

Planning Board member John Riemer had a procedural question about the time for the public to 

address Warrant Articles.   

WARRANT RECOMMENDATIONS FOR 2017 ANNUAL TOWN MEETING 

The Board determined that they would make all their recommendations before doing any 

reordering of the Articles for the final Warrant.   

Article 1: Authorization to Hear Reports of Multi-Member Bodies 

Article 2: Authorization to Set Salary of Board of Selectmen 

Article 3: Authorization to Set Salary of Moderator 

Jay Coburn moved to recommend , as printed in the Warrant, Article 1, 2 and 3.  Robert 

Weinstein seconded, and the motion carried 5-0-0. 

Article 4: Amendments to Fiscal Year 2017 Operating Budget 

Jay Coburn moved to recommend, as printed in the Warrant, Article 4: Amendments to FY17 

Operating Budget.  Maureen Burgess seconded, and the motion carried 5-0-0. 

Article 5: FY18 Omnibus Budget Appropriation 

Robert Weinstein moved to recommend, as printed in the Warrant, Article 5: FY18 Omnibus 

Budget Appropriation.  Maureen Burgess seconded, and the motion carried 5-0-0. 

Article 6: General Override   

Maureen Burgess moved to recommend, as printed in the Warrant, Article 6: General Override , 

as printed in the Warrant,.  Jay Coburn seconded, and the motion carried 5-0-0. 

Transfers 

Article 7: Section 1 - Transfers to Reduce or Stabilize FY Tax Rate 

Janet Worthington moved to recommend, as printed in the Warrant, Article 7: Section 1 - 

Transfers to Reduce or Stabilize FY Tax Rate.  Robert Weinstein seconded, and the motion 

carried 5-0-0. 

Article 7: Section 2 – To OPEB Trust Fund 

Jay Coburn moved to recommend, as printed in the Warrant, Article 7: Section 2 – To OPEB 

Trust Fund.  Robert Weinstein seconded, and the motion carried 5-0-0. 



Minutes of the Truro Board of Selectmen’s meeting of 3/27/17 2 

 

 

Article 7: Section 3 – To Affordable Housing Trust Fund 

Robert Weinstein moved to recommend, as printed in the Warrant, Article 7: Section 3 – To 

Affordable Housing Trust Fund.  Maureen Burgess seconded, and the motion carried 4-0-1. 

 

Article 7: Section 4 – To Capital Expenditure Stabilization Fund 

Maureen Burgess moved to recommend, as printed in the Warrant, Article 7: Section 4 – To 

Capital Expenditure Stabilization Fund.  Janet Worthington seconded. The motion carried 5-0-0. 

 

Article 8: Reappropriate East Harbor Pipe Repair Capital Exclusion Funds 

Maureen Burgess moved to recommend, as printed in the Warrant, Article 10: Reappropriate 

East Harbor Pipe Repair Capital Exclusion Funds Janet Worthington seconded, and the motion 

carried 5-0-0. 

 

Article 9: Authorization to Expend Funds in Anticipation of Reimbursement for State 

Highway Assistance Aid 

Robert Weinstein moved to recommend, as printed in the Warrant, Article 9: Authorization to 

Expend Funds in Anticipation of Reimbursement for State Highway Assistance Aid.  Maureen 

Burgess seconded, and the motion carried 5-0-0. 

 

Article 10: Repair and Replace Failing Culvert from Cape Cod Bay to Route 6 

Jay Coburn moved to recommend, as printed in the Warrant, Article 9: Repair and Replace 

Failing Culvert from Cape Cod Bay to Route 6.  Maureen Burgess seconded, and the motion 

carried 5-0-0. 

 

Article 11: Non-Union Personnel Classification & Compensation 

Jay Coburn moved to recommend, as printed in the Warrant, Article 11: Non-Union Personnel 

Classification & Compensation.  Maureen Burgess seconded, and the motion carried 5-0-0. 

 

Article 12: Re-classification of Seasonal Beach/Recreation Positions 

Robert Weinstein moved to recommend, as printed in the Warrant, Article 12: Re-classification 

of Seasonal Beach/Recreation Positions.  Jay Coburn seconded, and the motion carried 5-0-0. 

 

Article 13: Transfer of Funds from Stabilization fund to Employee Benefits Account 

Jay Coburn moved to recommend, as printed in the Warrant, Article 13: Transfer from 

Stabilization Fund to Employee Benefits.  Maureen Burgess seconded, and the motion  

carried 5-0-0. 

 

COA Revolving Funds 

Article 14: Section 1 - Reauthorization of Revolving Fund for COA 

Jay Coburn moved to recommend, as printed in the Warrant, Article 14, Section 1: 

Reauthorization of Revolving Fund for COA.  Robert Weinstein seconded, and motion  

carried 5-0-0. 

 

 



Minutes of the Truro Board of Selectmen’s meeting of 3/27/17 3 

 

 

Article 14: Section 2 - Reauthorization of Revolving Fund for COA  

Jan Worthington moved to recommend, as printed in the Warrant, Article 14, Section 2: 

Reauthorization of Revolving Fund for COA.  Maureen Burgess seconded, and the motion 

carried 5-0-0. 

 

Article 15: Amendment to Personnel Bylaw Article 6, Section 6.1 

Jay Coburn moved to recommend, as printed in the Warrant, Article 15: Amendment to 

Personnel Bylaw Article 6, Section 6.1.  Robert Weinstein seconded. The motion carried 5-0-0. 

 

Article 16, Section 1 – Administrative Percentage 

Robert Weinstein moved to recommend, as printed in the Warrant, CPA Article16, Section 1 – 

Administrative Percentage.  Jay Coburn seconded, and the motion carried 5-0-0. 

 

Article 16, Section 2 – Housing Authority Consultant 

Maureen Burgess moved to recommend, as printed in the Warrant, CPA Article 16, Section 2 – 

Housing Authority Consultant.  Robert Weinstein seconded, and the motion carried 5-0-0. 

 

Article 16, Section 3 –  143 Rte. 6 Habitat for Humanity 

Robert Weinstein moved to recommend, as printed in the Warrant, CPA Article 16, Section 3 –  

143 Rte. 6 Habitat for Humanity.  Maureen Burgess seconded, and the motion carried 5-0-0. 

 

Article 16, Section 4 – Cape Cod Village Home for Adults with Autism 

Maureen Burgess moved to recommend, as printed in the Warrant, CPA Article 16, Section 4 – 

Cape Cod Village Home for Adults with Autism.  Robert Weinstein seconded. The motion 

carried 5-0-0. 

 

Article 6, Section 5 – Phase 2 Highland House Museum 

Maureen Burgess moved to recommend, as printed in the Warrant, CPA Article 16 Section 5 – 

Phase 2 Highland House Museum.  Robert Weinstein seconded, and the motion carried 5-0-0. 

 

Article 16, Section 6 – Edgewood Farm Historic Preservation Project Phase 2 

Robert Weinstein moved to recommend, as printed in the Warrant, CPA Article 16, Section 6 – 

Edgewood Farm Historic Preservation Project Phase 2.  Janet Worthington seconded.  Cheri 

Mittenthal, Executive Director of the Truro Center for the Arts at Castle Hill, gave more 

information on the scope of the historic restoration, the cost, Castle Hill’s role in the community, 

and progress on the required historic deed restriction agreement with the Town.  The motion to 

recommend carried 3-1-1. 

 

Article 16 Section 7 – Puma Park Enhancement 

Maureen Burgess moved to recommend, as printed in the Warrant, CPA Article 16, Section 7 – 

Puma Park Enhancement.  Robert Weinstein seconded. Susan Howe, Chair of the Truro 

Commission on Disabilities, discussed the multi-generational, multi-ability features planned, 

other sources of funding, and money reserved for future repairs to the park.  The motion carried 

5-0-0. 



Minutes of the Truro Board of Selectmen’s meeting of 3/27/17 4 

 

 

 

Article 16, Section 8 – 25 & 25A Pond Rd. Land Acquisition 

Robert Weinstein moved to recommend, as printed in the Warrant, CPA Article 16, Section 8 – 

25 & 25A Pond Rd. Land Acquisition.  Maureen Burgess seconded.  Jay Coburn and Robert 

Weinstein expressed their intentions to vote against recommending the proposal.  Mary Rose, 

Co-chair of the Community Preservation Committee and Mary Rogers, Secretary/Consultant, 

explained CPC’s favorable recommendation.  The motion to recommend carried 3-2-0. 

 

Article 16, Section 9 – Great Hollow Beach Extension 

Robert Weinstein moved to recommend, as printed in the Warrant, CPA Article 16, Section 9 – 

Great Hollow Beach Extension.  Maureen Burgess seconded.  Mary Rose and Mary Rogers 

provided further information on the request that had been brought to CPC by a group of twelve 

taxpayers.  The motion to recommend did not carry 0-4-1. 

 

Article 17: Amend Section 40, Special Regulations, §40.2 Affordable Accessory Dwelling 

Unit by Deleting It in Its Entirety and Replacing It with New Language 

Robert Weinstein moved to recommend, as printed in the Warrant, Article 17: Amend Section 

40, Special Regulations, §40.2 Affordable Accessory Dwelling Unit by Deleting It in Its Entirety 

and Replacing It with New Language.  Jay Coburn seconded.  Discussion followed. 

 

Chris Lucy and Carl Brotman discussed two questions on owner occupation of a dwelling and 

the application of the bylaw to the Seashore District.  Paul Kiernan stated that a two-thirds vote 

will be needed for Articles 17 and 18 and that the public hearing for them has not yet been held.  

John Riemer from the Planning Board asked the Selectmen to defer their vote until after the 

public hearing for the Petitioned Article.  Carl Brotman said that the Petitioned Article had been 

legally vetted and the public hearing is scheduled for next week.   

 

The motion to recommend Article 17 carried 4-0-1. 

 

Petitioned Article 18: Amend § 10.4 by Adding a New Definition, Removing an Existing 

Definition and Amend §30.2 Use Table, by Deleting Uses from the Table 

Robert Weinstein moved to recommend, as printed in the Warrant, Article 18: Amend § 10.4 by 

Adding a New Definition, Removing an Existing Definition and Amend §30.2 Use Table, by 

Deleting Uses from the Table.  Maureen Burgess seconded, and the motion carried 5-0-0. 

 

Petitioned Article 19: Amendment to Chapter 1, Town Affairs of the Truro General Bylaws 

Jay Coburn moved to recommend, as printed in the Warrant, Article 19: Amendment to Chapter 

1, Town Affairs of the Truro General Bylaws.  Robert Weinstein seconded, and the motion 

carried 5-0-0. 

 

Article 20: Amendment to Private and Public Ways and Places General Bylaw § 1-9-7 

Maureen Burgess moved to recommend, as printed in the Warrant, Article 20: Amendment to 

Private and Public Ways General Bylaw § 1-9-7.  Janet Worthington seconded, and the motion 

carried 5-0-0. 



Minutes of the Truro Board of Selectmen’s meeting of 3/27/17 5 

 

 

Article 21:  Amendment to Motor Vehicle General Bylaw § 4-4-1 

Jay Coburn moved to recommend, as printed in the Warrant, Article 21:  Amendment to Motor 

Vehicle General Bylaw § 4-4-1.  Janet Worthington seconded, and the motion carried 5-0-0. 

 

Article 22:  Amendment to Appendix A of General Bylaws 

Robert Weinstein moved to recommend, as printed in the Warrant, Article 22:  Amendment to 

Appendix A of General Bylaws.  Maureen Burgess seconded, and the motion carried 5-0-0. 

 

Article 23: Two-thirds Vote at Town Meeting 

Jay Coburn moved to recommend, as printed in the Warrant, Article 23: Two-thirds Vote at 

Town Meeting.  Maureen Burgess seconded, and the motion carried 5-0-0. 

 

Article 24: Accept MGL, Chapter 39, Section 23D 

Robert Weinstein moved to recommend, as printed in the Warrant, Article 24: Accept MGL, 

Chapter 39, Section 23D.  Jay Coburn seconded, and the motion carried 5-0-0. 

 

Article 25:  Charter Amendment to Section 4-2-7 

Jay Coburn moved to recommend, as printed in the Warrant, Article 25:  Charter Amendment to 

Section 4-2-7.  Maureen Burgess seconded, and the motion carried 4-1-0. 

 

Article 26: Charter Amendment to Section 6-2-12 

Robert Weinstein moved to recommend, as printed in the Warrant, Article 26: Charter 

Amendment to Section 6-2-12.  Maureen Burgess seconded, and the motion carried 5-0-0. 

 

Article 27: Charter Amendment to Section 6-4-1 

Jay Coburn moved to recommend, as printed in the Warrant, Article 27: Charter Amendment to 

Section 6-4-1.  Janet Worthington seconded, and the motion carried 5-0-0. 

 

Article 28: Charter Amendment to Section 6-4-2 

Maureen Burgess moved to recommend, as printed in the Warrant, Article 28: Charter 

Amendment to Section 6-4-2.  Robert Weinstein seconded, and the motion carried 5-0-0. 

 

Article 29: Charter Amendment to Section 6-4-8 

Janet Worthington moved to recommend, as printed in the Warrant, Article 29: Charter 

Amendment to Section 6-4-8.  Maureen Burgess seconded, and the motion carried 5-0-0. 

 

Article 30: Charter Amendment to Appendix B 

Janet Worthington moved to recommend, as printed in the Warrant, Article 30: Charter 

Amendment to Appendix B.  Maureen Burgess seconded, and the motion carried 5-0-0. 

 

Article 31: Amend General Bylaws Chapter VI Preserving Historic Properties Section 

Robert Weinstein moved to recommend, as printed in the Warrant, Article 31: Amend General 

Bylaws Chapter VI Preserving Historic Properties Section.  Maureen Burgess seconded, and the 

motion carried 5-0-0. 



Minutes of the Truro Board of Selectmen’s meeting of 3/27/17 6 

 

 

 

Article 32: Amend Zoning Bylaws §10.4 Definitions §30.3 Seashore District, §70.9 Waiver 

of Site Plan 

Janet Worthington moved to recommend, as printed in the Warrant, Article 32: Amend Zoning 

Bylaws §10.4 Definitions §30.3 Seashore District, §70.9 Waiver of Site Plan.  Maureen Burgess 

seconded.  Discussion followed.   

 

Jay Coburn and Robert Weinstein said that, as advised by Town Counsel, they would be 

abstaining from a vote on this Article.  Planning Board Chair Steve Sollog asked that a new 

Comment, which he read and submitted, be placed in the Warrant to provide more information 

on the bylaw amendment.  Rae Ann Palmer said that Town Counsel must review the new 

material before it can be placed in the Warrant. 

 

 The motion to recommend Article 32 carried 3-0-2. 

 

Petitioned Article 33: Amend Zoning Bylaws §50, Area and Height Regulations 

Janet Worthington moved to recommend, as printed in the Warrant, Article 32: Amend Zoning 

Bylaws §50, Area and Height Regulations.  Maureen Burgess seconded.   Discussion followed. 

 

The public hearing for this Petitioned Article will be held next week. Selectmen discussed 

possible outcomes of having Article 32 and Article 33 in the same Warrant.  Robert Weinstein 

noted that amendments could be made to avoid conflict if both Articles passed.  Steve Sollog, 

Jim Sommers and Susan Howe gave favorable testimony for having a town-wide building size 

bylaw, but considered it something more feasible for another Town Meeting.  The Petitioned 

Article 33 is on the Warrant, Chair Wisotzky said.   

 

The motion to recommend Article 33 did not carry 2-2-1. 

 

Article 34: Herring River Restoration Project Permitting Applications 

Robert Weinstein moved to recommend, as printed in the Warrant, Article 34: Herring River 

Restoration Project Permitting Applications. Maureen Burgess seconded, and the motion  

carried 5-0-0. 

 

Town Manager Rae Ann Palmer said that the Comment section would be modified to reflect 

what the Executive Committee of the Herring River Restoration Project has already decided 

about not using herbicides. 

 

Article 35: Electronic Voting Study Committee 

Robert Weinstein moved to recommend, as printed in the Warrant, Article 18: Electronic Voting 

Study Committee.  Maureen Burgess seconded.  

 

Board members discussed the traditional method of voting openly or the option of requesting a 

secret paper ballot, a mechanism that is already in place for Town Meetings. 

 



Minutes of the Truro Board of Selectmen’s meeting of 3/27/17 7 

 

 

The motion to recommend did not carry 2-2-1. 

 

ORDERING WARRANT ARTICLES 

Members of the Board of Selectmen and the Town Manager discussed the order of presentation 

for the Warrant Articles after the financial ones, which always appear first.  They also considered 

the possibility of scheduling a second night for Town Meeting.  Rae Ann Palmer said that the 

order of the Warrant Articles may be changed by the Town Moderator for a good reason, usually 

for retaining a quorum.  The Town Moderator also makes the decision for holding a second night 

session for Town Meeting.  Susan Howe came forward to express her support for placing 

Planning Board Zoning Bylaw amendments before the Petitioned Zoning Bylaw amendments. 

 

Jay Coburn moved to approve the ordering of the Warrant Articles as they appear in the March 

27, 2017 draft.  Robert Weinstein seconded.  The motion carried 3-2-0. 

 

CONSENT AGENDA 

A. Review/Approve and Authorize Signature: None; 

B. Review and Approve 2017 Seasonal Licenses: Adventure Bound Camping Resort at 

Hortons and Adventure Bound Camping Resort – North Truro Camping Area (Transient 

Vendor); 

C. Review and Approve 2017 Seasonal Alcohol Licenses: Beach Point Health and Swim, 

Blackfish Restaurant, Captain’s Choice, Fuller’s Package Store, Highland Links Golf 

Course, Jams Too Inc., Payomet Theater, Terra Luna Restaurant, Top Mas Café, 

Whitman House Restaurant; and 

D. Review and Approve Regular Board of Selectmen Minutes: March 8, 2017 (Work 

Session), March 14, 2017. 

 

Robert Weinstein moved to approve the Consent Agenda. .Maureen Burgess seconded, and the 

motion carried 5-0 with an abstention by Jay Coburn for Item D Minutes of March 14, 2017. 

 

SELECTMEN’S AND TOWN MANAGER’S REPORTS 

The Selectmen and Town Manager gave their reports.  Robert Weinstein had attended the latest 

Metropolitan Planning Organization’s (MPO) meeting dealing with striping, painting and 

shoulders along Rte. 6 to accommodate bicyclists.  He also had approached a Department of 

Transportation representative about a plan to use the South Hollow Extension between Shore Rd. 

and Route 6 as a future parking area.  The Town is making a request for this as well.  Maureen 

Burgess had attended the last School Committee meeting where she addressed their concerns 

about the Override. She reported on the Disabilities Commission’s work on getting grants for 

Puma Park.  Paul Wisotzky participated in the first quarterly beach clean-up, which was 

considered a success.  He thanked Mary Ellen Duarte, upon her retirement, for her years of 

service at the COA.  Janet Worthington reported on a Harbor meeting about use of the money 

left from dredging the Harbor.  Rae Ann Palmer said that the left over money would be used to 

permit use of the dock and designing the dock expansion.  Grant money will be sought for 

building it.  The bulk of the Town Manager’s time has been taken up with preparation of the 

Warrant for Annual Town Meeting.  Robert Weinstein recommended that Truro residents attend 



Minutes of the Truro Board of Selectmen’s meeting of 3/27/17 8 

 

 

public meetings, such as the recent Wellfleet Shellfish Advisory Board’s, about the Herring 

River Restoration Project to learn more about the impact to property in Truro and the effect on 

Old County Road.    

 

AGENDA FOR NEXT MEETING 

Rae Ann Palmer said that Pre-Town Meeting/Candidates’ Night/Budget Hearing will be held on 

Monday, April 10, 2017.  Agenda for the next regular meeting will be for any re-voting of Town 

Meeting Warrant Articles and for discussion of a differentiated tax rate. 

 

Jay Coburn moved to cancel the meeting scheduled for April 11, 2017 and hold April 18, 2017 

as a regular meeting.  Robert Weinstein seconded, and the motion carried 5-0. 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

Robert Weinstein moved to adjourn.  Jay Coburn seconded, and the motion carried 5 -0. 

The meeting was adjourned at 7:20 p.m. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

  

Mary Rogers, Secretary 

 

 

 

 

________________________________ ____________________________________ 

Paul Wisotzky, Chair     Maureen Burgess 

  

 

________________________________        ____________________________________ 

Jay Coburn, Clerk     Janet Worthington, Vice-chair 

 

 

________________________________         

   Robert Weinstein 

 


	17.04.18  BoS Agenda
	3A Agenda Request-Truro Rep to Provincetown Water and Sewer Board
	3A1 Application to Serve-Peter Graham
	3B Agenda Request-Zoning Board of Appeals applicants
	3B1 Application to Serve Susan Areson
	3B2 Application to Serve Chris Lucy
	3B3 Application to Serve-Karen Tosh
	5A Residential Exemption BOS Agenda Item-4.18.17
	5A1 The Residential Exemption Process
	5A2 Truro ResExWorksheet 4.18.17
	5A3 Tax Comparison-4 18 17
	5B Agenda Item_warrant motions
	5B1 ATM 2017 Warrant FINAL_Single Page Articles
	5C Police and Immigration BOS Agenda Item-4.18.17
	5C1 Immigration Enforcement 4-2017
	5C2 Immigration Enforcement
	6 Consent Agenda List
	6B  Agenda Request Seasonal Licenses
	6B1 Jules Besch Stationers Application
	6B2 Business Application _ North of Highland Camping Area
	6B3 Highland Links Golf Course Application
	6B4 Terra Luna Restaurant
	6C Agenda Request One Day Entertainment
	6C1 Entertainment Application Truro Vineyards
	6C2 Entertainment Application Truro Vineyards
	6D Shellfish license renewal;William and Cheryl Souza; Dana Pazolt
	6D1 Souza ADA Renewal Application
	6D2 Pazolt ADA Renewal Application
	6D3 2017  Regulations for Truro Aquaculture Licenses
	6E Agenda Request Form SAC Vacancy
	6E1 Dana Pazolt Applicaton to Serve
	6E2 Application to Serve - Gary Sharpless
	6F TBOS meeting 3.21.17
	6F TBOS meeting 3.27.17



